2025-2026 Handbook for McCall Middle School





TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Town of Winchester Human Rights Statement | 6 |
|--|-------|
| Winchester Public Schools: Mission, Vision & Values | 6 |
| Winchester Public Schools: School Committee | 7 |
| Winchester Public Schools: District Administration | 7 |
| McCall Middle School Contact Information | 8-9 |
| Secondary Directors/Coordinators | 9 |
| District Coordinators | 9 |
| Principal's Welcome | 10 |
| Core Values | 11 |
| Introduction | 11 |
| Statement of Purpose | 11-12 |
| Expectations for Students | 12-13 |
| General School Information | |
| School Times | 13 |
| Main Office | 13 |
| Communications with Parents / Guardians | 14 |
| Counseling Services | 14 |
| Registrar's Office | 15 |
| Library | 15 |
| Breakfast and Lunch Program | 15 |
| Lockers | 16 |
| Backpacks | 16 |
| Lost and Found | 16 |
| End of School Day | 16 |
| School Property Expectation | 17 |
| Elevator Usage | 17 |
| Physical Education Excused Participation | 17 |
| Classroom or Office Phone Use | 17 |
| Cell Phones / Smartwatches | 17 |
| Classroom Sign-Out Procedures | 17 |
| Parents / Guardians Visiting Teachers | 18 |
| Parents / Guardians Bringing Student Items to School | 18 |
| Attendance | 18-22 |
| School Closure Information | 22-23 |
| Transportation | 23-24 |
| Health Services | 24-27 |
| Life Threatening Allergies | 27 |

| Academic Program | 27 |
|---|-------|
| Homework | 28-29 |
| Group Projects | 29-30 |
| Grading System | 30 |
| Final Exams | 30 |
| Self-Directed Study Hall | 31 |
| Academic Dishonesty | 31-32 |
| Promotion and Retention of Students | 32 |
| Extra Help | 32 |
| Parent/Guardian Conferences | 32 |
| Special Education | 33-34 |
| Section 504 of The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 | 34-36 |
| Extracurricular Activities | 36-37 |
| Student Discipline | 37-38 |
| Disciplinary Actions | 38-41 |
| Hazing | 41 |
| School Safety | 42-43 |
| Volunteers | 43 |
| Winchester Parent Organizations | 44 |
| Winchester Special Education Parent Advisory Committee | 44 |
| General Policies | |
| Policy AC: Nondiscrimination | 44 |
| Policy ACA-1: Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Gender Identity | 45 |
| Policy ACAB: Sexual Harassment | 45 |
| Policy ACAC: Policy and Procedures on Harassment | 45-46 |
| Policy BDFA: School Councils | 46 |
| Policy BGD: School Committee Review of Procedures | 46 |
| Policy EEAJ: Motor Vehicle Idling on School Grounds | 46-47 |
| Policy IHAMA: Parental Notification Relative to Sex Education | 47 |
| Policy IJOC: School Volunteers | 47 |
| Policy IJNDB: Student Acceptance Use Policy | 47-48 |
| Policy JB: Equal Educational Opportunities | 48 |
| Policy JI: Student Rights and Responsibilities | 48 |
| Policy JICFA: Prohibition of Hazing | 48 |
| Policy JICFA-E: Hazing | 49 |
| Policy JICFB: Anti-Bullying | 49-50 |
| Policy JIH: Searches and Interrogations | 50 |
| The Educational Rights of Children and Youth in Homeless Situations | 50 |
| WPS Bullying Prevention & Response Plan | 50-51 |

| | Federal Laws Governing Students' Rights to Education | 51-53 |
|----------------|---|---------|
| 4 ₁ | ppendix | |
| | Policy AC: Nondiscrimination | 53-54 |
| | Policy ACA-1: Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Gender Identity | 54-57 |
| | Policy ACAB: Sexual Harassment | 57-63 |
| | Policy ACAC: Policy and Procedures on Harassment | 63-67 |
| | Policy ACDA: Accommodation for Religious and Ethnic Observances Policy | 67-68 |
| | Policy BDFA: School Councils | 68 |
| | Policy BGD: School Committee Review of Procedures | 68-69 |
| | Policy ECAC: Vandalism | 69-70 |
| | Policy ECAF: Security Cameras in Schools | 70 |
| | Policy EEAJ: Motor Vehicle Idling on School Grounds | 71 |
| | Policy IHAMA: Parental Notification Relative to Sex Education | 71-72 |
| | Policy IJOC: School Volunteers | 72 |
| | Policy IKB: Homework | 73 |
| | Policy JI: Student Rights and Responsibilities | 73-74 |
| | Policy JICA: Student Dress Code | 74-75 |
| | Policy JB: Equal Educational Opportunities | 75 |
| | Policy JIC: Student Discipline | 76-81 |
| | Policy JICC (Also EEAEC): Student Conduct on School Buses | 81 |
| | Policy JICC-R (also EEAEC-R): Student Conduct on School Buses | 81-82 |
| | Policy JICFA: Prohibition of Hazing | 82-83 |
| | Policy JICFA-E: Hazing | 83-84 |
| | Policy JICG: Smoking on School Premises | 84 |
| | Policy JICH: Alcohol, Tobacco, and Drug Use by Students Prohibited | 84-85 |
| | Policy JIH: Searches and Interrogations | 85-86 |
| | Policy JJIC: Inclusive Sports and Extracurricular activity Participation Policy | 86-87 |
| | Policy JJIF: Athletic Concussion Policy | 87-89 |
| | Concussion Protocol | 89 |
| | Policy JICFB: Anti-Bullying | 89-93 |
| | Policy JRA: Student Records | 93 |
| | Policy IJNDB: Student Acceptance Use Policy | 93-100 |
| | Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) | 100-103 |
| | Student Discipline | 103-107 |
| | Statutory Offenses: Provisions of Law and Due Process | 107-111 |
| | Discipline of Students with Disabilities | 111-113 |
| | | |

The adopted policies and procedures of the Winchester School Committee and School Department shall supersede all statements and information provided within this document should language be in conflict. For more detailed information and School Committee adopted policies, please refer to the Winchester School Committee Policy Manual, which can be accessed online (WPS Policy Manual) or by contacting the Office of the Superintendent at 781-721-7000.

Town of Winchester Human Rights Statement

Winchester is a community that is grounded in respect for every individual and therefore protects all residents, employees, business owners, students and visitors in the enjoyment and exercise of human and civil rights. It is Town policy to ensure equal treatment and opportunity to all individuals regardless of race, gender, gender identity, ethnicity, religion, ideology, socio-economic status, health, sexual orientation, age, military status, or disability.

Adopted by the Winchester Select Board September 2009; 2012

Winchester Public Schools: Mission, Vision & Values

Our Mission

To provide all students with an outstanding education in a nurturing yet challenging environment that fosters academic achievement, healthy social and emotional development, enthusiasm for education, and a life-long love for learning.

Our Vision

To strengthen and promote Winchester's tradition of outstanding education for all, ours will be an exemplary public school system that works in partnership with students, parents/guardians, and the community to:

- Challenge every student appropriately and positively with a comprehensive curriculum that simultaneously emphasizes academic fundamentals, real-world skills, and healthy social and emotional development;
- Encourage every student and every teacher to reach their potential by providing a safe, nurturing, and rich learning environment that inspires leadership, enthusiasm for education, and a lifelong love for learning;
- Prepare students to thrive in an increasingly complex, diverse world and to possess a strong sense of civic responsibility and citizenship;
- Value, support, and recognize skilled and passionate teachers committed to educating our students as individuals and as members of a caring and connected community; and
- Embrace and cultivate communication to support effective student learning and healthy
 development and to improve community awareness of the issues, challenges, accomplishments,
 and achievements that together define our school system.

Our Values

- Quality teaching by teachers who are passionate learners capable of inspiring and motivating students through their mastery of content and pedagogy and their joy for teaching and learning.
- The unique strength of every student, and we commit to nurturing each as an individual and as a partner in learning.
- A rigorous and comprehensive academic program and the tools and materials to support it.
- Respect and sensitivity toward self and others.
- Rich interaction between students and teachers.
- An environment that promotes and cultivates a lifelong love for learning.
- A positive school culture and a nurturing climate.

Winchester Public Schools: School Committee

Ms. Karen Maruyama Bolognese, Chair

Dr. Timothy Matthews, Vice Chair

Ms. Stefanie Mnayarji, Recording Secretary

Ms. Michelle Bergstrom

Mr. Tom Hopcroft

Regular sessions of the School Committee are generally twice a month unless otherwise posted on the Town of Winchester <u>Government Calendar</u>. Meetings are open to the public and are also televised on Winchester Cable TV Channel 9/37. Detailed information about the School Committee is illustrated on the <u>School Committee</u> website.

Winchester Public Schools: District Administration

Business Office & Mailing Address

80 Skillings Road Winchester, MA 01890 781-721-7000 www.winchesterps.org

Director of Finance & Operations Mr. Andrew Marron 781-721-7000 x1000

Director of Social Emotional Learning & Counseling
Ms. Erin Kuehn
781-721-7000 x1011

Superintendent, Assistant Superintendents and Special Education

161 Mystic Valley Parkway Winchester, MA 01890 781-721-7000 www.winchesterps.org

Superintendent of Schools Dr. Frank Hackett 781-721-7000 x1004

Assistant Superintendent for Elementary Education
Ms. Laurie Kirby
781-721-7000 x1006

Assistant Superintendent of Schools
Dr. Jennifer Elineema
781-721-7000 x1006

Director of Special Education Ms. Marlena Ysalguez 781-721-7000 x1005

McCall Middle School Contact Information

458 Main Street, Winchester, MA 01890 Phone: 781-721-7026 Fax: 781-721-0886

https://www.winchesterps.org/mccall

PrincipalAssistant PrincipalAssistant PrincipalMr. James LinMs. Kimberly ComeiroMr. Terence Sheehanjlin@winchesterps.orgkcomeiro@winchesterps.orgtsheehan@winchesterps.org781-721-7026 x1117781-721-7026 x1106781-721-7026 x1118

| Administrative Assistant to the Principal | Ms. Angela Tutein | atutein@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x1111 | |
|---|--|--|--|
| Special Education Supervisor | Ms. Caitlin Danizio (7th, 8th Grade, & LBLD cases) | cdanizio@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x1415 | |
| | Ms. Erin Yahoodik (6th Grade, Connections & Partnership cases) | eyahoodik@winchesterps.org | |
| Administrative Assistant to Special Education | Ms. Ester DeOliveira | edeoliveira@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x1406 | |
| School Nurses | Ms. Katherine Whang | kwhang@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x1129 | |
| | Ms. Kellie Bratton | kdevine@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x1129 | |
| Registrar/Database | Ms. Sandra Guarino | sguarino@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x1112 | |
| Library/Media Specialist | Ms. LeeAnne Toner | ltoner@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x4105 | |
| Sc | School Counseling/Guidance Department | | |
| Administrative Assistant | Ms. Cynthia Gallagher | cgallagher@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x1123 | |
| Grade 6 (Gemini & Titans) & Grade 7 (Globetrotters) | Ms. Samantha Belanger | sbelanger@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x4106 | |
| Grade 7 (Olympians & Marathoners) | Ms. Christine Nunziato-Bonenfant | cnbonenfant@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x1125 | |

| Grade 7 (Gold & Platinum) | Ms. Shareen Dolan | sdolan@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x1124 |
|---|---------------------|---|
| Grade 7 (Voyagers) & Grade 8 (Diamond and Silver) | Ms. Melissa Suvak | msuvak@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x1126 |
| Grade 8 (Oracles, Discovery, & Titans) | Mr. Charles Downing | cdowning@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x1127 |

Secondary Directors/Coordinators

| Art | Ms. Jennifer Levatino | ilevatino@winchesterps.org 781-721-7020 x4023 |
|---|------------------------|---|
| English | Ms. Carolyn Plosky | cplosky@winchesterps.org 781-721-7020 x4353 |
| Health Services | Ms. Lynn Vozzella | lvozzella@winchesterps.org 781-721-7013 x4110 |
| Mathematics | Ms. Elizabeth Often | eoften@winchesterps.org 781-721-7020 x4272 |
| Music | Ms. Mary Costello | mcostello@winchesterps.org 781-721-7026 x4100 |
| Science | Ms. Ann Ritchie | aritchie@winchesterps.org 781-721-7020 x4215 |
| Social Studies | Mr. Chris Kurhajetz | ckurhajetz@winchesterps.org 781-721-7020 x4341 |
| Digital Learning and Innovation Coordinator | Ms. Lynne Peledge | lpeledge@winchesterps.org |
| World Languages | Mr. Christopher Nadeau | cnadeau@winchesterps.org 781-721-7020 x4186 |

District Coordinators

| Title 1 Coordinator | Ms. Katie Malone | kmalone@winchesterps.org 781-721-7030 x2155 |
|--|----------------------|--|
| Title II ADA Compliance Coordinator | Ms. Marlena Ysalguez | mysalguez@winchesterps.org 781-721-7000 x1005 |
| Title IV Civil Rights Coordinator & Title IX Coordinator | Ms. Anna Paradis | aparadis@winchesterps.org 781-721-7020 x4009 |

| Director of Multilingual Learner Education | Ms. Hannah Dingman | hdingman@winchesterps.org 781-721-7017 x2118 |
|---|--------------------|---|
| 504 Coordinator & Homeless Education Coordinator | Ms. Erin Kuehn | ekuehn@winchesterps.org 781-721-7000 x1011 |

Principal's Welcome

Welcome to McCall Middle School and the start of the 2025-2026 school year. On behalf of the entire faculty and staff, I am delighted to greet all the incoming 6th graders at McCall Middle School. I am also pleased to celebrate the return of our 7th and 8th grade students. Additionally, I wish to extend a very special welcome to our students who are new to Winchester or new to our school.

The entire McCall community is looking forward to another great year of academic and personal growth, challenges, and accomplishments. Our entire faculty and staff work with students to achieve high academic and social standards as well as personal and community responsibility. With active parent/guardian participation, we work to make each day a positive experience for our middle school students. Personal and academic growth, as well as building skills in self-advocacy during the middle school years, will prepare students for high school and beyond. Our learning approach is to offer a balanced instructional program in a team setting that emphasizes academic integrity while making a connection with students as they continue to develop their social skills.

The real strength of our school is found in the strong core and exploratory educational programs that will be offered to students by a knowledgeable, caring, and experienced teaching staff. A large support staff (cafeteria workers, custodians, counselors, librarian/media specialist, nurse, administrators, administrative assistants, and special education personnel) stands ready to help students. As in the previous years, we will be able to offer an extensive list of extracurricular activities programs for our students free of charge during this coming school year.

Please review this handbook carefully, as it contains McCall Middle School's Statement of Purpose, expectations for students, and key policies and rules of our school. It is important that students and their parents/guardians are familiar with this information as it will help establish and maintain the positive learning environment that is so essential for a successful school experience. Working together, I anticipate that we will have a wonderful year of success and accomplishments.

Sincerely,

James Lin Principal McCall Middle School

McCall Middle School

Excellence in Every Classroom

Core Values

Act Responsibly

Lead with integrity

Be a life-long learner

Introduction

This handbook contains the school's statement of purpose, key goals for students, policies, rules, and discipline policy – all of which are aimed at ensuring a safe, productive, and enjoyable environment for learning. Students and their parents/guardians are required to read and discuss this handbook, then sign and return the Student & Parent/Guardian Sign-Off sheet.

Statement of Purpose

McCall Middle School is a community of learners committed to academic and personal growth. As educators, our purpose is to help you:

- Develop intellectually and socially as fully as possible.
- Think creatively and critically and solve problems constructively.
- Clarify and strengthen your goals and values.
- Develop self-discipline, personal responsibility, self-respect, and pride in your work.
- Master organization and time management skills.
- Develop your tolerance and respect for others, especially those who are different from you.

Why should these goals be important to you? Simply put, the more you learn and the more you are able to get along with different people at McCall, the better prepared you will be to:

- Further your own education and advancement in high school and thereafter.
- Create and take advantage of the many opportunities in your future.
- Work successfully on teams and with others in diverse workplaces.
- Be an independent, responsible, knowledgeable, and contributing citizen in our society.

To maximize your opportunities to learn and grow, we believe our school needs to:

- Be safe for all students.
- Have high expectations for everyone: students, teachers, and staff.
- Be challenging and rigorous to enable and stimulate each student to achieve their best.

- Offer varied and appropriate curricula for early adolescents, including opportunities for exploratory and hands-on learning.
- Provide academic and emotional support.
- Be a place for fun and enjoyment as well as learning.

What is a middle school?

As you settle into McCall, you will see that our school is designed for students your age. It is different from the elementary and high schools in a variety of ways.

First, you have a team of core teachers who work cooperatively to plan and integrate curricula, coordinate homework assignments and tests, and facilitate your learning. This should help to make McCall Middle School a more personal school for you.

Second, a major goal is to teach you how to learn. Your teachers will encourage and challenge you to think for yourself, learn the art of asking useful questions, seek answers on your own, and study more effectively.

Third, you will use several different approaches to learning, such as listening, reading, writing, creating things with your hands, and thinking to solve various problems. Sometimes you will learn from information your teachers give you, and sometimes you will work and learn on your own. At other times you will work in groups with your classmates.

McCall offers you many opportunities to expand your knowledge, develop new interests, discover new skills, build new friendships, and have fun. The time to explore and venture into new areas of learning is now. Make the most of it and enjoy your years at McCall!

Expectations for Students

McCall's teachers and staff expect and want students to grow during the years here academically, socially, emotionally, morally, and ethically.

Academic Growth:

- Becoming an independent learner, a critical and cooperative thinker, and a problem-solver through a variety of challenging and interactive learning experiences.
- Developing skills in reading, writing, listening, and speaking.
- Developing skill in the understanding and use of mathematics, sciences, information management, and technology.
- Increasing an appreciation for the arts and for the aesthetic dimensions of every discipline.
- Developing good study skills and producing high quality schoolwork and homework, on time.
- Taking advantage of opportunities for self-evaluation, reflection, and planning.

Social and Emotional Growth

- Self-awareness
 - Identifying the connections between their thoughts, feelings, and behaviors
 - Exploring the triggers that preceded their thoughts, behaviors or actions.
 - Practicing self-assessment and self-reflection
- Self -management
 - Dealing with challenges and successes as well as frustrations and disappointments.

- Practicing honesty, fairness, and trust.
- Taking care of the school environment and the personal and private property, including the work product, of others.

Social Awareness

- Strengthening a sense of civic responsibility and service to others.
- Recognizing, appreciating, and respecting differences in other people and the diversity in the school and world at large.

Relationship Skills

- Collaboration/Working effectively in a group.
- Relating well with many other people; exhibiting self-control, cooperation, good manners, respect, and tolerance for differences.
- Advancing and defending a personal point of view more effectively.
- Developing a sense of responsibility for oneself and others; accountability for one's actions; and pride in one's skills, accomplishments, and work.

Responsible Decision- making

 Making healthy lifestyle choices that promote physical, emotional, social, and mental well-being.

Social and Emotional Growth:

- Working effectively in a group.
- Dealing with challenges and successes as well as frustrations and disappointments.
- Relating well with many other people; exhibiting self-control, cooperation, good manners, respect, and tolerance for differences.
- Advancing and defending a personal point of view more effectively.
- Making healthy lifestyle choices that promote physical, emotional, social, and mental well-being.
- Strengthening a sense of civic responsibility and service to others.

General School Information

School Times

Regular Day session 8:25 am to 3:12pm / Early Release Day session 8:25 am to 12:05pm. The instructional day begins at 8:25 am.

Main Office

Visitors to McCall will use the buzzer system at the front entrance of the school. Visitors should first press the exterior button outside of the front door, look into the camera, and when prompted state their name and the reason for visiting before being allowed entry into the building. Visitors may also be asked to show identification. All visitors, including parents and guardians, must first report to the Main Office, sign in, pick up a visitor's badge, and affix the badge so that it is visible. Visitors in the building without a visitor's identification sticker during the school day will be escorted to the main office.

Work Permit Application

All forms may be obtained from the front office. Once employment has been granted and the employer has completed the Employment Permit Application, it should be submitted to Ms. Guarino in the front office for completion of the working papers. Permit Employment Application Forms need to be filled out prior to receiving an Employment Permit.

Communications with Parents / Guardians

A vital part of our role as educators is communicating with students and their families. Teachers and staff members strive to communicate effectively with families regarding academic and social-emotional progress of students. Listed below are various avenues that McCall Middle School takes to provide students and families with important information. Parents and guardians are welcome to contact a staff member directly to ask questions or to resolve concerns. The primary responsibility of teachers is to instruct students; therefore, an email or a phone call is strongly recommended prior to scheduling a face-to-face meeting.

| Topic | Resources | Primary Contact |
|-------------------|---|--------------------------------|
| Academic Progress | - Back-to-School Night | Classroom Teachers |
| | - Progress Reports | Team Leaders |
| | - Report Cards | Guidance Counselors |
| | - Grades & Comments on Student Work | |
| | - Emails or Phone Calls from Teachers | |
| | - Teacher websites | |
| | - Parent/Guardian/Teacher Conference Day | |
| | - Teacher/Team Conferences | |
| | - Google Classrooms | |
| | - Google Calendars | |
| Social-emotional | - Email or phone calls from teachers or staff | Classroom teachers |
| progress | - Parent/Guardian/Teacher Conference Day | School Counselors, Clinical |
| | - Teacher/Team Conferences | Social Worker, or School |
| | | Psychologists |
| Special Education | - Email or phone calls from Special Education | Special Education Liaisons, |
| | Liaisons | Special Education Supervisor |
| | - IEP Team Meetings | |
| | - IEP progress reports | |
| Logistics | - ParentSquare | Team Leaders, |
| | - <u>School Website</u> | Principal/Assistant Principals |

Counseling Services

School counselors respond to a wide variety of issues. The counselors work with teachers, students, and parents/guardians regarding academic scheduling and school related concerns. Students are welcome to stop by anytime to make an appointment with their guidance counselor. The best time to make an appointment is between classes or before or after school. Parents/guardians are also encouraged to contact their child's designated school counselor and make an appointment as needed.

Mandatory Reporting of Abuse and Neglect

Under Mass. Gen. Law Chap. 119 Sec. 51A, school personnel, including but not limited to teachers, administrators, and guidance counselors, are required to report suspected cases of child abuse or neglect to the Massachusetts Department of Children and Families.

Registrar's Office

Registration

Students planning to attend McCall Middle School must complete the online registration process through the Aspen Family Portal. Detailed information may be found at www.winchesterps.org/registration. A student should have a copy of their latest transcript or report card when they register so appropriate classes may be scheduled.

School Transfer

A student who plans to move, leave school early, or withdraw from McCall Middle School for any reason should secure a withdrawal form from their school counselor. This form needs to be completed and returned to their counselor confirming all books have been returned and that all course work has been completed. Once required withdrawal forms have been completed by parent/guardian and student, the middle school will forward student records to a school in which the student seeks to enroll, as requested.

Library

The library is an area for quiet study, research, and reading enjoyment. Students may use the library during class time with the permission of library staff and a pass from their classroom teacher. Books are signed out for two (2) weeks and may be renewed. Students are responsible for either returning all borrowed library materials or paying for lost library items.

Breakfast and Lunch Program

Breakfast is available for purchase in the cafeteria from 7:55-8:17 am each morning that school is in session. Lunch is available for purchase every full day school is in session and it is supervised by staff members. Parents/Guardians and their child should review the POS System details mailed during the summer. Parents/Guardians may update their child's lunch account by visiting the website myschoolbucks.com.

Menus and pricing can be found at: www.fdmealplanner.com/#winchester.

Winchester Public Schools participates in a federally subsidized lunch program for qualified families. Information can be found at: <u>Free & Reduced Lunch</u>

Lunchroom Behavior Expectation

Students are expected to:

- 1. Enter quietly. Walk to and sit at your table.
- 2. Wait to be called to the food service line. Refrain from pushing or cutting in line.
- 3. Treat food service staff, lunch monitors, custodial staff, and each other with respect.
- 4. Speak at a conversational level.
- 5. Remain seated unless you have received permission from a lunch monitor to leave your seat.
- 6. Refrain from visiting other tables during lunch.

- 7. Stop talking, look at the speaker, and listen to what is being said when announcements are made.
- 8. Keep tables and immediate areas clean, placing litter and recyclable items in the designated receptacles.
- 9. Wait to be dismissed by a lunch monitor and go directly to class.

Possible consequences for lunchroom behavior violations

- 1. Reminder of behavioral expectations from lunch monitor
- 2. Reassigned seating
- 3. Lunch detention
- 4. Conference with parents/guardians

Additional guidelines will be shared the first week of school by the lunch supervisors.

Food and Beverages

Eating candy, food, and drinking anything other than water without approval from a McCall staff member is prohibited in classrooms, hallways, the gymnasium and the auditorium. Students are encouraged to bring a refillable water bottle to school.

Each grade level team will designate an appropriate time during on-team periods for students to consume a snack. Students should bring snacks that can easily and neatly be consumed during those time periods.

Lockers

At the beginning of each school year, students will be assigned a locker. Students must keep the locker combination confidential and their locker locked at all times to ensure that belongings will be secure. The school is not responsible for the loss or theft of items in lockers. Students experiencing difficulty opening their locker should speak with a team teacher, a custodian, or administrative assistant in the main office for help. Students may decorate the inside of lockers. Tape, stickers and markers cannot be used. The outside of lockers cannot be decorated for any reason. Lockers are the property of McCall Middle School and are subject to inspection by the administration with or without notice.

Backpacks

A backpack may be used to bring books and other items to and from school. Backpacks, including rolling back bags and other bags, must be stored in the student's locker during the school day, unless otherwise specified. Students will have access to their lockers before first period class, directly before and after lunch, and at the end of the school day.

Lost and Found

Lost and found boxes are located in the cafeteria, in the main office foyer, and outside the physical education locker rooms. Students who have lost an item are encouraged to check these locations. Students are encouraged to write their first and last name in all books and on any item (water bottle, lunch box, jacket, etc.) that is brought to school.

End of School Day

The regular school day ends at 3:12 p.m. At that time, all students are expected to exit the building using their assigned team entrances, and vacate school grounds including Manchester Field and Knowlton Stadium, unless arrangements have been made to meet with a teacher or the student is participating in a supervised after-school activity.

School Property Expectation

The staff, especially the custodial staff, work very hard to keep the building clean and to maintain school equipment in good working order. Students have the responsibility to respect and protect all school property and spaces including, but not limited to classrooms, bathrooms, hallways, cafeteria, outside areas, and all furnishings.

Elevator Usage

Students permitted to use the elevator are those who have provided a note from a medical provider to the school nurse or have prior approval to those students we have prior knowledge of requiring the use of the elevator. Students who need assistance in carrying school materials may be accompanied by one other student.

Physical Education Excused Participation

Notes from parents/guardians are required in order for a student to be excused from Physical Education class. If a student will be excused for a period exceeding two consecutive physical education classes, authorization from a physician will be required. Physical Education excuses from a physician should be delivered to the nurse at the start of the school day and should include the number of days that the student will not be able to participate in Physical Education or specify the extent to which the student may participate in Physical Education classes.

Classroom or Office Phone Use

With permission of the classroom teacher or office staff, a student may use a classroom phone or office phone.

Cell Phones / Smartwatches

Prior to first period class each morning, all students must turn off their cell phones and smartwatches and secure them in their lockers. Students are not permitted to carry and/or use cell phones / smartwatches during the school day. If a student needs to make a phone call, they will be able to access one in a classroom, main office or the guidance office. Students found carrying or using their cell phone / smartwatch during the school day may be required to turn the item over and disciplinary action may be assigned by an administrator. Repeat offenders may be required to turn their phone into the main office at the start of each school day.

Classroom Sign-Out Procedures

Students who leave a class must sign out/in using the electronic Team Sign-In/Sign-Out Google

Form. In addition, students will be provided a pass by their teacher to carry with them. No more than one student will be permitted to leave a classroom at the same time. Students should have a pass with them at all times when in the hall.

Parents / Guardians Visiting Teachers

Parents and guardians who want to meet with a staff member should reach out by phone or email to the teacher to make an appointment. Upon entering the building, parents and guardians must first report to the main office, sign in, pick up a visitor's badge, and affix the badge so that it is visible. An office administrative assistant will notify the teacher of your arrival.

Parents / Guardians Bringing Student Items to School

Parents/Guardians and educators play a vital role in helping students develop independence and the key attribute of responsibility. With this in mind, it is requested that you help your McCall student remember the main items they need to take to school such as lunch, books, homework, instruments, appointment notices, etc. Please work with your child to develop strategies to ensure that he/she brings all necessary materials (e.g., lunch, homework, charged Chromebook, etc.) to school daily. Parents/guardians are discouraged from bringing these items to school for their children. In the event that parents/guardians must bring essential items to school for their children, one PA announcement will be made at the start of the first lunch to notify students that items have been brought in for them. Please note there are three bins located in the main office foyer labeled Grade 6, Grade 7, & Grade 8. If a parent/guardian is dropping off an item for their child, we ask that the child's full name and grade be written clearly on the item and the item be placed in the appropriate grade level bin. Students should check the bins between classes if they are anticipating someone bringing something to school for them. Your support in this regard will be most appreciated.

Attendance

Education in the Winchester Public Schools requires regular and punctual attendance to enhance high levels of participation on the part of its students. Parents and guardians of children who attend our schools have special responsibilities, one of which is to ensure that their children attend school regularly, as required by Massachusetts General Law Chapter 76, section 1. The law states that all children between the ages of six and sixteen must attend school. Up to seven-day sessions and fourteen partial-day sessions may be excused by the school district within any six-month period.

Attendance Notification Procedure

If a student will be absent or tardy, a parent/guardian must call the school at (781) 721-7026 and provide the student's name, grade, and reason for the absence or tardiness. This call should take place before 8:25 a.m. on the day of the absence or tardiness. Students who have been absent during the school day may not participate in after-school or evening activities.

Early Arrival

It is recommended that students not arrive at school any earlier than 7:55 a.m. unless they have made arrangements to meet with a teacher or intend to purchase a breakfast. Students wanting a breakfast may arrive at school as early as 8:00 a.m. as breakfast is available for purchase from 8:00-8:17 a.m.

Students will be permitted to enter the building through their team designated entrance at 8:17 a.m. Students arriving at school after 8:30 a.m. should enter the building through the main entrance doors, enter the main office, and receive a tardy pass before going to first period class or their scheduled class.

Punctuality

The school day officially begins at 8:25 a.m. Students are considered tardy if they are not seated in their first period class by 8:25 a.m. It may be helpful to plan to arrive by 8:00 a.m. to ensure punctuality.

Excused Absence/ Excused Tardy

Winchester Public Schools allows for the following reasons to excuse an absence:

- 1. Student illness
- 2. Emergency medical or dental treatment
- 3. Serious illness or death in the family
- 4. Family emergency
- 5. Religious observance
- 6. Suspension
- 7. School sponsored events/field trips

Unexcused Absences

The building principal will make the final determination as to whether an absence is classified as excused or unexcused even if the absence meets the approval of parents or guardians. Unexcused absences include, but are not limited to: Appointments (non-emergency), oversleeping, family vacations or other recreational activities, missed bus, non-school-sponsored extracurricular events, and truancy.

Scheduled school vacations occur in December, February, and April. Vacations taken at times other than designated school vacations are considered unexcused absences. Parents/guardians are strongly advised not to take vacations during school days and/or conferences, as children miss important instruction, discussion, and activities that allow guided practice of new skills. Instructional time that is missed while a child is on vacation cannot be replaced. Requests for advance work from classroom teachers for vacations during school days will not be honored. Students are responsible for making up missed work upon their return to school. Timelines for the completion of missed work are determined by the teachers. Families of students in Grades 6, 7 and 8 are reminded to be aware of MCAS testing dates in the spring.

Parents/guardians are requested to schedule non-emergency appointments for physicians, dentists, or special lessons after school hours. In the event that an unexpected emergency or situation arises that will impact your child's attendance, please speak with the building principal.

Students absent due to an emergency medical appointment will be documented as excused as long as medical documentation has been provided for the appointment. If medical documentation is not received within three days of the absence, the missed day will be marked as unexcused.

For chronic absenteeism due to illness, parents/guardians may be asked for medical documentation to support the absences and may be asked to provide periodic, updated medical documentation if the absenteeism continues.

In accordance with M.G.L. c. 76, §18, the principal shall send a letter to the student and parent/guardian within five (5) days from a student's tenth (10th) consecutive unexcused absence to schedule an exit interview between the superintendent, or their designee, and the student and the parent/guardian. The exit interview shall be to discuss the reasons for the student's excessive absences, consideration of alternative educational programming, and/or to determine if the student should be withdrawn from school.

Tardiness

Excessive tardiness places a student at a great disadvantage and disrupts the learning environment. Any student who is in school and not present in their first period class by 8:25 a.m. will be marked tardy by the first period class teacher unless the student arrives with a pass. Any student entering the building after 8:25 a.m. must report directly to the main office. Any student who enters the building after 8:25 a.m. and does not sign in at the main office will receive an office detention. Excusable reasons for tardiness follow the same guidelines for excused absences. The consequences for repeated unexcused tardiness in a given semester may include:

- 1. Parent/guardian and student notification
- 2. Parent/guardian/student meeting
- 3. Creation of an attendance plan
- 4. Lunch detentions
- 5. Meetings with School Resource Officer

The amount of time students lose due to tardiness will be recorded. Students may accrue enough time lost to receive unexcused half or full day absences. Students who have accrued 6 or more unexcused tardies in a semester, or more than twelve for the year will result in detention for each additional day and may be placed on school probation (see <u>Student Discipline</u>).

For chronic tardiness due to illness, parents/guardians may be asked for medical documentation to support the tardiness and may be asked to provide periodic, updated medical documentation. Students absent or tardy due to an emergency medical appointment will be documented as excused as long as medical documentation has been provided. If medical documentation is not received, the tardy or day absent will be marked as unexcused.

Call to Parents/Guardians and Attendance Plan if Needed

Parents/Guardians will be contacted as soon as practical and in any event within three (3) days of the student's absence if a parent or guardian has not contacted the school regarding an absence. When a student begins to demonstrate a pattern of unexcused tardiness or absences in the school year, the parents/guardians will be contacted and a meeting will be scheduled with the Principal (or his/her designee), the parent(s)/guardian, and the student to develop an action plan to improve the student's attendance. In all circumstances, parents/guardians are encouraged to contact school staff and work collaboratively with them to remedy the causes of a student's absences.

Make-up Work for Excused Absences

- Students will be allowed to make up work after an excused absence.
- Students excused from class for extracurricular activities and field trips must get assignments from the teacher prior to the absence so that all work can be turned in on the date due.
- No credit will be given for work not turned in or made up within the time prescribed by the teacher.

- If a student is absent on the day of an exam or when a major paper or project is due, the student must be prepared to meet the obligation upon return to school.
- Students receiving an incomplete grade on the report card because of excused absences will be given until the midpoint of the next marking period to make up the work. Failure to do so will result in a failing grade for the assignments not completed.

Students who are suspended from school will be given the opportunity to make up work as needed to make academic progress, including making up homework, tests, quizzes, etc. that were due during the period of suspension. When a student is suspended for ten consecutive days or less, it is the student's responsibility to get the work from the teachers and it is the student's responsibility to do the work. The teacher will determine when the work is due, with a maximum of five school days allowed for the make-up. If the student is excluded from school for more than ten (10) consecutive days for any reason, the student will have an opportunity to receive education services in order to make academic progress through the school-wide education service plan and will be informed of this service at the time of the suspension.

Make-up Work for Unexcused Absences

- Students will be allowed to make up work after an unexcused absence.
- Teachers are under no obligation to provide students' work before an unexcused absence.
- It is at the teacher's individual discretion to determine a feasible plan for the missed instruction.
- No credit will be given for work not turned in or made up within the time prescribed by the teacher.
- If a student is absent on the day of an exam or when a major paper or project is due, the student must be prepared to meet the obligation upon return to school.

Dismissals

A student may be dismissed for reasons of illness, injury, or urgent medical appointments. Students intending to be dismissed must bring a note to the Main Office prior to their first period class. The note should be written and signed by a parent/guardian requesting early dismissal. The student will receive a dismissal slip to present to their teacher at the time of dismissal. Work missed should be made up as soon as possible and at a time convenient for both the student and teachers.

Parents/Guardians must come to the Main Office to escort their children from the school premises. In the case of dismissal due to illness or injury, parents/guardians must meet their children in the Health Office.

Students cannot be dismissed during the school day unless met by a parent, guardian, or other authorized adult. A student may not leave the building on their own.

Policy ACDA: Accommodation for Religious and Ethnic Observances Policy

The Winchester School District serves children from many different religious and ethnic backgrounds. Out of respect for our students' different religious and ethnic traditions, and to ensure fair and sensitive treatment of all students, the district shall:

- -Place responsibility for implementation of this policy on the school principal;
- -Distribute school calendars to teachers, staff, and families that include those major religious and ethnic holidays whose observance would require absence from school or other

accommodations;

- -Impose no penalty or detriment on students who participate in observances of their family's major religious and ethnic holidays;
- -Provide ample and flexible accommodations to allow students to make up subject material, assignments, and assessments within a reasonable time (assuming students will not do schoolwork or study during their absence);
- -Take major religious and ethnic holidays into consideration when scheduling test preparation, tests, and long-term assignments;
- -Avoid scheduling one-time events (field trips, athletic events, music or theater performances, auditions, group photographs, back-to-school functions, and graduation) when possible on major religious and ethnic holidays. Some major religious holidays begin at sundown on the preceding evening (for example, Jewish Holidays of Rosh Hashanah, Yom Kippur, and first day of Passover);
- -Not require students observing major religious or ethnic holidays to participate or face penalties for their non-participation in school-scheduled events, such as in try-outs, athletic contests, or music performances;
- -Not prevent coaches and advisors from holding optional athletic practices on major religious and ethnic holidays;
- -Not deprive any student absent from school because of a religious or ethnic holiday of any award or of eligibility or opportunity to compete for any award because of such absence.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

School Closure Information

Inclement Weather

The Superintendent of Schools determines when school will be canceled and will send "No School" notifications to families through <u>ParentSquare</u>. Every effort will be made to call "No School" announcements to the following television channels before 6:00 AM: WBZ (4); WCVB (5); WRKO (7); WFXT (FOX -25); WinCAM (37); and www.winchesterps.org.

Normally, the decision is not made until the early morning hours of the day in question. It is imperative that the school office has updated contact information for all students at all times.

Delayed Opening

Due to weather conditions, the school district may call a "Delayed Opening". Like the "No School" notification, a "Delayed Opening" announcement may be reported on the television stations listed above, made through ParentSquare and reflected on the District's website.

Please do not drop your child/children off more than 10 minutes before the stated delayed opening time. There is no adult supervision before this time. This is an important safety factor.

Emergency School Closing

Rarely, school is canceled during a day that school is in session. If school is canceled because of an emergency during the day (e.g., no heat in a building, impending severe storm, etc.), notifications will be shared through ParentSquare. Please be sure that the school has your most updated information and

the names of adults who have permission to take your child/children home should you be unavailable. Please also note that per standard dismissal procedures (such as when a child misses a bus), children will not be dismissed to the custody of other parents/guardians, neighborhood families, etc. unless school records indicate that it is permissible. These children will remain with school personnel until you or a designee arrives to pick them up.

Early Release Days

An early release day schedule for the year is distributed by the school and can also be found on the <u>2024-2025 School Year Calendar</u>. These afternoons are used for professional development and conferences with parents/guardians. Please check your school's early release day dismissal time. Lunch is not served these days.

Transportation

The WPS Transportation Department is dedicated to ensuring students' safe, efficient, and reliable transportation to and from school every day. Detailed information about our Transportation Department policies, fees, frequently asked questions, and procedures for registering for the bus online are available at winchesterps.org/transportation.

Registration for next-year bus transportation begins in May of each school year; students who register before the published deadline will receive their assigned bus stops and routes at least one week before the start of the next school year. Any registrations submitted after the published deadline will be placed on a waitlist and not assigned a bus until after the first week of school. Students in grade 6 who live two miles or more from their school are eligible for free bus transportation to the middle school. New students entering the district should contact the Transportation Department directly to help them register for the bus.

The Transportation Department can be contacted by emailing <u>transportation@winchesterps.org</u> or calling (781) 721-7039.

Policy JICC (also EEAEC): Student Conduct on School Buses

The School Committee and school staff share with students and parents the responsibility for student safety during transportation to and from school. The authority for enforcing School Committee requirements of student conduct on buses will rest with the Principal.

To ensure the safety of all students who ride in buses, it may occasionally be necessary to revoke the privilege of transportation from a student who abuses this privilege. Parents of children whose behavior and misconduct on school buses endangers the health, safety, and welfare of other riders will be notified that their children face the loss of transportation privileges in accordance with regulations approved by the School Committee.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy JICC-R (EEAEC-R): Student Conduct on School Buses Procedures for Drivers and Parents

In case of any misconduct on a bus, the incident will be reported on the proper form to the school

principal or assistant principal. They will report the incident in writing to the parent concerned, with a copy to the transportation office.

In case of a repetition by the same student, the principal or assistant principal will suspend the student's transportation privileges with written notice to the parent. Bus privileges may be denied permanently if a third incident occurs, following a conference with the Superintendent of Schools or designee. The responsibility for transportation will rest with the parent if the privilege is denied.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Bicycles

A student may ride a bicycle to and from school. A protective helmet must be worn while riding to and from school. Bicycles must be locked in the racks provided. At dismissal time, cyclists must wait until all school buses have vacated the parking lot and must walk alongside their bikes on the sidewalk to the street before riding their bikes. Students who violate these safety rules may be prohibited from riding bikes to and from school. Upon entering school grounds, cyclists should walk alongside their bike on the sidewalk and lock their bike in the bike rack.

Drop-off and Pick-up Safety Reminders

The streets around McCall are congested at drop off and pick up times. We ask that all individuals who drive students to or from school use extreme caution when driving on or near school premises. The side and rear parking lots are for buses and staff parking only. Parents/guardians should not drop off or pick up students in the side or rear parking lots.

It is recommended that parents/guardians refrain from dropping off their children directly in front of the school to avoid congestion. Drivers should always be alert for pedestrians, students on bikes, buses and other cars. Please be mindful of the safety concerns and use sidewalks and crosswalks appropriately.

Health Services

Two full-time registered nurses staff the Health Office and can be reached at 781-721-7026 ext. 1119 and ext. 1129.

Illness Guidelines

- Students who feel ill or who have sustained an injury during the school day should go to the health office.
- Except in an emergency, the student should obtain a pass from a teacher before going to the health office.
- When a student is too ill to remain in school, a parent/guardian will be notified. Parents/Guardians must come into the health office to dismiss a student.
- Only the school nurse may dismiss a student for illness or injury.
- If a student texts a parent/ guardian for dismissal and has not visited the health office, the dismissal will not be medically excused.
- Any student returning to school following a contagious disease, extended illness, concussion or hospitalization must provide a medical note to be readmitted to school by the school nurse.

Students who have particular medical circumstances such as life-threatening allergies, seizure
disorder, diabetes, etc., are required to have the necessary medical records on file and
parents/guardians are encouraged to meet with school nurses once school commences to review
medical information and develop care plans as needed.

The following conditions would be considered a reason for your student to <u>not</u> attend school:

- 1. Temperature of 100 degrees F or greater within the past 24 hours (must be fever-free without fever-reducing meds for 24 hours before returning to school)
- 2. A severe cold, congestion, and/or stuffy or runny nose,
- 3. Persistent cough
- 4. Sore throat or swollen glands accompanied by a fever
- 5. Earache
- 6. Vomiting or diarrhea occurring within the past 36 hours.
- Strep infections of any kind, untreated ringworm, conjunctivitis, or impetigo. These are all
 contagious infections and must be treated with medication for at least 24 hours before returning
 to school
- 8. Rash of unknown origin this may indicate many different things and should be checked by your pediatrician
- 9. Untreated lice infestation-child may return to school the following day after treatment.

New Students & Grade 7: Health Entry Requirement

 All immunizations must meet Massachusetts minimum requirements and must be certified in writing by a licensed healthcare provider. The Commonwealth's School Immunization Law, Chapter 76, requires the following:

All new students (transfer), as well as grade 7 students enrolling in McCall are required to have an up-to-date record of a physical examination (dated within the year of entry) and up-to-date immunization records per M.G.L. All required immunization records need to be submitted to nursing. Please contact nursing or see the <u>Health Services website</u> for questions.

- DTAP 5 doses (Diphtheria, Pertussis, Tetanus (usually given by the age of 5 years)
- Polio 4 doses
- Hepatitis B 3 doses
- MMR 2 doses (Measles, Mumps, Rubella must have been received after the age of 12 months)
- Varicella 2 doses (chicken pox vaccine) or a medical note of history of disease
- MenACWY- 1 dose entering Grade 7
- Tdap 1 dose entering grade 7 (must have been received within past 10 years)

Unless an exemption letter is otherwise provided by the Massachusetts General Laws, students who are not immunized may not attend school.

Medications

All medications are stored in their original containers and dispensed from the health office. Exceptions may be made for self-administration of medications if certain conditions are met; such as, it is not a psychotropic drug; the school nurse agrees it is safe for the student to do so; and written authorization by the parent/caregiver and M.D. is on file. Self-administration of prescribed emergency medications such as an inhaler or Epi-pen is permissible on a case-by-case basis, upon review by the school nurse.

Medications dispensed by the school nurse must be brought into the clinic by the parent/caregiver and be accompanied with proper documentation. This paperwork includes a signed M.D. order and signed permission from the parent/caregiver for prescription medications to be administered during the school day.

All students with life threatening allergies are required to keep a dose of their epipen in the health office. Any student who requires other rescue medications such as, inhalers, insulin or seizure medication should meet with the school nurse, develop a health care plan and keep a dose of the rescue medication in the health office

With parent/caregiver permission, students may receive Acetaminophen (Tylenol) and Ibuprofen (Motrin), which are stocked in the Health Office. Medications and paperwork will be in effect for the school year and must be picked up in June or they are discarded. This procedure must be followed annually, grades 6-8.

Annual Health Update

An annual health update request for each student is sent home by the school nurse at the beginning of each school year.

Parents are encouraged to create an account in the SNAP Parent Health Portal. This is where they can give electronic permission to receive over the counter medications in the health office.

NEW SNAP Parent Health Portal: Set up you students Snap Health Portal

- All health forms (Updated Physicals, Immunizations, etc.) need to be uploaded to the SNAP parent portal
- Permission to administer Over the Counter Medication is in the SNAP Parent portal.
- Majority of emails from the Health Office are being sent via Snap
- Please complete this section in the portal.
 - Check your email prior to the start of school for: PSNI/SNAP with a no reply address @studentehr.com
 - Check your spam folder
 - Use a PC not a phone

Link to sign up: <u>Snap Parent Portal Info Guide.pdf</u>
Helping Parents with Health Portal Login Issues

Medical Exemptions from Physical Education

• If a student is unable to participate in the Physical Education program due to injury or illness, a

health care provider's note is required. This is passed in to the school nurse, and the nurse will notify the Physical Education department of the physician's orders. Keep in mind that dates for the absences for physical education should be clearly documented by the student's health care provider.

- Any student returning to school with a cast, crutches, braces, etc., must be readmitted to school
 by the school nurse. Students, with a doctor's note or a parent/guardian note stating that they
 cannot use the stairs because of an accident, injury, etc., may obtain an elevator pass at the
 McCall Health Office.
- Students who are injured during school hours must report to the school nurse and file an
 accident report if necessary. If an injury occurs during an after school activity, it should be
 reported immediately to the advisor, trainer or coach.

Life Threatening Allergies

It is the policy of the Winchester School Committee (WSC) to ensure access to a free and appropriate education for all students within the Town of Winchester. In order to insure full access for all students, the WSC will insure access to Preschool — Grade 12 education for students who present with life threatening allergies (LTAs).

The Winchester Public Schools cannot guarantee to provide an allergen-free environment for all students with LTAs, or prevent any harm to students in emergencies. The goal is to work towards minimizing the risk of exposure to food allergens that pose a threat to those students, educate the community, maintain and regularly update a system-wide protocol for responding to their needs. A system-wide effort requires the cooperation of all parties within the system. The goal of the Winchester Public Schools is to engage in a system-wide effort to:

- -Prevent any occurrence of LTA reactions
- -Prepare for any allergic reactions
- -Respond appropriately to any allergy emergencies
- -Conduct education and training to staff in the District

In accordance with the following procedures and protocols, an Emergency Allergy Action Plan (EAAP) and an Individual Health Care Plan (IHCP) will be developed for each student after receipt of written notification from the student's parent / guardian of a physician-diagnosed LTA. Additionally, the school physician has written the standing orders for treatment by the school nurse for individuals with unknown LTAs.

Additional information on Life Threatening Allergies may be found on the <u>Health Services website</u>.

Academic Program

Consistent with Massachusetts regulations, 603 CMR 26.05(1), the Winchester Public Schools, through

its curricula and materials, encourages respect for the human and civil rights of all individuals, regardless of race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin or sexual orientation. In accordance with district guidelines, families may request information from the building principal on available accommodations related to curriculum content.

Homework

Homework is an important component of being a successful student at McCall Middle School. Students should expect to receive daily homework assignments in their core classes. Homework is meant to foster student initiative, enrich classroom experiences, reinforce concepts, enhance learning skills, promote personal responsibility, and inspire students to work together with their teachers to become the very best students they can be.

During the school year, students will be given a broad variety of daily, short-term, and long-term assignments. Homework assignments will vary from week to week. The time needed to complete assignments will vary from student to student. Plan to allow a block of time each day in order to complete assigned work. At the start of the school year, set up a distraction-free study environment. We believe that the student, teachers, and parents/guardians must support each other in making sure that assignments are understood, that lines of communication remain open, and that adequate time is allowed each day to complete homework assignments.

McCall Middle School teachers use a grade-leveled team approach. Teachers work together and communicate regularly to plan the academic calendar to avoid excessive overlap of tests, quizzes, and long-range projects. It is recommended that students allow the following amount of time to complete daily homework assignments:

- 6th Grade 1 to 1 1/2 hours
- 7th Grade 1 1/2 to 2 hours
- 8th Grade 2 to 2 1/2 hours

If a student frequently spends more than this amount of time completing homework assignments, they are encouraged to speak with teachers or talk with their guidance counselor. Additional support may be needed. Parents and caregivers are encouraged to contact the teacher or guidance counselor if their student continues to struggle with homework completion after the student had sought out support from their teacher or guidance counselor

Students agree to:

- Come to school each day with completed homework assignments.
- Work with parents/guardians to set up a focused, quiet, and distraction-free location to do homework.
- Do their own work.
- Complete homework that is neat, timely, and accurate.
- Follow teacher guidelines that are given. If they aren't clear, please ask for clarification.
- Use classroom support tools such as Aspen, teacher and team websites, and weekly online calendars to assist in staying in step with current assignments, deadlines, and announcements.
- Make individual arrangements with teachers to complete all required tests and homework in a timely manner.
- Understand that homework is an important component in being a successful McCall Middle

School student.

Parents/Guardians agree to:

- Be knowledgeable of what's being asked of their child and assist them by providing necessary school supplies and providing a quiet, distraction-free study area.
- Encourage their child to do their own work. Do not do the work for them.
- Check Aspen periodically for information regarding their child's progress.
- Use the tools available at McCall to help their child succeed: subscribe to the school newsletter, record teachers' email addresses, attend parent/guardian/teacher conferences, and refer to the team/teacher websites regularly.
- Maintain an open line of communication with their child's teacher.
- Contact the teacher or the guidance counselor if their child has a frequent need for additional support in meeting homework requirements.
- Notify the school if their child must be absent so that missed homework can be provided; please see Attendance in this handbook.

Teachers agree to:

- Give homework assignments that will not exceed the recommended grade-level range of time needed to complete the work.
- Provide classroom homework guidelines to parents/guardians and students at the start of the school year along with contact information and curriculum support materials.
- Assign homework that is meaningful, enriching, and related to the classroom curriculum.
- Provide a balance between short-term and long-range assignments.
- Provide written instruction for long-term and complex assignments.
- Not assign homework during vacation periods or over legal holidays.
- Not assign homework that interferes with the observance of district approved religious holidays.
- Give clear directions/instructions for homework assignments and allow students time for questions and/or clarification of assignments.
- Encourage a student buddy system for homework support.
- Work with students to complete missed required homework/tests due to absence, illness, or scheduling conflicts.
- Maintain communication with parents/guardians throughout the school year (via Aspen, team
 website, school newsletter, email, phone) to inform them of student progress, upcoming events,
 performance tracking, etc.
- Offer organizational assistance to students as needed to enhance study skills, test preparation, and project completion skills.
- Not give assignments over weekends that are longer than one daily assignment.

Policy IKB: Homework

The term "homework" refers to an assignment to be prepared during a period of supervised study in class or outside of class.

The purposes of homework are to improve the learning processes, to aid in the mastery of skills, and to create and stimulate interest on the part of the student.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Group Projects

Students can benefit from the collaborative aspect of group projects. It is understood that the collaborative part of a required group project must take place during the school day. If a teacher feels that a component of the collaboration should take place outside of school, the teacher must notify parents/guardians prior to the start of the group project. Parents/guardians may request that their child work individually rather than in a group.

Grading System

A report card will be provided for students and their parents/guardians at the end of each quarter and trimester through Aspen.

Letter grades are as follows:

- A (90-100)
- B (80-89)
- C (70-79)
- D (60-69)
- F (below 60)
- INC (Incomplete)
- P (Pass)
- M

A "+" mark indicates the upper end of the numerical equivalent (for example, B+=87-89, inclusive). A "-" mark indicates the lower end of the numerical equivalent (for example, B-=80-82, inclusive). Effort and behavior evaluations are as follows:

- None Normal Development
- 1 Attitude/behavior needs improvement
- 2 Attitude/behavior unsatisfactory
- 3 Effort needs improvement
- 4 Effort unsatisfactory

McCall Middle School will continue to pilot a Standard Based Reporting system for all 6th grade courses during the 25-26 school year. A number of essential learning standards for each of the 6th grade courses and two Social Emotional Learning Standards will be identified in the student report cards, and students' progress toward those standards will be assessed using the following performance levels:

- Meeting
- Progressing
- Not There Yet
- Not Assessed
- Incomplete
- Excused

6th grade Exploratory and all 7th and 8th grade courses will be graded using the aforementioned letter based grading system.

Final Exams

Students at McCall may need to take final exams or participate in a culminating project. These exams and projects are designed to help prepare for such exams and projects in the future and to demonstrate how well the curriculum has been mastered. Exams and projects may be given in any area.

Self-Directed Study Hall

All self-directed study halls are conducted in a quiet atmosphere so that students have the assurance of being able to concentrate. Students are expected to have all study materials with them, arrive on time, and begin work immediately. Students who do not have any assignments to complete must make sure they bring some school-appropriate reading material with them.

Academic Dishonesty

Academic dishonesty includes but is not limited to cheating, plagiarism, or providing academic assistance to others inappropriately.

Cheating: The dishonest violation of rules, or giving or receiving unauthorized information in academic, extracurricular, or other school work, so as to give an unfair advantage.

Examples of cheating include but are not limited to:

- Copying or allowing others to copy information from someone else's work, test paper, homework, electronic information, etc.
- Using unauthorized materials and methods, including the use of study aids, cheat sheets, notes, books, formulas, or information in calculators/computers, cell phones, or other sources.
- Unauthorized prior knowledge of examinations, including sharing or receiving test information from students taking the same class.
- Submitting the same work to more than one teacher for class credit without prior approval.

Plagiarism: Copying the language, structure, idea, and or thought of another person and representing it as one's own original work or using information obtained from printed or electronic sources that is not appropriately cited. The format of the citation will be determined by the teacher.

Examples of plagiarism include but are not limited to:

- Submitting information (images, videos, or ideas from print, speech or Internet source of any kind) into an assignment without proper citation. The format of the citation will be determined by the teacher.
- The unauthorized use of translation services or devices.

Incidents of academic dishonesty will be addressed in a progressive manner, taking into account the nature of the offense and whether it is a repeated behavior. The school is committed to responding with consequences that are educational, restorative, and aligned with the student's developmental level. Consequences will be progressive and assigned in accordance to the age and understanding of the

student, as well as the nature of the offense and whether the behavior is a repeated offense. Those consequences include but not limited to:

- Conference with teacher to discuss the incident and expectations.
- Receive reduced credit or the minimum grade for the assignment.
- Redo the assignment with proper citations and original work (credit subject to teacher discretion).
- Take restorative action, such as writing a reflection about why plagiarism is harmful to their learning and to the academic community.
- Serve detentions or other school-based disciplinary action including suspensions.

Students will be notified for all potential academic dishonesty violations. For violations that are severe and/or repeated, the director, supporting staff members, and school administrator will be notified. Parents and caregivers will also be notified by the teacher and/or a school administrator for all severe and/or repeated violations.

Promotion and Retention of Students

The School Committee is dedicated to the best total and continuous development of each student enrolled. The professional staff is expected to place students at the grade level best suited to them academically, socially, and emotionally.

In evaluating student achievement, each teacher will make use of all available information, including results of teacher-made tests and other measures of skill and content mastery, standardized test results, and teacher observation of student performance. The Principal will direct and aid teachers in their evaluations and review grade assignments in order to ensure uniformity of evaluation standards.

Students will normally progress annually from grade to grade. Exceptions may be made when, in the judgment of the professional staff, such exceptions are in the best educational interest of the students involved. Exceptions will only be made after prior notification and explanation to each student's parents/guardians, but the final decision will rest with the building Principal.

SOURCE: MASC

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Extra Help

Extra help is available and students are encouraged to take advantage of it. Teachers will inform students when they are available; it may be before or after school. Teachers may offer academic support when they recognize that a student is in need of assistance. Sometimes the student will have to take the initiative and let the teacher know help is needed.

Parent/Guardian Conferences

Parents/Guardians will have an opportunity to meet with their child's teachers during the January conferences. These conferences are scheduled during four early-release days in January. In addition,

parents are encouraged to contact the teacher, the team leader, or guidance counselor to set up a meeting at any time during the school year if they have questions or concerns about their students' progress.

Policy JRA: Student Records

In order to provide students with appropriate instruction and educational services, it is necessary for the school system to maintain extensive and sometimes personal information about them and their families. It is essential that pertinent information in these records be readily available to appropriate school personnel, be accessible to the student's parents or legal guardian and/or the student in accordance with law, and yet be guarded as confidential information.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Access to Student Records by Non-Custodial Parents

Since 1998, Massachusetts law (General Laws, Chapter 71, Section 34H) specifies detailed procedures that govern access to student records by parents who do not have physical custody of their children. For more information, please contact the school principal.

Special Education

Winchester Public Schools (WPS) is committed to supporting inclusive practices and the needs of all of our students within the least restrictive environment (LRE). We provide a full continuum of in-district services spanning full-inclusion, partial-inclusion, and substantially-separate programming. All special education services are determined by the student's IEP team depending on their individual needs.

Child Find is a federal program mandated by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) that requires public school districts to locate, identify, and evaluate all children with disabilities who may need special education services. A student may be referred for an evaluation when there is suspicion of a disability and in-classroom/school-based supports are insufficient for them to access the general education curriculum.

If you suspect that your child may require special education services due to a disability, we recommend that you begin by reaching out to the special education supervisor in your building who will coordinate a pre-referral meeting to focus specifically on your concerns. At this meeting, the special education supervisor will also share information on the special education referral process and your rights as a parent.

After a comprehensive battery of assessments, special education, and service staff meet with the child's parents/caregivers to discuss the results and other information provided by parents and teachers as part of the referral process. Once the evaluation is complete, parents are invited to an evaluation team meeting is called where team members review the evaluation results, collaborate/elicit feedback and consider the following questions to determine if the child is eligible for special education services:

- Does the student have one or more disabilities?
- Is the student making effective progress in the general education program?
- Is the lack of progress a result of the student's disability
- Does the student require special education and/or related services to make effective progress or

to access the general education curriculum?

If a disability is identified through the evaluation process and the student is deemed eligible for special education services, an Individualized Education Program (IEP) is developed. This plan is a collaborative effort involving the parents/caregivers, educators, and other appropriate staff to ensure the best possible support for the student.

For more information please visit the **Special Education website**.

Section 504 of The Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 is a Civil Rights Act, which prohibits discrimination against qualified persons with a disability in any program receiving Federal financial assistance. Section 504 defines a "disabled" person as anyone who: "Has a mental or physical impairment, which substantially limits one or more major life activities such as caring for one's self, performing manual tasks, walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning and working, or the person has a record of such impairment or is regarded as having such impairment by others."

Notification of Non-Discrimination Policy

The Winchester Public Schools prohibits discrimination on the basis of a disability and will not exclude such persons from participation in, deny to such persons the benefits of, or otherwise subject such persons to discrimination under, any program which receives Federal financial assistance (43 C.F.R. § 104.4). Winchester Public Schools has the responsibility to identify and evaluate a child, to afford eligible children equal access and opportunity to receive all appropriate educational services.

What to do if you disagree with the school's determinations

If the parent or legal guardian disagrees with Section 504 Team determinations or related actions by the Winchester Public School professional staff, he/she has a right to a meeting to reconsider these determinations/actions by a school Administrator. Please send a letter stating your reason for the meeting within 30 days of receipt of the Section 504 Team's decision. Send request to:

Director of Social Emotional Learning & Counseling/504 District Coordinator
Ms. Erin Kuehn
Central Office
80 Skillings Road
Winchester, MA 01890
ekuehn@winchesterps.org

You are also entitled to pursue a remedy through the United States Department of Education (USDOE) located at the Office for Civil Rights, New England Office:

U.S. Department of Education

33 Arch Street, Suite 900, Boston, MA 02110-1491

Telephone: 617-289-0111, TDD: 877-521-2172 Email: OCR Boston @ed.gov

http://www.ed.gov/ocr/complaintprocess.html

Parent/Guardian and Student Rights under Section 504

- 1. To take part in and receive benefits from public education programs without discrimination due to handicapping conditions.
- 2. To have equal opportunity to participate in non-academic and extracurricular activities offered by the district.
- 3. To receive education in facilities comparable to those provided with non-handicapped students.
- 4. To be advised of your rights under federal law.
- 5. To receive notice with respect to a specific change in the placement of your child.
- 6. To receive all information in your native language and primary mode of communication.
- 7. To have evaluation, educational, and placement decisions made based upon a variety of information sources, and by persons who know the student, the evaluative data used and placement options.
- 8. To examine records related to identification, evaluation, educational program and placement.
- 9. To obtain copies of educational records at a reasonable cost.
- 10. To a response from the school system for reasonable requests for explanations and interpretations of your child's records.
- 11. To request an amendment of your child's records if there is reasonable cause to believe they are inaccurate or in violation of the child's privacy rights. If the school denies this request, you will be notified within a reasonable time and advised of your right to a hearing.
- 12. To have transportation provided to and from alternative placement settings at no greater cost to you than would be incurred if your child were placed in a program operated by the district.
- 13. To file a grievance with the school district over an alleged violation of Section 504 regulations.
- 14. To request an impartial hearing related to decisions or actions regarding your child's identification, evaluation, educational program, or placement.
- 15. You and your child may participate in the hearing and have an attorney represent you. You have a right to ask for payment of reasonable attorney fees if you are successful in your claim.

WPS 504 Grievance Procedure

If you believe that your child has been subjected to discrimination on the basis of disability, you may file a grievance under this procedure.

Procedure:

- Grievances must be submitted to the Section District 504 Coordinator within 10 days of the date you become aware of the alleged discriminatory action.
- A complaint must be in writing, containing your name and address. The complaint must state the problem or action alleged to be discriminatory and the remedy or relief sought.
- The Section District 504 Coordinator (or their designee) shall conduct an investigation of the
 complaint. This investigation may be informal, but it must be thorough, affording all interested
 persons an opportunity to submit evidence relevant to the complaint. The Section 504
 Coordinator will maintain the files and records of Winchester Public Schools relating to such
 grievances.
- The Section District 504 Coordinator will issue a written decision on the grievance no later than 30 days after its filing.
- You may appeal the decision of the Section District 504 Coordinator by writing to the Superintendent within 15 days of receiving the Section District 504 Coordinator's decision. The Superintendent shall issue a written decision in response to the appeal no later than 30 days after its filing.

• The availability and use of this grievance procedure does not prevent you from filing a complaint of discrimination on the basis of disability with the U. S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights.

Contact Information

Director of Social Emotional Learning & Counseling/504 District Coordinator
Ms. Erin Kuehn
Central Office
80 Skillings Road
Winchester, MA 01890
ekuehn@winchesterps.org

Extracurricular Activities

Activities, Clubs and Intramurals

Clubs and activities meet after school during the year. An updated list of 2025-2026 opportunities will be made available by the beginning of October on the McCall website.

Students interested in setting up a club in a particular field of interest should contact the advisor of the Student Council. Students must be in school during the day to participate in any extracurricular activities after school or in the evening.

The running of intramurals and clubs offered will be dependent upon available funds and level of participation.

Field Trips

Students at McCall will have the opportunity to take part in a number of field trips subject to parent/guardian permission and school approval.

All out-of-state field trips require School Committee approval. Each student participating in these trips must pay their own way. Financial assistance will be made available to parents/guardians as needed. If a student intends to participate in a field trip that will result in missed class time, they are responsible for completing all missed work from their teachers and complete those assignments on the due date determined by the teachers. Assignments not completed on or before the due date may result in no credit or a grade of zero. All McCall rules contained in this handbook must be adhered to when students attend field trips.

Dance/Activity Nights

Activities are planned by students under the guidance of the Student Council and are held on Friday evenings with faculty supervision. Students are expected to stay the full time unless they are picked up by a parent/ guardian who must enter the school and speak to an activity supervisor. Parents/Guardians should pick up their child promptly at the conclusion of the event. Dance/Activity Nights are for McCall students and for middle school students who live in Winchester but attend school outside of Winchester. Students who do not attend McCall but wish to attend a McCall Middle School function must have their parent/guardian contact McCall Middle School administration. Students must be in school during the day to attend a Dance/Activity Night.

Policy JICA: Student Dress Code

The responsibility for the dress and appearance of the students will rest with individual students and parents.

They have the right to determine how the student will dress providing that attire is not destructive to school property, complies with requirements for health and safety, and does not cause disorder or disruption. The administration is authorized to take action in instances where individual dress does not meet the stated requirements.

This does not mean that student, faculty, or parent groups may not recommend appropriate dress for school or special occasions. It means that students will not be prevented from attending school or a school function, or otherwise be discriminated against, so long as their dress and appearance meet the requirements set forth above.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy JJIC: Inclusive Sports and Extracurricular activity Participation Policy

Administrators, school staff, volunteers, students and others who interact with students (WPS community members) must be respectful of the ways in which individual people ask to be identified and, in general, employ the terms that WPS community members use to describe themselves. This policy extends to interscholastic athletic and extracurricular participation because they are valuable to students' physical, intellectual, social, and/or character development. Guided by our value of inclusion and in compliance with all applicable laws, our policy ensures that students can participate in athletics and extracurricular activities in a manner consistent with their gender identity.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Student Discipline

As required by Massachusetts law, General Laws Chapter 71, Sections 37, 37H, and 37H ½, Winchester Public Schools has adopted a comprehensive policy regarding student discipline, including procedures and provisions regarding discipline of students on an IEP or a 504 plan and including hazing.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Expectations

The conduct expectations outlined below exist to ensure that the McCall philosophy and goals are met in an environment in which all students and staff feel safe and respected. The McCall community hopes to achieve this through clearly defined standards and consequences with fairness and consistency.

The principles at the foundation of our rules and procedures include: accountability, dignity, integrity, fairness, honesty, justice, respect, and responsibility.

It is important for students to realize that no handbook can thoroughly cover all possible violations or

infractions, however complete it attempts to be. There will be occasions when discretion and judgment must be exercised by teachers and administrators in maintaining an orderly environment. Below is a non-exclusive list of behaviors and actions that are unacceptable at McCall Middle School. The following are merely examples of conduct that are prohibited:

- Forgery of a staff or parent's/guardian's signature on passes, notes, warnings, etc.
- Cutting class or leaving school without permission.
- Cheating and plagiarizing.
- Committing assaults or battery, fighting, or engaging in violent behaviors.
- Damaging school property (e.g, vandalizing and drawing and writing graffiti).
- Using profane, vulgar or abusive language (e.g., using racial and anti-LGBTQIA+ slurs), or exhibiting such gestures and behaviors.
- Engaging in behaviors that discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, or gender identity, religion, national origin, ethnicity, disability, sexual orientation.
- Harassment, bullying, or retaliation. For specific information, see the <u>Anti-Bullying Policy</u> and <u>Policy on Harassment</u>.
- Making threats verbal, written, or electronic.
- Hazing.
- Being truant.
- Failing to follow bus rules.
- Engaging in any act that creates a hazardous or physically offensive condition which materially and substantially disrupts the educational process or the orderly operation of the school. Such acts include, but are not limited to, activating fire alarms without cause, releasing or using noxious substances (such as stink bombs), throwing objects that may cause harm or injury, and applying or sharing food or other substances (e.g., perfumes and colognes) known to trigger allergic reactions in others.

Illegal Activities

- Distributing, using or possessing of alcohol, drugs, drug paraphernalia, tobacco or tobacco related products, or other controlled substances
- Distributing, using or possessing weapons, fireworks, or other dangerous instruments or contraband
- Distributing, using or possessing obscene materials
- Theft
- Gambling

Disciplinary Actions

Progressive discipline will be used by all schools in the Winchester Public Schools system to the extent possible. Progressive discipline is a system in which the penalties increase upon repeated occurrences. The consequence for a particular infraction will depend on a variety of factors that include the severity and nature of the infraction and previous discipline history of the student. For example, a student's second and subsequent violations may merit a more severe penalty than the first violation. It is also the school's policy to consider all relevant factors when determining an appropriate consequence. The above consequences may be imposed either alone or in combination.

Efforts will be made to incorporate a restorative component to provide opportunity for students to repair damage or hurt created by their actions when infractions occur. The end goal is to have the students recognize the impact of their actions and learn from their mistakes so that infractions are not repeated. In addition to the restorative component, additional consequences may be imposed.

Examples of disciplinary actions include but are not limited to:

- Communication with parent/guardian
- Self-Reflection Exercise
- Repair Conversation
- Detention (before, after school, lunch)
- Community Service Examples include: after school building or grounds, clean-up, assistance in the main office, work with other community agencies.
- Change in schedule
- Suspension from school bus transportation
- School Probation Limiting student participation in school activities, typically lasting 2 or more weeks. School probation may be assigned by the principal or assistant principals.
- In school suspension A student may be suspended from one or more classes at the discretion of the assistant principal or the principal. During the period of the suspension the student will remain in the office
- Out of school suspension Suspension from school is considered a very serious matter at McCall Middle School. When a student is suspended, they will be placed on school probation for a minimum of two weeks. Students suspended more than once for violation of other students' civil rights, etc. may be placed on school probation for the remainder of the school year. Students may be suspended for these types of offenses at the discretion of the assistant principal or the principal, subject to applicable procedural requirements as described below, which may include appeal to the Superintendent. Except in the case of the "Statutory Offenses" as described in M.G.L. ch. 71, §37H and 37H1/2 and set forth below, students may not be suspended more than 90 days in a school year, and school staff will avoid suspensions of more than 10 days until alternatives such as positive behavioral interventions and supports have been tried as appropriate. Alternatives may include the use of evidence-based strategies and programs such as mediation, conflict resolution, restorative justice, and positive behavioral interventions and supports.

It is also the school's policy to consider all relevant factors when determining an appropriate consequence. The above consequences may be imposed either alone or in combination.

Teacher Detention

Teachers may assign students detention at a time, duration (not to exceed one hour), and location determined by the individual teacher. Students who fail to report to a teacher-assigned detention will be referred to the designated Assistant Principal that supports the grade of the student.

Office Detention

- Office detention is held after school from 3:10-4:10 p.m. (or by agreement with the Assistant Principal).
- Students must arrive on time to detention.
- Students will be expected to remain quiet for the duration of the detention.
- If a student is asked to leave detention for inappropriate behavior, two additional mandatory

- detentions will be assigned.
- A student who is absent from school on the assigned day of detention, will be expected to fulfill their detention obligation upon return to school. Failure to attend a mandatory detention may result in additional detentions or a suspension.

Discrimination Prohibited

In no circumstances will the McCall disciplinary system discriminate based on a student's race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, pregnancy or pregnancy-related condition, or disability. If you believe such discrimination has taken place, you should notify an administrator using the same sequence of contact as outlined in the appeals process listed above.

Investigations and Confidentiality

It is important that all students, staff members, and volunteers at McCall feel safe and respected. Please report known or suspected violations of school rules and policies to a guidance counselor, teacher, assistant principal or principal, school nurse, or other staff member. In all cases, and particularly when charges are made that someone has been bullied, harassed, threatened, assaulted, or had their civil rights violated, charges are taken seriously and are thoroughly investigated and addressed.

Ongoing investigations are to be kept confidential to the extent possible given the district's obligations to investigate and effectively address the allegations. We ask that students, staff, and parents/guardians not discuss or spread information about pending investigations.

It is equally important that students who are considering making a false accusation against someone understand that intentional false reporting is a violation of school rules and will lead to disciplinary actions against the student making the false report.

Designation of Civil Rights Administrators

The Principal of each school in the Winchester district will designate at least one employee whose responsibility it will be to respond to matters of civil rights that arise in the school setting. The designee shall be given a title and prominently identified as available to receive reports and complaints of civil rights violations from students, faculty, or staff. The designee will receive specialized civil rights training and take responsibility for upholding school civil rights and safety policies. The designee will also serve as a liaison with law enforcement agencies, and Assistant Principal and Superintendent in making referrals of possible criminal matters to law enforcement.

Reporting Conduct to the Police (Memorandum of Understanding)

As reflected throughout this handbook, the police will be notified in cases when conduct relating to school may reasonably lead to criminal charges. The Winchester Public Schools, the Winchester Police Department, and the Middlesex County District Attorney's Office agree to coordinate their response to violent, delinquent, or criminal acts by students and to alcohol and other drug abuse, which occur on school premises or at school-related events. In particular, in compliance with the Memorandum of Understanding between the Winchester Police Department and Winchester Public Schools, all assaults (which mean to threaten) and battery (which mean to unlawfully touch) that occur on school premises and during school-sponsored activities will be immediately reported to the police department. Incidents including, but not limited to, the following will be reported to the police:

- Acts of bullying or retaliation relating to bullying in accordance with the provisions of 603 CMR 49 00.
- Student possession of weapons and illegal substances on school premises and during school-

- sponsored activities; There will also be immediate reporting to the police department for incidents in which students are in possession of weapons and illegal substances on school premises and during school- sponsored activities. In addition,
- Serious civil rights violations or possible hate crimes will be reported to the police. Further, acts of bullying or retaliation relating to bullying will be reported to the police in accordance with the provisions of 603 CMR 49.00.

The full Memorandum of Understanding with the Winchester Police Department is available in the principal's office.

Policy ECAC: Vandalism

The School Committee recognizes that acts of vandalism committed against public and private property are costly and require positive action through educational programs. Consequently, the Committee will support various programs aimed at reducing the amount of vandalism.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policies JICG & JICH

In accordance with School Committee policies JICG and JICH, smoking is prohibited in all schools on school grounds, and at all school-sponsored activities whether held on or off school property.

The full JICG & JICH policies may be viewed through the Appendix.

Hazing

In compliance with Chapter 269 of the General Laws of the State of Massachusetts, the School Committee prohibits any acts of hazing in connection with initiation into any student organization whether such acts are committed on school grounds or elsewhere. Upon receipt of a hazing report, the following process will be carried out, with referral to the police where appropriate.

Process:

- 1. Inform the Administration of the incident
- 2. Investigation and due process hearing
- 3. Administrative action (see guidelines for penalties)

Potential Penalties:

1. Out of school suspension of up to 10 days and/or removal from activity for the remainder of the year

for minor infractions as determined by the administration.

2. Longer out of school suspension of up to 90 days in a school year for serious infractions as determined by the administration.

Policy JICFA: Prohibition of Hazing

In accordance with Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 536 of the Acts of 1985, the School Committee hereby deems that no student, employee or school organization under the control of the

School Committee shall engage in the activity of hazing a student while on or off school property, or at a school sponsored event regardless of the location. No organization that uses the facilities or grounds under the control of the School Committee shall engage in the activity of hazing any person while on school property.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy JICFA-E: Hazing

CH. 269, S.17. Crime of Hazing, Definition, Penalty

Whoever is a principal organizer or participant in the crime of hazing as defined herein shall be punished by a fine of not more than three thousand dollars or by imprisonment in a house of correction for not more than one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

CH. 269, S.18. Duty to Report Hazing

Whoever knows that another person is the victim of hazing as defined in section seventeen and is at the scene of such crime shall, to the extent that such person can do so without danger or peril to themself or others, report such crime to an appropriate law enforcement official as soon as reasonably practicable. Whoever fails to report such crime shall be punished by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars.

CH. 269, S.19. Hazing Statues to be Provided; Statement of Compliance and Discipline Policy Required

Each secondary school and each public and private school or college shall issue to every group or organization under its authority or operating on or in conjunction with its campus or school, and to every member, plebe, pledge or applicant for membership in such group or organization, a copy of this section and sections seventeen and eighteen. An officer of each such group or organization, and each individual receiving a copy of said sections seventeen and eighteen shall sign an acknowledgment stating that such group, organization or individual has received a copy of said sections seventeen and eighteen.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

School Safety

The safety and security of our students, faculty/staff, and visitors are of the utmost importance to the Winchester Public Schools (WPS). The WPS continuously reviews our policies and procedures to ensure that recent research and data support the policies we have in place.

The WPS **Incident Management Team** (IMT) comprises faculty/staff members from each school in Winchester and members from the Winchester Police and Fire Departments. Likewise, each school has an IMT filled by administration, faculty, and staff members. The WPS has implemented the Standard Response Protocol (SRP) as developed by the "I Love U Guys" foundation. The SRP is action-based, flexible, and easy to learn and provides rationally organized tactics for response to weather events, fires, accidents, intruders, and other threats to personal safety. The SRP has been incorporated into district training through our IMT and shared with our Winchester Police and Fire teams.

All Winchester Public Schools practice various safety drills and procedures throughout the school

year. First, faculty are trained yearly about these procedures without students in the building and during after-school hours. Then, based on what is developmentally appropriate, we involve students in practice. Additionally, during the first few weeks of school, elementary-level students participate in safety discussions with school leadership and their teachers. We use a common "Safe at School" slide set and visit school rally points. Students at the secondary level review emergency procedures and are made aware of their rally points.

Additional information regarding procedures, drills, and parent / guardian's role in an emergency are located on the district website: www.winchesterps.org/safety

School Resource Officer

McCall shares the services of the School Resource Officer with the elementary schools. This police officer, dedicated to working with the schools, works with McCall on safety and related issues.

Gun Free Policy

In accordance with the Gun Free Schools Act of 1994, any student who is determined to have brought a firearm to school or to a school-related event will be excluded from Winchester Public Schools for a period of not less than one year except as determined by the Superintendent on a case by case basis. The definition of a firearm includes but is not limited to guns (including a starter gun, bombs, grenades, rockets, missiles, mines, and similar devices). 20 U.S.C. §8921. For additional information on potential consequences for possession of not only a firearm, but also other dangerous weapons at school or school related events, see Mass.Gen.Laws. c. 71 §37H at pages 36-38.

Policy ECAF: Security Cameras in Schools

The School Committee works to maintain a safe and secure environment for its students, staff, visitors, and facilities. Security means more than having locks and making certain that doors are locked at the proper times. Security also means minimizing fire hazards, reducing the possibility of faulty equipment, keeping records and valuables in a safe place, protection against vandalism and burglary, the prosecution of vandals, and developing crisis plans.

The full policy may be viewed through the **Appendix**.

Volunteers

It is the policy of the School Committee to encourage volunteer efforts in the schools.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

CORI checks

M.G.L. c. 71, § 38R requires all schools in Massachusetts to conduct criminal background checks on current and prospective employees and volunteers, including those who regularly provide school-related transportation to students and those who may have direct and unmonitored contact with children. The CORI law requires a school or district to notify all persons for whom a CORI is requested that such information is being or may be obtained. Prospective employees and volunteers are required to complete and sign a CORI Request Form, which is available through the administrative assistant at each of our six elementary schools. The Request Form is used to document that we have

provided you with notice that a CORI is being conducted and to verify your identity through a government-issued form of photographic identification (usually a driver's license).

Winchester Parent Organizations

Each school has a parent association, which supports building-based enrichment programs. In addition, the Parent Inter-School Council (PISC) includes the parent association presidents from each school. PISC meets regularly to collaborate in an effort to support students across Winchester. Visit this website to learn more about the McCall Parent Association.

Winchester Special Education Parent Advisory Committee

This is a town-wide committee to advise the School Committee and school department in the area of Special Education and to facilitate communication within the community about Special Education. It also provides parents of children with special needs an opportunity to meet one another. Meetings are open to the public and are announced in school newsletters, in the local paper, and on community cable television. For more information, please visit the <u>Winchester Special Education Parent Advisory Committee website</u>.

General Policies

Policy AC: Nondiscrimination

Public schools are responsible for working to remove barriers that prevent children from achieving their potential. The Winchester Public Schools (WPS) commitment to this responsibility is affirmed by the following statements:

The Winchester Public Schools will:

- 1. Promote the rights and responsibilities of all individuals as set forth in the State and Federal Constitutions, legislation, and applicable judicial interpretations.
- 2. Encourage positive experiences in human values for children, youth, and adults, all of whom have differing personal and family characteristics and come from various socioeconomic, racial, and ethnic groups.
- 3. Work toward a more integrated society and enlist the support of individuals, groups, and agencies, both private and governmental, in such an effort.
- 4. Use all appropriate communication and action techniques to air and reduce the grievances of individuals and groups.
- Carefully consider, in all the decisions made within the school system, the potential benefits or adverse consequences that those decisions might have on the human relations aspects of all segments of society.
- 6. Initiate a process of reviewing policies and practices of the school system to achieve to the greatest extent possible the objectives of this statement.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy ACA-1: Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Gender Identity

The Winchester Public Schools has a commitment to maintaining an educational environment and workplace where bigotry and intolerance, including discrimination on the basis of gender identity, sex, sexual orientation, or gender expression is not tolerated and where any form of intimidation, threat, coercion and/or harassment that insults the dignity of others and interferes with their freedom to learn or work is unacceptable.

The Winchester Public Schools strictly enforces a prohibition against harassment and discrimination of any of its students or employees by anyone, including any fellow student, teacher, supervisor, coworker, vendor, or other third party, as such conduct is contrary to the mission of the Winchester Public Schools and its commitment to equal opportunity in education and employment. The school district does not and will not discriminate on the basis of gender identity, sex, sexual orientation, or gender expression in the educational programs and activities of the public schools, and strives to create an environment where all students and staff feel safe, welcome and included.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy ACAB: Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment in the education programs, activities and workplace of the Winchester Public Schools ("District") is unlawful. All persons associated with the District including, but not limited to, School Committee members, District employees, volunteers, and students, are expected to conduct themselves at all times to maintain a workplace, education program and activity free from sexual harassment.

Any person who engages in sexual harassment while participating in the education program or activity or acting as a member of the school community will be in violation of this policy. Further, any retaliation against an individual who has complained about sexual harassment or retaliation against any individual for cooperating in an investigation of a sexual harassment complaint is unlawful and will not be tolerated.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy ACAC: Policy and Procedures on Harassment

The Winchester Public School system is committed to providing faculty, staff and students an environment which allows them to pursue their careers and studies in physical and emotional safety. Therefore schools and offices must be free of any type of harassment or physical threat to well-being. All persons associated with the school system, including, but not limited to, the school committee, the administration, faculty, staff and students are expected to conduct themselves at all times so as to

provide an atmosphere free from harassment. These same individuals are strongly encouraged not to tolerate, even by silence, any violation of this policy by others.

Definition of Harassment: Harassment refers to conduct, behavior, or comments that are personally offensive, degrading, or threatening to others. This policy refers to, but is not limited to, insulting or harmful comments or actions based on a person's color, race, gender, religion, sexual orientation, national origin, physical characteristics, gender identity, or disability. Examples of harassment include, but are not limited to, name calling, threats, unsolicited physical contact, unwelcome and insulting comments and gestures, and the display or circulation of written materials or pictures that are degrading or offensive to any individual, ethnic, racial, religious or gender group.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy BDFA: School Councils

A school council is a representative, school building-based committee composed of the principal, parents, teachers, and community members required to be established by each school pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 71, Section 59C. Each elementary school has a school council, and parent elections are held in the fall.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy BGD: School Committee Review of Procedures

It is expected that the Superintendent and administrative staff will need to issue procedures implementing policies of the School Committee. Many of these will be routine from year to year; others will arise in special circumstances; some will be drawn up under specific directions from the Committee.

The Committee may review the procedures developed by the Superintendent for the school system whenever they appear inconsistent with policy, goals, or objectives of the District, but it will revise or veto such procedures only when, in the Committee's judgment, they are inconsistent with policies adopted by the Committee.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy EEAJ: Motor Vehicle Idling on School Grounds

No motor vehicle operator shall cause or allow any motor vehicle operated by them on school grounds to idle unnecessarily, except for any of the following reasons: traffic conditions; queuing at a school for the purpose of picking up or discharging students; turbo-charged diesel engine cool down or warm up; maintenance of appropriate temperature for school buses when accepting or discharging passengers not to exceed three minutes in any fifteen minute period or one minute in any fifteen minute period for other motor vehicles; for circumstances involving safety or emergencies and for

servicing or repairing motor vehicles; and as these exceptions are more completely described in the below referenced regulations. The term "school grounds" shall mean in, on or within 100 feet of the real property of the school whether or not it is in session, and shall include any athletic field or facility and any playground used for school purposes or functions which is owned by the municipality or school district, regardless of proximity to a school building, as well as any parking lot appurtenant to such school athletic field, facility or playground. Reasonable efforts shall be made by the district to identify by signage all known and actual air intake systems, which may be within 100 feet of an idling motor vehicle. A motor vehicle operator shall not idle a motor within 100 feet of such an air intake system, unless the Winchester Public School District has determined that alternative locations block traffic, impair student safety or are not cost effective.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy IHAMA: Parental Notification Relative to Sex Education

In accordance with General Laws Chapter 71, Section 32A, the Winchester School Committee has adopted this policy on the rights of parents and guardians of our students in relation to curriculum that primarily involves human sexual education or human sexuality issues.

At the beginning of each school year, all parents/guardians of students in our schools will be notified in writing of the courses and curriculum we offer that primarily involve human sexual or human sexuality issues. The Superintendent of Schools will determine the administrator(s) responsible for sending the notice(s). Parents/guardians of students who enroll in school after the start of the school year will be given the written notice at the time of enrollment. If planned curricula change during the school year, to the extent practicable, parents/guardians will be notified of this fact in a timely manner before implementation.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy IJOC: School Volunteers

It is the policy of the School Committee to encourage volunteer efforts in the schools. Parents/guardians, business representatives, senior citizens, and other community volunteers are recognized as important sources of support and expertise to enhance the instructional program and vital communication links with the community. The volunteer program will be coordinated in cooperation with building administrators.

SOURCE: MASC

CROSS REFS.: ADDA: Background Checks

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015 REVIEWED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: January 9, 2025

Policy IJNDB: Student Acceptance Use Policy

This Technology Acceptable Use Policy for the Winchester Public Schools (WPS) is enacted by the School Committee to provide the parents, students, and staff of the Winchester School Community with a statement of purpose and explanation of the use of technology within the Winchester learning community. This policy is reinforced by practice, acceptable use standards and is required to be read before accessing the technology devices, digital resources, and network infrastructure of the Winchester Public Schools. Students and parents/ guardians as well as all staff members of WPS must also read and sign the accompanying Statement of Responsibilities.

The Winchester Public Schools encourages the use of information technology to assist staff and students with academic success, preparation for the workplace, and lifelong learning. The Winchester Public Schools provides access to a wide range of information technology to support teaching and learning, and communicating and collaborating with others. Information technology will be used to increase communication, enhance student engagement, and assist staff and students in acquiring new skills. The technology devices, digital resources, and network infrastructure will also be utilized to provide relevant school information to a global community.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy JB: Equal Educational Opportunities

In recognition of the diversified characteristics and needs of our students and with the keen desire to be responsive to them, the School Committee will make every effort to protect the dignity of the students as individuals. It also will offer careful consideration and sympathetic understanding of their personal feelings, particularly with reference to their race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, pregnancy or pregnancy-related condition, or physical and intellectual differences.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy JI: Student Rights and Responsibilities

The School Committee has the responsibility to afford students the rights that are theirs by virtue of guarantees offered under the federal and state constitutions and statutes. In connection with rights, there are responsibilities that must be assumed by students.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy JICFA: Prohibition of Hazing

In accordance with Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 536 of the Acts of 1985, the School Committee hereby deems that no student, employee or school organization under the control of the School Committee shall engage in the activity of hazing a student while on or off school property, or at

a school sponsored event regardless of the location. No organization that uses the facilities or grounds under the control of the School Committee shall engage in the activity of hazing any person while on school property.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy JICFA-E: Hazing

CH. 269, S.17. Crime of Hazing, Definition, Penalty

Whoever is a principal organizer or participant in the crime of hazing as defined herein shall be punished by a fine of not more than three thousand dollars or by imprisonment in a house of correction for not more than one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

CH. 269, S.18. Duty to Report Hazing

Whoever knows that another person is the victim of hazing as defined in section seventeen and is at the scene of such crime shall, to the extent that such person can do so without danger or peril to themself or others, report such crime to an appropriate law enforcement official as soon as reasonably practicable. Whoever fails to report such crime shall be punished by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars.

CH. 269, S.19. Hazing Statues to be Provided; Statement of Compliance and Discipline Policy Required

Each secondary school and each public and private school or college shall issue to every group or organization under its authority or operating on or in conjunction with its campus or school, and to every member, plebe, pledge or applicant for membership in such group or organization, a copy of this section and sections seventeen and eighteen. An officer of each such group or organization, and each individual receiving a copy of said sections seventeen and eighteen shall sign an acknowledgment stating that such group, organization or individual has received a copy of said sections seventeen and eighteen.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy JICFB: Anti-Bullying

The Winchester Public Schools is committed to providing a safe, positive and productive educational environment where students can achieve the highest academic standards. No student shall be subjected to harassment, intimidation, bullying, or cyber-bullying within the school community.

"Bullying" is the repeated use by one or more students or by a school staff member of a written, verbal, or electronic expression, or a physical act or gesture, or any combination thereof, directed at a target that:

- -causes physical or emotional harm to the target or damage to the target's property;
- -places the target in reasonable fear of harm to themself, or of damage to their property;
- -creates a hostile environment at school for the target;

- -infringes on the rights of the target at school; or
- -materially and substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school.

"Cyber-bullying" means bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication, which shall include, but shall not be limited to, any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, or data.

Cyber-bullying shall also include the creation of a web page or blog in which the creator assumes the identity of another person or the knowing impersonation of another person as author of posted content or messages, if the creation or impersonation creates any of the conditions enumerated in the definition of bullying.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

Policy JIH: Searches and Interrogations

Searches by Staff

The right of inspection of students' school lockers is inherent in the authority granted school committees and administrators. This authority may be exercised as needed in the interest of safeguarding children, staff, their own, and school property.

Nevertheless, exercise of that authority by school officials places unusual demands upon their judgment so as to protect each child's constitutional rights to personal privacy and protection from coercion and to act in the best Searches by school officials of students' automobiles or the student will be conducted in a way that protects the students' rights consistent with the responsibility of the school system to provide an atmosphere conducive to the educational process.

The full policy may be viewed through the Appendix.

The Educational Rights of Children and Youth in Homeless Situations

The Winchester Public School District complies with federal and state laws and regulations in the identification and education of children who are in homeless situations. The intent of this policy is to provide each child and youth equal access to the same free appropriate public education as provided to other children and youth. In accordance with requirements of the McKinney-Vento Act, the Superintendent has designated Erin Kuehn, Director of Social Emotional Learning & Counseling, as the Homeless Education Liaison.

Director of Social Emotional Learning & Counseling
Ms. Erin Kuehn
Central Office
80 Skillings Road
Winchester, MA 01890
ekuehn@winchesterps.org

WPS Bullying Prevention & Response Plan

On May 3, 2010, Governor Patrick signed an Act Relative to Bullying in Schools, M.G.L. c.71, § 370. This law prohibits bullying and retaliation in all public and private schools and requires schools and school districts to take certain steps to address bullying incidents. The Winchester Public Schools Bullying Prevention and Response Plan includes the requirements of the law and information about the policies, procedures, and response plan that the school district will follow to prevent bullying and retaliation. In developing and updating the plan, the Winchester Public Schools has consulted with school and local community members, including parents and guardians.

The WPS Bullying Prevention & Response Plan is located on the district website.

Below is an age appropriate description of the types of conduct which students are expected to avoid in order to help prevent bullying:

You can help prevent bullying from happening if you follow this code of behavior.

- -Be kind to each other.
- -Do not use words that would cause a classmate to feel sad, upset, or ashamed.
- -Keep your hands to yourself. Do not kick, punch, pinch, or touch another student. Never touch another student in a way that might hurt them.
- -Consider other people's feelings at all times before you speak. Try your best not to hurt others' feelings.
- -Do not say or do anything to threaten another student.
- -Do not do or say anything that would make another student scared.
- -Do not tease, taunt, mock, embarrass, or humiliate your classmates.
- -If you are being bullied, tell an adult right away.
- -If you know another student is being bullied, tell your teacher, principal, parents, or another adult right away.
- -If you bully another student, you will be disciplined, up to and including a long-term suspension from school.

Federal Laws Governing Students' Rights to Education

Federal laws outline the rights of certain classes of students to an education. These laws are discussed briefly below. More details governing these rights of students can be obtained in the principal's office.

Homeless Students: Every child without a permanent home has a right to the same appropriate public education provided to all other children. A homeless child may enroll in school even though he or she does not have a permanent address.

Title IX: This law prohibits discrimination under any educational program or activity receiving federal aid based on the student's gender.

The Winchester Public Schools does not discriminate on the basis of sex and strictly prohibits sex discrimination, including sex-based harassment, in any education program or activity that it operates, including in admission and employment. Winchester Public Schools does not discriminate on the basis

of pregnancy or pregnancy-related conditions or parental, familial, or marital status in its educational programs and employment activities. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; M.G.L. c. 151B; M.G.L. c. 151C; M.G.L. c. 76, § 5. The District's policy of nondiscrimination includes protections from discrimination and harassment based on sexual orientation and gender identity, and extends to students, staff, the general public, and individuals with whom it does business; no person shall be excluded from or discriminated against in employment, admissions, or in obtaining the advantages, privileges, and courses of study of such public school on account of sex.

The District has adopted and implements a Title IX Grievance Procedure to ensure the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints of sex discrimination, including sex-based harassment. A copy of the Winchester Public Schools Title IX Grievance Procedure may be accessed on the <u>Required Federal Notifications page on the District website</u> or through the office of the Title IX Coordinator.

For questions related to the District's Non-Discrimination policy or grievance procedures, to make a report or complaint of sex discrimination, including sex-based harassment, or for information relative to accommodations and services for individuals based on pregnancy and pregnancy-related conditions, please contact Anna Paradis, who serves as Winchester Public School's Title IX Coordinator:

Title IX Coordinator
Ms. Anna Paradis
Winchester High School
80 Skillings Road
Winchester, MA 01890
781-721-7020 x4163
aparadis@winchesterps.org

Inquires or complaints relative to sex discrimination, including sex-based harassment, may also be directed to the United States Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights:

U.S. Department of Education 8th Floor 5 Post Office Square Boston, MA 02109-3921 Telephone: (617) 289-0111

Facsimile: (617) 289-0150 Email: OCR.Boston@ed.gov

Any employee or student found to have engaged in sexual harassment will be subject to disciplinary action. Students found to have engaged in sexual harassment may be subject to disciplinary proceedings in accordance with procedures set forth in Student Discipline section of this handbook and applicable state and federal laws and regulations. Staff members determined to have engaged in sexual harassment shall be subject to professional discipline including possible termination of employment.

Title IX Section 504: This law prohibits discrimination based upon any physical or mental handicap that substantially limits one or more major life activities, including but not limited to walking, hearing, performing manual tasks, learning, and working. The district coordinator for Section 504:

Director of Social Emotional Learning & Counseling
Ms. Erin Kuehn
Central Office
80 Skillings Road
Winchester, MA 01890
ekuehn@winchesterps.org

Appendix

Policy AC: Nondiscrimination

Public schools have the responsibility to overcome, insofar as possible, any barriers that prevent children from achieving their potential. The public school system will do its part. This commitment to the community is affirmed by the following statements that the School Committee intends to:

- (1) Promote the rights and responsibilities of all individuals as set forth in the State and Federal Constitutions, pertinent legislation, and applicable judicial interpretations.
- (2) Encourage positive experiences in human values for children, youth and adults, all of whom have differing personal and family characteristics and who come from various socioeconomic, racial and ethnic groups.
- (3) Work toward a more integrated society and to enlist the support of individuals as well as groups and agencies, both private and governmental, in such an effort.
- (4) Use all appropriate communication and action techniques to air and reduce the grievances of individuals and groups.
- (5) Carefully consider, in all the decisions made within the school system, the potential benefits or adverse consequences that those decisions might have on the human relations aspects of all segments of society.
- (6) Initiate a process of reviewing policies and practices of the school system in order to achieve to the greatest extent possible the objectives of this statement.

The Committee's policy of nondiscrimination will extend to students, staff, the general public, and individuals with whom it does business; No person shall be excluded from or discriminated against in admission to a public school of any town or in obtaining the advantages, privileges, and courses of study of such public school on account of race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, pregnancy or pregnancy-related condition, or disability. If someone has a complaint or feels that they have been discriminated against because of their race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, pregnancy or pregnancy-related condition, or disability, their complaint should be registered with the Title IX Compliance Officer.

SOURCE: MASC

LEGAL REFS.: Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal

Employment Opportunity Act of 1972

Executive Order 11246, as amended by E.O. 11375

Equal Pay Act, as amended by the Education Amendments of

1972 Title IX, Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C.

1681 et seq. Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Education for All Handicapped Children Act of 1975 M.G.L. 71B:1 et seq. (Chapter 27466 of the Acts of 1972)

M.G.L. 71B.1 et seq. (Chapter 27400 of the M.G.L. 76:5; Amended 2001

M.G.L.76:16

Board of Education 603 CMR 26:00 Amended 2012

BESE regulations CMR 28:00

CROSS REFS.: ACA- ACE: Subcategories for Nondiscrimination

GBA: Equal Employment Opportunity

JB: Equal Educational Opportunities Pregnant Workshop

Fairness Act

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

REVISED: September 25, 2018

Policy ACA-1: Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Gender Identity

The Winchester Public Schools has a commitment to maintaining an educational environment and workplace where bigotry and intolerance, including discrimination on the basis of gender identity, sex, sexual orientation, or gender expression is not tolerated and where any form of intimidation, threat, coercion and/or harassment that insults the dignity of others and interferes with their freedom to learn or work is unacceptable.

The Winchester Public Schools strictly enforces a prohibition against harassment and discrimination of any of its students or employees by anyone, including any fellow student, teacher, supervisor, coworker, vendor, or other third party, as such conduct is contrary to the mission of the Winchester Public Schools and its commitment to equal opportunity in education and employment. The school district does not and will not discriminate on the basis of gender identity, sex, sexual orientation, or gender expression in the educational programs and activities of the public schools, and strives to create an environment where all students and staff feel safe, welcome and included.

The Winchester Public Schools takes allegations of discrimination and harassment seriously and will respond promptly to complaints. Where it is determined that inappropriate conduct has occurred, the Winchester Public Schools will act promptly to eliminate the conduct and will impose corrective action as necessary, including disciplinary action where appropriate, which may include termination of employment or school-related discipline. The provisions of the Winchester Public Schools' Nondiscrimination Policy and Prohibition Against Sexual Harassment, Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex, Anti-Bullying, Bullying Prevention and Intervention Plan, Equal Educational Opportunities and Equal Employment Opportunity policies are incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

Sexual harassment is not covered by this policy or the procedure detailed below. Information regarding sexual harassment, including the definition and how to file a complaint, can be found in policy ACAB. All complaints regarding sexual harassment will be processed according to policy ACAB.

If a student requires assistance under this policy, the student and/or the student's parents/guardians/caretaker should contact the principal. If a staff member requires assistance under this policy, the staff member should contact the human resources director.

To help create a safe and supportive environment for all students, the school district will, consistent with applicable laws and guidance, take the following steps pursuant to the following definitions:

DEFINITIONS

Gender identity is an individual's sincerely held core belief regarding their gender, whether that individual identifies as male, female, both, neither or in some other way (for example, individuals who identify in some other way such as nonbinary, queer, genderqueer or gender fluid).

Gender expression is the manner in which an individual represents or expresses gender to others, through such means as clothing, hairstyling, accessories, voice, behavior and mannerisms.

Transgender is an umbrella term for people whose gender identity or gender expression is different from that traditionally associated with their assigned sex at birth.

Transition is the experience by which a person goes from living and identifying as one gender to living and identifying as another.

Gender expansive is an umbrella term used to describe people who expand notions of gender expression and identity beyond what is perceived as the expected gender norms for their society or context. Some gender-expansive people identify with being either male or female, some identify as neither, and others identify as a mix of both. Gender-expansive people include those with transgender and nonbinary identities as well as those whose gender in some way is seen to be stretching society's notions of gender.

Names/Pronouns

A student or staff member has the right to choose a name and pronoun appropriate to the student's or staff member's gender identity, regardless of the student's or staff member's assigned birth sex and name that appear on the student's or staff member's birth certificate. School District files should accurately record and use the student's or staff member's chosen name and pronouns that are consistent with the student's or staff member's gender identity. Court orders are not required to update student or staff records to reflect changes in a student's or staff member's name and gender markers. A student's individual school will work with a student and the parents/guardians/caregivers of the student if they are involved in the process, or in the case of a younger student with the student and the student's parents/guardians/caregivers, to develop a plan for communicating any name and pronoun change within the school. Similarly, the Director of Personnel will work with individual staff members to develop a plan for communicating any name and pronoun changes within the district and community.

Transitions

When a student transitions, the school may hold a meeting, upon request by student or the parents/guardians/caregivers of the student, with the student and the parents/guardians/caregivers of the student if they are involved in the process, or in the case of a younger student with the student and the student's parents/guardians/caregivers, to develop a plan to provide a safe and supportive educational environment for the student and to address any concerns that may arise.

When a staff member transitions, the staff member may request a meeting with the human resources director, who may assist the staff member in navigating workplace concerns that the staff members have as a result of the transition.

Privacy, Confidentiality and Student Records

Records with a student's or staff member's assigned birth name and sex, name change for gender identity purposes, gender transition, medical information related to gender identity or other information of a similar nature, if such records exist, will be maintained in a separate, confidential file. The school district shall ensure that all information related to a student's or staff member's gender identity shall be kept confidential in accordance with applicable federal, state and local privacy laws and regulations. Information that may reveal a student's or staff member's gender identity to others will not be disclosed unless the school is legally required to do so, or unless the disclosure has been authorized by the student or staff member, or in the case of a younger student, by the student's parents/guardians/caregivers. Schools will consult with a student and the parents/guardians/caregivers of the student if they are involved in the process, or in the case of a younger student with the student and the student's parents/guardians/caregivers, when determining whether any such information should be disclosed, and if so, how much information should be disclosed and to whom.

Accessibility to Restrooms, Locker Rooms and Changing Facilities

A student or staff member may access the restrooms, locker rooms and changing facilities that correspond to the student's or staff member's gender identity. Upon a student's or staff member's request, any student or staff member who is uncomfortable using a shared facility, regardless of the reason, shall be provided with a safe and non-stigmatizing alternative. Based upon availability and the appropriateness to address privacy concerns, accommodations that may be offered to a student or staff member who desires increased privacy may include, but are not limited to: (a) use of a nearby private area (such as a gender neutral restroom, gender neutral changing room, nurse's restroom, or a nurse's office); (b) a separate changing schedule, or (c) use of private area within a public area (such as, an area separated by a curtain, or a bathroom or changing stall with a door). Schools will consult with a student and the parents/guardians/caregivers of the student if they are involved in the process, or in the case of a younger student with the student's parents/guardians/caregivers, to ensure accessibility and address any concerns that may arise.

Physical Education Classes and Athletic Activities

In those instances where there are gender-segregated classes or activities, as opposed to co-educational classes and activities, a student must be allowed to participate in a manner consistent with the student's gender identity. (For more information, please see Winchester Public School's Inclusive Sports and Extracurricular Activity Participation Policy (JJIC).)

Dress Codes

A student must be permitted to dress in compliance with the school district's dress code in a manner consistent with the student's gender identity. Staff members shall be permitted to dress in a manner consistent with their gender identity.

Other Gender-Based Activities, Rules and Practices

Schools should review and evaluate any gender-based activities, rules, and practices currently being utilized, and replace such gender-based activities, rules and practices with non-gendered alternatives. If there is a clear and sound pedagogical purpose to retain a gender-based activity, rule, or practice, a student must be allowed to participate in the activity, rule or practice in a manner consistent with their gender identity.

Education and Training

The school district shall incorporate training about transgender and gender nonconforming students into its anti-bullying and non-discrimination curriculum, student leadership training, and staff professional development in order to promote a safe and supportive environment for all students and staff.

Consistent with this policy and applicable laws and guidance, the Superintendent of Schools shall promulgate administrative procedures to address steps that school staff should take to create a culture where transgender and gender nonconforming students and staff feel safe, supported and fully included. The administrative guidelines should, at a minimum, address the following areas: gender transition, names and pronouns, privacy, confidentiality and student records, gender markers on student records, restrooms, locker rooms and changing facilities, physical education classes, intramural and interscholastic athletic activities, dress codes, and other gender-based activities, rules, policies and practices, and education and training.

References:

23.04 603 CMR §§23.01 and 23.07.

The Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 USC 1232g DESE

- Safe Schools Program for LGBTQ Students

CROSS REFS.: AC: ACAB: Subcategories for Nondiscrimination

GBA: Equal Employment Opportunity JB: Equal Educational Opportunities

JICFB: Anti-Bullying

JJIC: Inclusive Sports and Extracurricular Activity

Participation Policy

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: April 23, 2019

REVISED ON: December 7, 2021

Policy ACAB: Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment in the education programs, activities and workplace of the Winchester Public Schools ("District") is unlawful. All persons associated with the District including, but not limited to, School Committee members, District employees, volunteers, and students, are expected to conduct

themselves at all times to maintain a workplace, education program and activity free from sexual harassment.

Any person who engages in sexual harassment while participating in the education program or activity or acting as a member of the school community will be in violation of this policy. Further, any retaliation against an individual who has complained about sexual harassment or retaliation against any individual for cooperating in an investigation of a sexual harassment complaint is unlawful and will not be tolerated.

Because the District takes allegations of sexual harassment seriously, it will respond promptly to complaints of sexual harassment, and where it is determined that inappropriate conduct, whether or not such conduct constitutes sexual harassment, has occurred, we will act promptly to eliminate the conduct and impose such corrective action as is necessary, including disciplinary action where appropriate.

Please note that while this policy sets forth our goals of promoting a workplace and school environment that is free of sexual harassment, the policy is not designed or intended to limit our authority to discipline or take remedial action for workplace or school conduct which we deem unacceptable, regardless of whether that conduct satisfies the definition of sexual harassment.

Definitions:

Complainant – An individual who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sexual harassment.

Respondent – An individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct that could constitute sexual harassment or a violation of this policy.

Sexual Harassment – Conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the following:

- (1) A district employee conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or service on an individual's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct;
- (2) Unwelcome conduct by a Committee member, employee, district volunteer or student determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the District's education program or activity; or
- (3) Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence and/or stalking by a Committee member, District employee, volunteer or student.

While it is not possible to list all those additional circumstances that may constitute sexual harassment, the following are some examples of conduct which if unwelcome, may constitute sexual harassment depending upon the totality of the circumstances including the severity of the conduct and its pervasiveness:

- (1) Unwelcome sexual advances whether they involve physical touching or not;
- (2) Sexual epithets, jokes, written or oral references to sexual conduct, gossip regarding one's sex life; comment on an individual's body, comment about an individual's sexual activity, deficiencies, or prowess;
- (3) Displaying sexually suggestive objects, pictures, cartoons;
- (4) Unwelcome leering, whistling, brushing against the body, sexual gestures, suggestive or

insulting comments;

- (5) Inquiries into one's sexual experiences; and
- (6) Discussion of one's sexual activities.

Supportive Measures – Non-disciplinary, non-punitive individualized services offered as appropriate, as reasonably available, and without fee or charge to the complainant or the respondent before or after the filing of a formal complaint or where no formal complaint has been filed. Such measures are designed to restore or preserve equal access to education programs or activities without unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures designed to protect the safety of all parties or the District's educational environment or to deter sexual harassment. Supportive measures may include counseling, extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments, modifications of work or class schedules, school building/campus escort services, mutual restrictions on contact between the parties, changes in work locations, leaves of absence, increased security and monitoring of certain areas of the building/campus, and other similar measures.

Formal Complaint – A document filed by a complainant or signed by the Title IX Coordinator alleging sexual harassment against a respondent and requesting that the District investigate the allegation of sexual harassment.

Title IX Coordinator

The Superintendent will annually appoint one or more Title IX Coordinators who will be vested with the authority and responsibility of managing all sexual harassment complaints. The District will annually notify applicants for employment, students, parents/guardians, and unions of the Title IX Coordinator's name(s), and the title, address, email address and phone number for each Title IX Coordinator.

Any person may report sex discrimination, including sexual harassment (whether or not the person reporting is the person alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sex discrimination or sexual harassment). Reports may be made at any time including during non-business hours. Reports may be made in person, by mail, by telephone, or by electronic mail, using the contact information listed for the Title IX Coordinator, or by any other means that results in the Title IX Coordinator receiving the person's verbal or written report.

Complaint Procedure:

Receipt of Formal Complaint

Upon actual knowledge of allegations of sexual harassment, the Title IX Coordinator will promptly and confidentially contact the complainant to discuss the availability of supportive measures, consider the complainant's wishes with respect to supportive measures, inform the complainant of the availability of supportive measures with or without the filing of a formal complaint, and explain to the complainant the process for filing a formal complaint.

The Title IX Coordinator shall respect a complainant's wishes that the allegations not be investigated unless the Title IX Coordinator determines that it would be unreasonable in light of the known circumstances not to initiate a formal complaint. The Title IX Coordinator must investigate the complaint and take appropriate action where required by state law.

The District may remove a respondent on an emergency basis after undertaking an individualized safety and risk analysis and determining that an immediate threat to the physical health or safety of

any student or other individual arising from the allegations justifies removal. The District will provide the respondent with written notice and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal in accordance with any applicable laws, collective bargaining agreements and student handbooks.

After a formal complaint has been filed, the Title IX Coordinator will provide written notice to all parties of the investigation process and sufficient details of the allegations known at the time. If the allegations are against more than one respondent or by more than one complainant, the District may consolidate multiple formal complaints where the allegations of sexual harassment arise out of the same facts or circumstances.

The Title IX Coordinator shall assign an individual to investigate the matter. The investigator shall have no conflicts with or biases against either the complainant or the respondent. If the District has appointed more than one Title IX Coordinator, the individual not assigned to be the Title IX Coordinator in the matter may serve as the investigator. The investigator will collect and review evidence, interview parties and witnesses, and complete an investigative report.

Informal Resolution

After a formal complaint is filed, the District may offer and facilitate an informal resolution process (such as but not limited to mediation or restorative justice) before a determination is made. This process is not available when the complaint alleges sexual harassment by a Committee member, District employee or volunteer towards a student.

The parties must give voluntary, written consent to participate in this informal process. When both parties consent to an informal process, the District shall facilitate a resolution-based meeting within ten (10) school days, subject to the availability of the involved parties and any mediator or facilitator.

If informal resolution is unsuccessful, the complainant may choose to continue the investigation process by providing written notice to the Title IX Coordinator within five (5) school days of the unsuccessful informal resolution meeting. In this event, the investigator will commence or resume the investigation generally within five (5) school days from receipt of notice.

Investigation

All evidence will be weighed objectively using the preponderance of the evidence standard. Credibility determinations are not based on an individual's status as a complainant, respondent or witness. The investigator will presume that the respondent is not responsible for the alleged conduct until a determination regarding responsibility is made at the conclusion of the investigation process. However, nothing in this paragraph will limit the right of the District to remove a respondent on an emergency basis as provided in the Complaint Procedure of this policy.

The investigator shall strive to complete investigations within twenty-five (25) school days of the filing of the formal complaint or resumption of the investigation after an unsuccessful informal resolution meeting.

During the investigation, the investigator shall take the following steps:

(1) The investigator will interview the complainant to obtain a clear understanding of the complainant's allegations within five (5) school days of the filing of the formal complaint provided that the complainant is available to be interviewed by the

- investigator.
- (2) The investigator will interview the respondent to obtain a response to the complainant's allegations from the respondent within five (5) school days of the interview with the complainant provided that the respondent is available to be interviewed with the investigator.
- (3) The investigator will interview witnesses identified by the complainant or respondent within five (5) school days of being identified as a potential witness by the complainant or respondent provided the witness is available. The investigator will interview witnesses as the investigator deems necessary.
- (4) The investigator will hold as many meetings or interviews with the parties and any witnesses as is necessary to make factual findings.

The timelines above are subject to the District's goal to complete investigations generally within twenty-five (25) school days, but may be extended for good cause upon written notice to the complainant and respondent. The timeline for investigation may be suspended during any informal resolution procedure or meeting. Each party is entitled to be accompanied in interviews by an advisor, who may be a parent/guardian or an attorney, but who may only have limited participation in interviews. Translators will be provided upon request.

After all interviews are conducted and evidence is obtained, the parties and if applicable, their advisors, will have an equal opportunity to inspect, review and respond to any evidence obtained. Prior to completion of the investigative report, the investigator will send each party all evidence subject to inspection and review and provide each party at least ten (10) business days to provide a response to the investigator. Evidence to be shared may be redacted to protect confidential information under the Family and Educational Rights and Privacy Act ("FERPA") or other federal or state laws and regulations.

The investigator will draft an investigation report that fairly summarizes the relevant evidence including, but not limited to, interviews with parties and witnesses, written evidence, audio/video recordings, and site visits. The investigator will then send the completed investigation report to each party and: (1) afford each party the opportunity to submit written, relevant questions that the party wants asked of any party or witness; (2) provide each party with the answers; and (3) allow for limited follow-up questions. The investigator may limit the number of questions and, if certain questions are submitted that are not relevant to the investigation, may choose not to provide those questions to the other party. If the investigator chooses not to provide certain questions, the investigator will inform the party who submitted such questions that they will not be asked as they are not relevant.

Determinations

The investigator will provide the decision-maker, with a report including all evidence obtained during the course of the investigation. The decision-maker assigned will have no conflicts with or biases against either the complainant or the respondent and the decision-maker will not be the Title IX Coordinator assigned in the matter or the investigator for the complaint. The decision-maker shall review all of the evidence and issue a written determination within fifteen (15) school days of receipt of the matter from the investigator, absent extenuating circumstances. If the decision-maker substantiates the allegations of sexual harassment, the decision-maker may recommend or impose discipline against the respondent. If the decision-maker does not substantiate the allegations of sexual harassment, the complaint will be dismissed.

The decision-maker shall provide the written determination to the parties simultaneously. The written determination shall include: (1) identification of the allegations potentially constituting sexual harassment; (2) a description of the procedural steps taken from the receipt of the formal complaint through the determination, including any notifications to the parties, interviews with parties and witnesses, site visits, and methods used to gather evidence; (3) findings of fact supporting the determination; (4) conclusions as to whether District policies were violated; (5) a statement of the result of each allegation, including a determination regarding responsibility, disciplinary action to be imposed on the respondent, and whether remedies designed to preserve equal access to the District's education program or activity will be provided to the complainant; and (6) the District's procedures and permissible bases for appeal. Confidential student record information and personnel information may be redacted consistent with and as required by state and federal law.

An employee found responsible for engaging in sexual harassment is subject to discipline up to and including termination. A student found responsible for engaging in sexual harassment is subject to discipline consistent with state law and applicable student handbook.

Dismissals under Title IX

If the conduct alleged in the formal complaint would not constitute sexual harassment even if proved, did not occur in the District's education program or activity or workplace, or did not occur in the United States, then the District will dismiss the formal Title IX complaint with regard to that conduct for purposes of sexual harassment under Title IX. However, such a dismissal does not preclude the investigation or imposition of disciplinary action pursuant to state law, other District policies and/or the student handbook.

The District may dismiss the formal Title IX complaint or any of the allegations in the complaint, if at any time during the investigation or hearing: a complainant notifies the Title IX Coordinator in writing that the complainant would like to withdraw the formal complaint or any allegations in the complaint; the respondent is no longer enrolled or employed by the District; or specific circumstances prevent the District from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination as to the formal complaint or allegations.

Upon a dismissal of this section, the District will promptly send written notice of the dismissal and reason(s) to the parties.

Withdrawal

While Title IX allegations may be withdrawn, the District may investigate under other state and federal laws and District policies.

Appeals

Either party may appeal the outcome of the investigation for one of the following reasons:

- (1) Procedural irregularity affected the outcome;
- (2) New evidence that was not reasonably available at the time that the determination was made which could affect the outcome;
- (3) The Title IX Coordinator, investigator, and/or decision-maker had a conflict of interest or bias.

Appeals must be submitted to the Title IX Coordinator within five (5) business days of receipt of the written determination and contain a written statement in support or challenge of the outcome.

When an appeal is filed, the District shall notify the other party and ensure that the individual deciding the appeal is not the same person as the decision-maker who reached the determination regarding responsibility and that the individual has no conflicts of interests and is free of bias. The non-appealing party shall have five (5) school days from the date of receipt of the notice of the appeal to submit a written statement to support or oppose the outcome.

The individual deciding the appeal shall issue a written decision describing the result of the appeal and rationale for the decision and provide the decision to both parties generally within ten (10) school days of receipt of the non-appealing party's written statement, or in the event no statement is submitted, the date the statement would have been due.

In addition to the above, if you believe you have been subjected to sexual harassment, you may file a complaint with any of the governing agencies set forth below.

-United States Department of Education Office for Civil Rights - Region 1

U.S. Department of Education 8th Floor 5 Post Office Square Boston, MA 02109

-Equal Employment Opportunity Commission JFK Federal Building 15 New Sudbury Street, Room 475 Boston, MA 02203 (800) 669 – 4000

-The Massachusetts Commission Against Discrimination ("MCAD")
One Ashburton Place – Room 601
Boston, MA 02108
(617) 994 – 6000

LEGAL REFS.: Title VII, Section 703, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 45

Federal Regulation 74676 issued by EEO Commission

Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. (Title IX)

Board of Education 603 CMR 26:00

SOURCE: MASC

REVISED: September 14, 2021

Policy ACAC: Policy and Procedures on Harassment

The Winchester Public Schools is committed to providing faculty, staff and students an environment which allows them to pursue their careers and studies in physical and emotional safety. Therefore schools and offices must be free of any type of harassment or physical threat to well-being. All persons associated with the school system, including, but not limited to, the school committee, the administration, faculty, staff and students are expected to conduct themselves at all times so as to

provide an atmosphere free from harassment. These same individuals are strongly encouraged not to tolerate, even by silence, any violation of this policy by others.

Definition of Harassment

Harassment refers to conduct, behavior, or comments that are personally offensive, degrading, or threatening to others. This policy refers to, but is not limited to, insulting or harmful comments or actions based on a person's race, gender, religion, sexual orientation, national origin, physical characteristics, or disability. Examples of harassment include, but are not limited to, name calling, threats, unsolicited physical contact, unwelcome and insulting comments and gestures, and the display or circulation of written materials or pictures that are degrading or offensive to any individual, ethnic, racial, religious or gender group.

Sexual harassment is not covered by this policy or the procedure detailed below. Information regarding sexual harassment, including the definition and how to file a complaint, can be found in policy ACAB. All complaints regarding sexual harassment will be processed according to policy ACAB.

Procedures for Reporting Harassment

In determining whether an alleged incident constitutes harassment, the building Principal (unless involved as a party) will serve as the hearing officer vested with the authority and responsibility of processing all non-sexual harassment complaints in accordance with the following procedures. The following steps should be followed in the reporting/resolution process. In attempting to reach a resolution, the totality of circumstances, including the developmental level and age of the students involved will be considered.

Student

Level One

Complaints of harassment should be reported to a faculty member, including a guidance counselor or the school nurse. If that staff member is not successful in resolving the situation or a decision is made to move the complaint forward, the incident must be referred to the school Principal.

Level Two

Should the complaint not be resolved at Level One, the building Principal will hold an informal hearing to attempt to resolve the situation. The Principal will involve the students' parents or guardians as appropriate.

Level Three

In the event that a student and/or parents are not satisfied by the resolution process at level two, they may file the complaint with the Superintendent of Schools within a reasonable amount of time, not to exceed thirty days. Hearing procedures for both students and staff are described after the staff section of this document.

Staff

Level One

Any staff member of the district who believes they have been subjected to harassment as defined by this policy, is to report the incident to the building Principal (unless the Principal is the party involved, in which case, reporting moves to level two).

The Principal will examine the totality of the circumstances and the context in which the alleged

incident occurred. After obtaining a clear understanding of the facts by conferring with all parties involved, the Principal will attempt to resolve the problem.

Level Two

In the event that a staff member is not satisfied by the resolution process, the staff member may file the complaint with the Superintendent of Schools (unless the Superintendent is a party, in which case the complaint goes to the school committee) within a reasonable amount of time not to exceed 30 days. Hearing procedures for both students and staff are described after the staff section of this document.

Hearing Before the Superintendent

The purpose of the Superintendent's hearing will be to determine whether the school system's policy on harassment has been violated, and, if so, the Superintendent will recommend appropriate consequences for the violation.

Both parties will be given a full and fair hearing. The proceeding, although formal, is not a court proceeding and the superintendent will not be bound by the procedures and rules of evidence of a court of law. In most instances, complainants and respondents will be expected to speak for themselves, although, if desired, each party may be accompanied by an advocate(s) and/or legal counsel.

The Superintendent will act as the presiding officer of the hearing and may have counsel present for purposes of assisting in the orderly conduct of the hearing. The complainant and the respondent will be asked to clarify the issues and to define the areas of disagreement. To encourage a fair and focused hearing, the parties will notify the Superintendent at the start of the proceedings about the points of agreement and disagreement. The Superintendent will hear testimony and consider whether the school committee policy on harassment has been violated, and, if they so find, will recommend appropriate consequences.

The Superintendent will:

- -ensure an orderly presentation of all evidence
- -ensure that the proceedings are accurately recorded by means of a tape or stenographic recording
- -issue a fair and impartial decision based on the issues and evidence presented at the hearing no later than ten working days after the conclusion of the hearing or, when written arguments are submitted, ten working days after their submission.

Decision of the Superintendent

After all the evidence and the testimony are presented, the superintendent (or the school committee in the case of a charge against the superintendent) will deliberate to determine whether the school system's policy on harassment has been violated. If the superintendent/school committee finds that the policy has not been violated, that fact will be registered in the records of the hearing, and the written decision will be forwarded to the complainant and the respondent no later than fifteen working days after the completion of the hearing.

Consequences of the Decision

If a student or staff member is found in violation of this policy, the consequences should reflect the severity of the harassment. These consequences may include, but will not be limited to, any one or combination of the following:

Student

- -verbal admonition
- -written warning, placed in student's record
- -probation
- -transfer to another school
- -suspension from school and possible expulsion, with an additional hearing, following a finding that the policy has been violated

If appropriate, the Superintendent may recommend some form of community service or school service, and may also make appropriate recommendations, such as professional counseling, and may recommend relief for the complainant which reinstates and restores the aggrieved party as much as possible.

Staff

- -verbal admonition
- -written warning, placed in individual's record
- -probation
- -suspension with/without pay, demotion/transfer to another role/building within the school system, removal from administrative duties within a building/department, dismissal

The Superintendent may also make appropriate recommendations, such as professional counseling, and may recommend relief for the complainant which reinstates and restores the aggrieved party as much as possible.

Prevention

In an effort to prevent harassment from occurring, discussions of all forms of harassment and their consequences will be integrated into curriculum and instruction at all levels of the school system. Training in the prevention and correction of harassment will be provided to staff. Staff members are encouraged to be vigilant about all types of harassment and to intervene and report any incidents which could be construed as harassment. Staff members are expected to engage student groups in discussions about the issue of harassment and to increase student awareness of reasons not to engage in harassment.

In addition to the above, if you believe you have been subjected to harassment, you may file a complaint with any of the governing agencies set forth below.

-United States Department of Education Office for Civil Rights – Region 1 8th Floor 5 Post Office Square Boston, MA 02109 (617) 289 – 0111

-Equal Employment Opportunity Commission JFK Federal Building 15 New Sudbury Street, Room 475 Boston, MA 02203 (800) 669 – 4000 -The Massachusetts Commission Against Discrimination ("MCAD")
One Ashburton Place – Room 601
Boston, MA 02108
(617) 994 – 6000

SOURCE: Winchester

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

REVISED ON: September 14, 2021

Policy ACDA: Accommodation for Religious and Ethnic Observances Policy

The Winchester School District serves children from many different religious and ethnic backgrounds. Out of respect for our students' different religious and ethnic traditions, and to ensure fair and sensitive treatment of all students, the district shall:

- -Place responsibility for implementation of this policy on the school principal;
- -Distribute school calendars to teachers, staff, and families that include those major religious and ethnic holidays whose observance would require absence from school or other accommodations;
- -Impose no penalty or detriment on students who participate in observances of their family's major religious and ethnic holidays;
- -Provide ample and flexible accommodations to allow students to make up subject material, assignments, and assessments within a reasonable time (assuming students will not do schoolwork or study during their absence);
- -Take major religious and ethnic holidays into consideration when scheduling test preparation, tests, and long-term assignments;
- -Avoid scheduling one-time events (field trips, athletic events, music or theatre performances, auditions, group photographs, back-to-school functions, and graduation) when possible on major religious and ethnic holidays. Some major religious holidays begin at sundown on the preceding evening (for example, Jewish Holidays of Rosh Hashanah, Yom Kippur, and first day of Passover);
- -Not require students observing major religious or ethnic holidays to participate or face penalties for their non-participation in school-scheduled events, such as in try-outs, athletic contests, or music performances;
- -Not prevent coaches and advisors from holding optional athletic practices on major religious and ethnic holidays;
- -Not deprive any student absent from school because of a religious or ethnic holiday of any award or of eligibility or opportunity to compete for any award because of such absence.

SOURCE: Winchester

LEGAL REF.: M.G.L. Ch. 151C, Sec. 2B

CROSS REFS.: IMD: School Ceremonies and Observances

JH: Student Absences and Excuses JH-E: Excused Absence Guidelines JI: Student Rights and Responsibilities

Winchester Multicultural Network Publication Accommodating Our Religious Holiday Observances – "A Learning Tool"

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2016 AMENDED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: March 22, 2016

Policy BDFA: School Councils

The School Committee believes that the school is the key unit for educational improvement and change and that successful school improvement is best accomplished through a school-based decision-making process. By involving those directly affected by any action or decision of the school council in the process of determining that action or decision, it helps to strengthen the commitment to those decisions by those most affected by its implementation.

Under this policy, the Principal shall have primary responsibility for the management of the school. Decisions which are made at the school level must be aligned with the budget, policies, curriculum, and long-range and short-range goals adopted by the School Committee. In addition, decisions must comply with any state and federal laws and regulations and with any negotiated agreements of the school District.

As enacted by the state legislature in the Education Reform Act of 1993, a school council shall be established in each school to advise the Principal in specific areas of school operation. The Principal, except as specifically defined in the law, shall have the responsibility for defining the composition of and forming the group pursuant to a representative process approved by the Superintendent and School Committee.

The following guidelines define the role of the school council:

The School Council shall meet regularly with the Principal of the school and shall assist in:

- (1) Adoption of educational goals for the school that are consistent with state and local policies and standards.
- (2) Identification of the educational needs of the students attending the school.
- (3) Review of the school building budget.
- (4) Formulation of a school improvement plan that may be implemented only after review and approval by the Superintendent.

SOURCE: MASC

LEGAL REFS.: M.G.L. 71:38Q, 71:59C

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Policy BGD: School Committee Review of Procedures

It is expected that the Superintendent and administrative staff will need to issue procedures implementing policies of the School Committee. Many of these will be routine from year to year; others will arise in special circumstances; some will be drawn up under specific directions from the Committee.

The Committee may review the procedures developed by the Superintendent for the school system whenever they appear inconsistent with policy, goals, or objectives of the District, but it will revise or veto such procedures only when, in the Committee's judgment, they are inconsistent with policies adopted by the Committee.

The Committee will not officially approve procedures except as required by state law or in cases when strong community attitudes, or possible student or staff reaction, make it necessary or advisable for a procedure to have the Committee's advance approval.

Rules Pertaining to Staff and Student Conduct

Under Massachusetts law, the Superintendent is required to publish "rules and regulations pertaining to the conduct of teachers and students which have been adopted." Codes of discipline, as well as procedures used to develop such codes, shall be filed with the Dept. of Elementary and Secondary Education for information purposes only. Standards of conduct will be included in staff and student handbooks. These handbooks will be reviewed and approved as needed (when changes occur) by the School Committee.

SOURCE: MASC

LEGAL REF.: M.G.L. 71:37H

CROSS REFS.: CHA: Development of Regulations

CHCA: Approval of Handbooks and Directives

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Policy ECAC: Vandalism

The School Committee recognizes that acts of vandalism committed against public and private property are costly and require positive action through educational programs. Consequently, the Committee will support various programs aimed at reducing the amount of vandalism.

Every citizen of the town, staff members, students, and members of the police department are urged by the School Committee to cooperate in reporting any incidents of vandalism to property under control of the school department, and the name(s) of the person or persons believed to be responsible. Each employee will report to the Principal of the school every incident of vandalism known to them and, if known, the names of those responsible.

The Superintendent is authorized to sign a criminal complaint and to press the charges against perpetrators of vandalism against school property, and is further authorized to delegate, as they see fit, authority to sign such complaints and to press charges.

Parents / guardians and students will be made aware of the legal implications involved. Reimbursement will be sought for all or part of any damages.

SOURCE: MASC

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015 REVISED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: January 9, 2025

Policy ECAF: Security Cameras in Schools

The School Committee works to maintain a safe and secure environment for its students, staff, visitors, and facilities. Security means more than having locks and making certain that doors are locked at the proper times. Security also means minimizing fire hazards, reducing the possibility of faulty equipment, keeping records and valuables in a safe place, protection against vandalism and burglary, the prosecution of vandals, and developing crisis plans.

In pursuit of this objective, the School Committee authorizes the use of security cameras in school district buildings and on its property to ensure the health, welfare and safety of all students, staff and visitors, to deter theft, vandalism and other negative behavior, to safeguard district buildings, grounds and equipment, and to monitor unauthorized individuals in or on school property. Security cameras may be used in locations as deemed appropriate by the Superintendent of Schools in consultation with school officials as well as local law enforcement and emergency response agencies. They may be used in any area, inside or outside of school buildings where there is no reasonable expectation of privacy.

The district shall notify students and staff through student and employee handbooks and appropriate signage that security cameras have been installed and may be used at any time. Those who are observed on video recordings to have violated school policies or procedures may be subject to disciplinary action.

The Superintendent shall ensure that proper procedures are in place and are followed regarding use, viewing, disclosure, retention, disposal and security of video recordings or photographs from security cameras in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. A video recording used for security purposes in school district buildings and/or on school property shall be the sole property of the school district. All video recordings will be stored in their original format and secured to avoid tampering and to ensure confidentiality in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Access to video recordings from security cameras shall be limited to school administrators (Superintendent/designee, School Principal/designee). Law enforcement and emergency response officials shall be granted access to video recordings or the security system after giving prior notice to the School Superintendent/designee.

The Superintendent may, from time to time, issue further guidance that is consistent with current laws and this policy.

SOURCE: MASC

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: November 24, 2015

Policy EEAJ: Motor Vehicle Idling on School Grounds

No motor vehicle operator shall cause or allow any motor vehicle operated by them on school grounds to idle unnecessarily, except for any of the following reasons: traffic conditions; queuing at a school for the purpose of picking up or discharging students; turbo-charged diesel engine cool down or warm up; maintenance of appropriate temperature for school buses when accepting or discharging passengers not to exceed three minutes in any fifteen minute period or one minute in any fifteen minute period for other motor vehicles; for circumstances involving safety or emergencies and for servicing or repairing motor vehicles; and as these exceptions are more completely described in the below referenced regulations. The term "school grounds" shall mean in, on or within 100 feet of the real property of the school whether or not it is in session, and shall include any athletic field or facility and any playground used for school purposes or functions which is owned by the municipality or school district, regardless of proximity to a school building, as well as any parking lot appurtenant to such school athletic field, facility or playground. Reasonable efforts shall be made by the district to identify by signage all known and actual air intake systems, which may be within 100 feet of an idling motor vehicle. A motor vehicle operator shall not idle a motor within 100 feet of such an air intake system, unless the Winchester Public School District has determined that alternative locations block traffic, impair student safety or are not cost effective.

The Winchester Public School District shall erect and maintain in a conspicuous location on school grounds "NO IDLING" signage. All such signage shall contain appropriate sized font so as to be visible from a distance of 50 feet.

The prohibitions contained in M.G.L. c. 90, § 16B shall be enforced by state or local law enforcement agencies.

SOURCE: MASC February 2010

LEGAL REFS.: M.G.L. c. 71:37H, c. 90:16B and 540 CMR 27.00

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Policy IHAMA: Parental Notification Relative to Sex Education

In accordance with General Laws Chapter 71, Section 32A, the Winchester School Committee has adopted this policy on the rights of parents and guardians of our students in relation to curriculum that primarily involves human sexual education or human sexuality issues.

At the beginning of each school year, all parents/guardians of students in our schools will be notified in writing of the courses and curriculum we offer that primarily involve human sexual or human

sexuality issues. The Superintendent of Schools will determine the administrator(s) responsible for sending the notice(s). Parents/guardians of students who enroll in school after the start of the school year will be given the written notice at the time of enrollment. If planned curricula change during the school year, to the extent practicable, parents/guardians will be notified of this fact in a timely manner before implementation.

Each such notice to parents/guardians will include a brief description of the curriculum covered by this policy, and will inform parents/guardians that they may:

- (1) Exempt their child from any portion of the curriculum that primarily involves human sexual education or human sexual issues, without penalty to the student, by sending a letter to the school Principal requesting an exemption. Any student who is exempted by request of the parent/guardian under this policy may be given an alternative assignment.
- (2) Inspect and review program instruction materials for these curricula, which will be made reasonably accessible to parents/guardians and others to the extent practicable. Parents/guardians may arrange with the Principal to review the materials at the school and may also review them at other locations that may be determined by the Superintendent of Schools.

A parent/guardian who is dissatisfied with a decision of the Principal concerning notice, access to instructional materials, or exemption for the student under this policy may send a written request to the Superintendent for review of the issue.

The Superintendent or designee will review the issue and give the parent/guardian a timely written decision, preferably within two weeks of the request. A parent/guardian who is dissatisfied with the Superintendent's decision may send a written request to the School Committee for review of the issue. The School Committee will review the issue and give the parent/guardian a timely written decision, preferably within four weeks of the request. A parent/guardian who is still dissatisfied after this process may send a written request to the Commissioner of Education for review of the issue in the dispute.

The Superintendent of Schools will distribute a copy of this policy to each Principal by September 1st of each year.

SOURCE: MASC

REF.: Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Policy IJOC: School Volunteers

It is the policy of the School Committee to encourage volunteer efforts in the schools. Parents/guardians, business representatives, senior citizens, and other community volunteers are recognized as important sources of support and expertise to enhance the instructional program and vital communication links with the community. The volunteer program will be coordinated in cooperation with building administrators.

SOURCE: MASC

CROSS REFS.: ADDA: Background Checks

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Policy IKB: Homework

The term "homework" refers to an assignment to be prepared during a period of supervised study in class or outside of class.

The purposes of homework are to improve the learning processes, to aid in the mastery of skills, and to create and stimulate interest on the part of the student.

Homework is a learning activity which should increase in complexity with the maturity of the student. With increased maturity, learning should become an independent activity. This should be established through consistent assignments which encourage students to investigate for themselves and to work independently as well as with others.

The information for any homework assignment should be clear and specific so that the student can complete the assignment.

Homework assignments should take into consideration individual differences of students such as health, ability, conditions at home, and educational resources at home. Homework should not require the use of reference materials not readily available in most homes, school libraries, or the public library, and should require the use of those materials only when the student has had instruction in the use of them.

There are many other learning activities in the life of a student besides homework. Such things as participating in school activities, pursuing cultural interests, participating in family living, and exploring personal interests should be considered by teachers when planning consistent assignments. Homework is not to be used as a form of punishment under any circumstances.

The School Committee has adopted homework policies and practices for each of the grade levels: Grade K-5; Grade 6-8; Grade 9-12. These more specific homework policies can be found in the School Handbook.

SOURCE: MASC

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Policy JI: Student Rights and Responsibilities

The School Committee has the responsibility to afford students the rights that are theirs by virtue of

guarantees offered under the federal and state constitutions and statutes. In connection with rights, there are responsibilities that must be assumed by students.

Among these rights and responsibilities are the following:

- (1) Civil rights--including the rights to equal educational opportunity and freedom from discrimination; the responsibility not to discriminate against others.
- (2) The right to attend free public schools; the responsibility to attend school regularly and to observe school rules essential for permitting others to learn at school.
- (3) The right to due process of law with respect to suspension, expulsion, and decisions the student believes injure his rights.
- (4) The right to free inquiry and expression; responsibility to observe reasonable rules regarding these rights.
- (5) The right to privacy, which includes privacy with respect to the student's school records.

It is the School Committee's belief that as part of the educational process students should be made aware of their legal rights, and of the legal authority of the School Committee to make and delegate authority to its staff to make rules regarding the orderly operation of the schools.

Students have the right to know the standards of behavior that are expected of them, and the consequences of misbehavior.

The rights and responsibilities of students, including standards of conduct, will be made available to students and their parents through handbooks distributed annually.

SOURCE: MASC

LEGAL REFS.: M.G.L. 71:37H; 71:82 through 71:86

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Policy JICA: Student Dress Code

The responsibility for the dress and appearance of the students will rest with individual students and parents.

They have the right to determine how the student will dress providing that attire is not destructive to school property, complies with requirements for health and safety, and does not cause disorder or disruption. The administration is authorized to take action in instances where individual dress does not meet the stated requirements.

This does not mean that student, faculty, or parent groups may not recommend appropriate dress for school or special occasions. It means that students will not be prevented from attending school or a school function, or otherwise be discriminated against, so long as their dress and appearance meet the requirements set forth above.

SOURCE: MASC

Creating a Respectful and Open World for Natural Hair Act of 2022

CROSS REFS.: HS Student Handbook

MS Student Handbook

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

REVISED: March 28, 2023

Policy JB: Equal Educational Opportunities

In recognition of the diversified characteristics and needs of our students and with the keen desire to be responsive to them, the School Committee will make every effort to protect the dignity of the students as individuals. It also will offer careful consideration and sympathetic understanding of their personal feelings, particularly with reference to their race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, pregnancy or pregnancy-related condition, or physical and intellectual differences.

To accomplish this, the Committee and its staff will make every effort to comply with the letter and the spirit of the Massachusetts equal educational opportunities law, which prohibits discrimination in public school admissions and programs. The law reads as follows:

No child shall be excluded from or discriminated against in admission to a public school of any town, or in obtaining the advantages, privileges and course of study of such public school on account of race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin, pregnancy or pregnancy-related condition, or sexual orientation.

This will mean that every student will be given equal opportunity in school admission, admissions to courses, course content, guidance, and extracurricular and athletic activities.

All implementing provisions issued by the Board of Education in compliance with this law will be followed.

SOURCE: MASC

LEGAL REFS.: Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal

Employment Opportunity Act of 1972

Executive Order 11246, as amended by E.O. 11375 Title IX,

Education Amendments of 1972

M.G.L. 76:5; 76:16 (Chapter 622 of the Acts of 1971) BESE

Regulations 603 CMR 26:00

BESE Regulations 603 CMR 28:00 Pregnant Workers Fairness Act

CROSS REF.: AC: Nondiscrimination

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

REVISED: September 25, 2018

NOTE: The cross reference is to a related statement in this manual. The change in 1993 was to add the classification of sexual orientation in the specific definitions protected by law against discrimination.

Policy JIC: Student Discipline

The School Committee believes that all students deserve every opportunity to achieve academic success in a safe, secure learning environment. Good citizenship in schools is based on respect and consideration for the rights of others. Students will be expected to conduct themselves in a way that the rights and privileges of others are not violated. They will be required to respect constituted authority, to conform to school rules and to those provisions of law that apply to their conduct.

Each Principal shall include prohibited actions in the student handbook or other publication to be made available to students and parents.

Principals and staff shall not use academic punishment of any form as a consequence to inappropriate behaviors/actions by students.

The Principal may, as a disciplinary measure, remove a student from privileges, such as extracurricular activities and attendance at school-sponsored events, based on the student's misconduct. Such a removal is not subject to the remainder of this policy, law, or regulation.

The Superintendent shall provide each Principal with a copy of the regulations promulgated by DESE and shall have each Principal sign a document acknowledging receipt thereof, which shall be placed in their personnel file.

Suspension

In every case of student misconduct for which suspension may be imposed, a Principal shall consider ways to re-engage the student in learning; and avoid using long-term suspension from school as a consequence until alternatives have been tried. Alternatives may include the use of evidence-based strategies and programs such as mediation, conflict resolution, restorative justice, and positive behavioral interventions and supports.

Notice of Suspension

Except for emergency removal or an in-school suspension of less than 10 days, a Principal must provide the student and the parent oral and written notice, and provide the student an opportunity for a hearing and the parent an opportunity to participate in such hearing before imposing suspension as a consequence for misconduct. The Principal shall provide both oral and written notice to student and parent in English and in the primary language of the home if other than English. The notice shall include the rights enumerated in law and regulation. To conduct a hearing without a parent present, the Principal must be able to document reasonable efforts to include the parent.

Emergency Removal

A Principal may remove a student from school temporarily when a student is charged with a disciplinary offense and the continued presence of the student poses a danger to persons or property, or

materially and substantially disrupts the order of the school, and, in the Principal's judgment, there is no alternative available to alleviate the danger or disruption. 1 Except for offenses referenced in the note at the end of this policy.

The Principal shall immediately notify the Superintendent in writing of the removal including a description of the danger presented by the student.

The temporary removal shall not exceed two (2) school days following the day of the emergency removal, during which time the Principal shall: Make immediate and reasonable efforts to orally notify the student and the student's parent of the emergency removal, the reason for the need for emergency removal, and the other matters required in the notice as referenced in the applicable regulation; Provide written notice to the student and parent as required above; Provide the student an opportunity for a hearing with the Principal that complies with applicable regulations, and the parent an opportunity to attend the hearing, before the expiration of the two (2) school days, unless an extension of time for hearing is otherwise agreed to by the Principal, student, and parent; Render a decision orally on the same day as the hearing, and in writing no later than the following school day, which meets the requirements of applicable law and regulation.

A Principal shall also ensure adequate provisions have been made for the student's safety and transportation prior to removal.

In School Suspension – not more than 10 days consecutively or cumulatively

The Principal may use in-school suspension as an alternative to short-term suspension for disciplinary offenses.

The Principal may impose an in-school suspension for a disciplinary offense under this provision, provided that the Principal follows the process set forth in regulation and the student has the opportunity to make academic progress as required by law and regulation.

Principal's Hearing – Short Term Suspension of up to 10 days

The hearing with the Principal shall be to hear and consider information regarding the alleged incident for which the student may be suspended, provide the student an opportunity to dispute the charges and explain the circumstances surrounding the alleged incident, determine if the student committed the disciplinary offense, and if so, the consequences for the infraction.

At a minimum, the Principal shall discuss the disciplinary offense, the basis for the charge, and any other pertinent information.

The student also shall have an opportunity to present information, including mitigating facts, that the Principal should consider in determining whether other remedies and consequences may be appropriate as set forth in law and regulation.

The Principal shall provide the parent, if present, an opportunity to discuss the student's conduct and offer information, including mitigating circumstances, that the Principal should consider in determining consequences for the student.

The Principal shall, based on the available information, including mitigating circumstances, determine whether the student committed the disciplinary offense, and, if so, what remedy or consequence will

be imposed.

The Principal shall notify the student and parent of the determination and the reasons for it, and, if the student is suspended, the type and duration of suspension and the opportunity to make up assignments and such other school work as needed to make academic progress during the period of removal, as required by law and regulation. The determination shall be in writing and may be in the form of an update to the original written notice.

If the student is in a public preschool program or in grades K through 3, the Principal shall send a copy of the written determination to the Superintendent and explain the reasons for imposing an out-of-school suspension, before the short-term suspension takes effect.

Principal's Hearing – Long Term Suspension of more than 10 days but less than 90 days (consecutive or cumulative)

The hearing with the Principal shall be to hear and consider information regarding the alleged incident for which the student may be suspended, provide the student an opportunity to dispute the charges and explain the circumstances surrounding the alleged incident, determine if the student committed the disciplinary offense, and if so, the consequences for the infraction.

At a minimum, in addition to the rights afforded a student in a short-term suspension hearing, the student shall have the following rights: In advance of the hearing, the opportunity to review the student's record and the documents upon which the Principal may rely in making a determination to suspend the student or not; The right to be represented by counsel or a lay person of the student's on their behalf and to present the student's explanation of the alleged incident, but the student may not be compelled to do so; The right to cross-examine witnesses presented by the school district; The right to request that the hearing be recorded by the Principal, and to receive a copy of the audio recording upon request. If the student or parent requests an audio recording, the Principal shall inform all participants before the hearing that an audio record will be made and a copy will be provided to the student and parent upon request.

The Principal shall provide the parent, if present, an opportunity to discuss the student's conduct and offer information, including mitigating circumstances, that the Principal should consider in determining consequences for the student.

The Principal shall, based on the evidence, determine whether the student committed the disciplinary offense, and, if so, after considering mitigating circumstances and alternatives to suspension as required by law and regulation, what remedy or consequence will be imposed, in place of or in addition to a long-term suspension. The Principal shall send the written determination to the student and parent by hand-delivery, certified mail, first-class mail, email to an address provided by the parent for school communications, or any other method of delivery agreed to by the Principal and the parent.

If the Principal decides to suspend the student, the written determination shall: Identify the disciplinary offense, the date on which the hearing took place, and the participants at the hearing; Set out the key facts and conclusions reached by the Principal; Identify the length and effective date of the suspension, as well as a date of return to school; Include notice of the student's opportunity to receive education services to make academic progress during the period of removal from school as required by law and

regulation; Inform the student of the right to appeal the Principal's decision to the Superintendent or designee, but only if the Principal has imposed a long- term suspension. Notice of the right of appeal shall be in English and the primary language of the home if other than English, or other means of communication where appropriate, and shall include the following information: The process for appealing the decision, including that the student or parent must file a written notice of appeal with the Superintendent within five (5) calendar days of the effective date of the long-term suspension; provided that within the five (5) calendar days, the student or parent may request and receive from the Superintendent an extension of time for filing the written notice for up to seven (7) additional calendar days; and that the long-term suspension will remain in effect unless and until the Superintendent decides to reverse the Principal's determination on appeal.

If the student is in a public preschool program or in grades K through 3, the Principal shall send a copy of the written determination to the Superintendent and explain the reasons for imposing an out-of-school suspension before the suspension takes effect.

Superintendent's Hearing

A student who is placed on long-term suspension following a hearing with the Principal shall have the right to appeal the Principal's decision to the Superintendent.

The student or parent shall file a notice of appeal with the Superintendent within the time period noted above (see Principal's hearing – Suspension of more than 10 days). If the appeal is not timely filed, the Superintendent may deny the appeal, or may allow the appeal in their discretion, for good cause.

The Superintendent shall hold the hearing within three (3) school days of the student's request, unless the student or parent requests an extension of up to seven (7) additional calendar days, in which case the Superintendent shall grant the extension.

The Superintendent shall make a good faith effort to include the parent in the hearing. The Superintendent shall be presumed to have made a good faith effort if they have made efforts to find a day and time for the hearing that would allow the parent and Superintendent to participate. The Superintendent shall send written notice to the parent of the date, time, and location of the hearing.

The Superintendent shall conduct a hearing to determine whether the student committed the disciplinary offense of which the student is accused, and if so, what the consequence shall be. The Superintendent shall arrange for an audio recording of the hearing, a copy of which shall be provided to the student or parent upon request. The Superintendent shall inform all participants before the hearing that an audio record will be made of the hearing and a copy will be provided to the student and parent upon request. The student shall have all the rights afforded the student at the Principal's hearing for long-term suspension.

The Superintendent shall issue a written decision within five (5) calendar days of the hearing which meets the requirements of law and regulation. If the Superintendent determines that the student committed the disciplinary offense, the Superintendent may impose the same or a lesser consequence than the Principal, but shall not impose a suspension greater than that imposed by the Principal's decision. The decision of the Superintendent shall be the final decision of the school district with regard to the suspension.

Expulsion

Expulsion is defined as the removal of a student from school for more than ninety (90) school days, indefinitely, or permanently as allowed by law for possession of a dangerous weapon; possession of a controlled substance; assault on a member of the educational staff; or a felony charge or felony delinquency complaint or conviction, or adjudication or admission of guilt with respect to such felony, if a Principal determines that the student's continued presence in school would have a substantial detrimental effect on the general welfare of the school.

Any student expelled from school for such an offense shall be afforded an opportunity to receive educational services and make academic progress.

Academic Progress

Any student who is suspended or expelled shall have the opportunity to earn credits, make up assignments, tests, papers, and other school work as needed to make academic progress during the period of his or her removal from the classroom or school. The Principal shall inform the student and parent of this opportunity in writing, in English and in the primary language of the home, when such suspension or expulsion is imposed.

Any student who is expelled or suspended from school for more than ten (10) consecutive days, whether in school or out of school, shall have an opportunity to receive education services and make academic progress toward meeting state and local requirements, through the school-wide education service plan.

The Principal shall develop a school-wide education service plan describing the education services that the school district will make available to students who are expelled or suspended from school for more than ten (10) consecutive days. The plan shall include the process for notifying such students and their parents of the services and arranging such services. Education services shall be based on, and be provided in a manner consistent with, the academic standards and curriculum frameworks established for all students under the law.

The Principal shall notify the parent and student of the opportunity to receive education services at the time the student is expelled or placed on long-term suspension. Notice shall be provided in English and in the primary language spoken in the student's home if other than English, or other means of communication where appropriate. The notice shall include a list of the specific education services that are available to the student and contact information for a school district staff member who can provide more detailed information.

For each student expelled or suspended from school for more than ten (10) consecutive days, whether in-school or out-of-school, the school district shall document the student's enrollment in education services. For data reporting purposes, the school shall track and report attendance, academic progress, and such other data as directed by the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education.

Reporting

The school district shall collect and annually report data to the DESE regarding in-school suspensions, short- and long-term suspensions, expulsions, emergency removals, access to education services, and such other information as may be required by the DESE.

The Principal of each school shall periodically review discipline data by selected student populations, including but not limited to race and ethnicity, gender, socioeconomic status, English language learner

status, and student with a disability status in accordance with law and regulation.

SOURCE: MASC October 2014

LEGAL REFS.: M.G.L. 71:37H; 71:37H ½; 71:37H ¾; 76:17; 603 CMR 53.00

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

NOTE: The DESE regulations on student discipline and this policy, consistent with law, set forth the minimum procedural requirements applicable to the suspension of a student for a disciplinary offense other than: possession of a dangerous weapon; possession of a controlled substance; assault on a member of the educational staff; or a felony charge or felony delinquency complaint or conviction, or adjudication or admission of guilt with respect to such felony, if a Principal determines that the student's continued presence in the school would have a substantial detrimental effect on the general welfare of the school, as provided in M.G.L. c. 71, S. 37H or 37H1/2. The Principal, pursuant to the previously referenced statute may remove a student who has committed any of the disciplinary offenses above referenced from school for more than 90 days in a school year. Except that the removal from school for such offenses is subject to the provision of continuing educational services needed to make academic progress and, the requirement that all school districts regardless of the type of offense shall report school discipline data and analysis to DESE. Also, the prohibited actions above referenced are subject to the provision that allows the Commissioner to investigate each school that has a significant number of students suspended and expelled for more than 10 cumulative days in a school year and to make recommendations thereon.

Policy JICC (Also EEAEC): Student Conduct on School Buses

The School Committee and school staff share with students and parents the responsibility for student safety during transportation to and from school. The authority for enforcing School Committee requirements of student conduct on buses will rest with the Principal.

To ensure the safety of all students who ride in buses, it may occasionally be necessary to revoke the privilege of transportation from a student who abuses this privilege. Parents of children whose behavior and misconduct on school buses endangers the health, safety, and welfare of other riders will be notified that their children face the loss of transportation privileges in accordance with regulations approved by the School Committee.

SOURCE: MASC

CROSS REF.: JICFB: Anti-Bullying

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Policy JICC-R (also EEAEC-R): Student Conduct on School Buses

Procedures for Drivers and Parents

In case of any misconduct on a bus, the incident will be reported on the proper form to the school principal or assistant principal. They will report the incident in writing to the parent concerned, with a

copy to the transportation office.

In case of a repetition by the same student, the principal or assistant principal will suspend the student's transportation privileges with written notice to the parent. Bus privileges may be denied permanently if a third incident occurs, following a conference with the Superintendent of Schools or designee. The responsibility for transportation will rest with the parent if the privilege is denied.

Loading and Unloading at Bus Stop

Riders must be on time. Bus drivers will not wait. Riders will enter or leave the bus at regular stops only.

Orderly behavior and respect for private property will be required.

Instructions and directions of the driver must be followed by the riders when entering or leaving the bus and while in transit.

Required Conduct Aboard the Bus

Riders must remain in seats when the bus is in motion. Whistling and shouting are not permitted. Eating on the school bus is not permitted. Profanity and obscene language are forbidden. Smoking/drugs/alcohol are prohibited.

The following disturbances are prohibited: Harassment of others; Bullying; Pushing or wrestling; Annoying other passengers or disturbing their possessions; Talking to the driver; Throwing objects within the bus or out of windows; Climbing over seats; Opening or closing windows, Leaning out of windows; Littering.

Please note: Parents of students suspended or expelled from the bus for misbehavior will not be eligible for a refund of bus fees paid.

Parents and students will be informed of these regulations at the beginning of each school year. The same standards of conduct and any written rules, which apply during the school day, will apply on the buses.

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: November 24, 2015

Policy JICFA: Prohibition of Hazing

In accordance with Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 536 of the Acts of 1985, the School Committee hereby deems that no student, employee or school organization under the control of the School Committee shall engage in the activity of hazing a student while on or off school property, or at a school sponsored event regardless of the location. No organization that uses the facilities or grounds under the control of the School Committee shall engage in the activity of hazing any person while on school property.

Any student who observes what appears to them to be the activity of hazing another student or person should report such information to the Principal including the time, date, location, names of identifiable participants and the types of behavior exhibited. Students and employees of the District are obligated by law to report incidents of hazing to the police department.

Any student who is present at a hazing has the obligation to report such an incident. Failure to do so may result in disciplinary action by the school against that student and could involve suspension from school for up to three days.

Any student who participates in the hazing of another student or other person may, upon the approval of the Superintendent of Schools, be suspended from school for up to ten (10) school days.

Any student determined by the Principal to be the organizer of a hazing activity may be recommended for expulsion from school but will receive no less disciplinary action than that of a participant.

In all cases relating to hazing, students will receive procedural due process.

SOURCE: MASC

LEGAL REF.: M.G.L. 269:17, 18, 19

CROSS REF.: JICFA-E: Hazing

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Policy JICFA-E: Hazing

CH. 269, S.17. Crime of Hazing, Definition, Penalty

Whoever is a principal organizer or participant in the crime of hazing as defined herein shall be punished by a fine of not more than three thousand dollars or by imprisonment in a house of correction for not more than one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

The term "hazing" as used in this section and in sections eighteen and nineteen, shall mean any conduct or method of initiation into any student organization, whether on public or private property, which willfully or recklessly endangers the physical or mental health of any student or other person. Such conduct shall include whipping, beating, branding, forced calisthenics, exposure to the weather, forced consumption of any food, liquor, beverage, drug or other substance, or any other brutal treatment or forced physical activity which is likely to adversely affect the physical health or safety of any such student or other person, or which subjects such student or other person to extreme mental stress, including extended deprivation of sleep or rest or extended isolation. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this section to be contrary, consent shall not be available as a defense to any prosecution under this action.

CH. 269, S.18. Duty to Report Hazing

Whoever knows that another person is the victim of hazing as defined in section seventeen and is at the scene of such crime shall, to the extent that such person can do so without danger or peril to themself or others, report such crime to an appropriate law enforcement official as soon as reasonably practicable. Whoever fails to report such crime shall be punished by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars.

CH. 269, S.19. Hazing Statues to be Provided; Statement of Compliance and Discipline Policy Required

Each secondary school and each public and private school or college shall issue to every group or organization under its authority or operating on or in conjunction with its campus or school, and to every member, plebe, pledge or applicant for membership in such group or organization, a copy of this section and sections seventeen and eighteen. An officer of each such group or organization, and each individual receiving a copy of said sections seventeen and eighteen shall sign an acknowledgment stating that such group, organization or individual has received a copy of said sections seventeen and eighteen.

Each secondary school and each public or private school or college shall file, at least annually, a report with the regents of higher education and in the case of secondary schools, the Board of Education, certifying that such institution has complied with the provisions of this section and also certifying that said school has adopted a disciplinary policy with regards to the organizers and participants of hazing. The Board of Regents and, in the case of secondary schools, the Board of Education shall promulgate regulations governing the content and frequency of such reports, and shall forthwith report to the attorney general any such institution which fails to make such a report.

SOURCE: MASC

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Policy JICG: Smoking on School Premises

Use of any tobacco products as well as e-cigarettes and other nicotine delivery products within the school buildings, school facilities, or on school grounds or school buses by any individual, including school personnel and students, is prohibited at all times.

A student determined to be in violation of this policy shall be subject to disciplinary action pursuant to the student discipline code.

This policy shall be promulgated to all students in appropriate handbook(s) and publications.

SOURCE: MASC

LEGAL REF: M.G.L. 71:37H

CROSS REFS.: ADC: Smoking on School Premises

GBED: Smoking on School Grounds by Staff Members

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Policy JICH: Alcohol, Tobacco, and Drug Use by Students Prohibited

In view of the fact that the use of alcohol can endanger the health and safety of the user, and

recognizing the deleterious effect the use of alcoholic beverages can have on the maintenance of general order and discipline, the School Committee prohibits the use of, serving of, or consumption of any alcoholic beverage on school property or at any school function.

Additionally, any student, regardless of age, who has been drinking alcoholic beverages prior to attendance at, or participation in, a school-sponsored activity, will be barred from that activity and subject to disciplinary action.

A student shall not, regardless of the quantity, use or consume, possess, buy or sell, or give away any beverage containing alcohol; any tobacco product, including vapor/E-cigarettes; marijuana; steroids; or any controlled substance. The School Committee prohibits the use or consumption by students of alcohol, tobacco products, or drugs on school property or at any school function.

Additionally, any student who is under the influence of drugs or alcoholic beverages prior to, or during, attendance at or participation in a school-sponsored activity, will be barred from that activity and may be subject to disciplinary action.

This policy shall be posted on the district's website and notice shall be provided to all students and parents of this policy in accordance with state law. Additionally, the district shall file a copy of this policy with DESE in accordance with law in a manner requested by DESE.

SOURCE: MASC March 2016

LEGAL REFS.: M.G.L.71:2A; 71:96; 272:40A

CROSS REFS.: IHAMB: Teaching About Alcohol, Tobacco and Drugs

GBEC: Drug Free Workplace Policy

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015 AMENDED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: May 10, 2016

Policy JIH: Searches and Interrogations

Searches by Staff

The right of inspection of students' school lockers is inherent in the authority granted school committees and administrators. This authority may be exercised as needed in the interest of safeguarding children, staff, their own, and school property.

Nevertheless, exercise of that authority by school officials places unusual demands upon their judgment so as to protect each child's constitutional rights to personal privacy and protection from coercion and to act in the best Searches by school officials of students' automobiles or the student will be conducted in a way that protects the students' rights consistent with the responsibility of the school system to provide an atmosphere conducive to the educational process.

Interrogations by Police

The schools have legal custody of students during the school day and during hours of approved

extracurricular activities. It is the responsibility of the school administration to make an effort to protect each student's rights with respect to interrogations by law enforcement officials. Therefore:

- (1) When law enforcement officials find it necessary to question students during the school day or periods of extracurricular activities, the school Principal or their designee will be present when possible. An effort will be made to contact the student's parent or guardian so that the responsible individual may be notified of the situation.
- (2) If custody and/or arrest are involved, the Principal will request that all procedural safeguards, as prescribed by law, be observed by the law enforcement officials.

SOURCE: MASC

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Policy JJIC: Inclusive Sports and Extracurricular activity Participation Policy

Administrators, school staff, volunteers, students and others who interact with students (WPS community members) must be respectful of the ways in which individual people ask to be identified and, in general, employ the terms that WPS community members use to describe themselves. This policy extends to interscholastic athletic and extracurricular participation because they are valuable to students' physical, intellectual, social, and/or character development. Guided by our value of inclusion and in compliance with all applicable laws, our policy ensures that students can participate in athletics and extracurricular activities in a manner consistent with their gender identity.

Gender Identity-Based Participation

All students shall have the opportunity to participate in Winchester Public Schools' athletic and extracurricular activities in a manner that is consistent with their gender identity, irrespective of the gender listed on a student's records and without prior medical or mental health care.

Eligibility to participate. A student has the right to participate in athletics and extracurricular activities in a manner consistent with the gender listed on their school records. A student whose gender identity is different than the gender listed on the student's registration records shall have the right to participate in a manner consistent with their stated gender identity. For students whose school records indicate "non-binary" the student has the right to participate in sports teams of either gender; however, pursuant to MIAA policy, students are not permitted to try out simultaneously for MIAA sports teams of both genders.

If a student has an athletics issue under this policy, the student and/or the student's parent/guardian/caregiver shall contact the athletic director. If a student has an extracurricular activity issue under this policy, the student and/or the student's parent/guardian/caregiver shall contact the principal.

Inclusion

The Winchester Public Schools endorse the following policies to ensure the full inclusion of students participating in Winchester Public Schools' athletic and extracurricular activities.

(1) Changing Areas, Toilets, and Showers. Students shall be able to use the locker room, shower, and toilet facilities consistent with the student's gender identity. Every student

- has the right to access a private enclosed changing area, shower, and toilet. No student shall be required to use separate facilities. Upon a student's request, any student who is uncomfortable using a shared facility, regardless of the reason, shall be provided with a safe and non-stigmatizing alternative.
- (2) Hotel Rooms. Students shall be assigned to share hotel rooms based on their gender identity, with a recognition that any student who needs extra privacy should be accommodated whenever possible.
- (3) Language: Affirmed Names and Pronouns. A student may have a name and pronouns that are different from what may be indicated by the student's school records. Coaches, administrators, officials, and other individuals engaged in student sports or extracurricular activities will endeavor to ensure that the student's affirmed name and pronouns are made known to and respected by others including teammates, opponents, fans, volunteers, announcers, etc.
- (4) Dress codes and team uniforms. All students shall have access to uniforms that are appropriate for their sport/activity and that they feel comfortable wearing provided it maintains compliance with MIAA and National Federation sport specific uniform regulations. No student shall be required to wear a gendered uniform that conflicts with the student's gender identity. Dress codes for athletic teams when traveling or during a game day at school shall be gender-neutral. Instead of requiring a girls' or women's team to wear dresses or skirts, for example, school leaders, coaches or athletic directors may ask that team members wear clothes that are clean, neat, well cared for and appropriately "dressy" for representing their school and team.
- (5) Competition at another school. When discussing competitions and student expectations, decisions shall be made in consultation with the student and without violating a student's confidentiality or privacy. If requested by the student, school leaders, athletic directors, and coaches should communicate with their counterparts at other schools prior to competitions in which a transgender or gender expansive student is participating about expectations for treatment of the student to ensure access to appropriate changing, showering, or bathroom facilities, and to request the use of affirmed names and pronouns by coaches, opponents, officials, announcers, fans, media and other individuals engaged in student sports or extracurricular activities.
- (6) Training and Education: The District shall provide culturally competent training regarding this policy to all staff, including but not limited to athletic department staff, coaches and extracurricular advisors, and to all students, including athletic captains or extracurricular leaders, on an annual basis as well as at the start of each athletic season for the student-athletes. This policy shall be distributed to all staff, students and parents and posted on the District's website.

CROSS REFS.: ACA-1 Gender Identity Policy MIAA Policy 28.3

LEGAL REFS.: An Act Relative to Gender Identity (Chapter 199 of the Acts of

2011) MGL c.4, §5 MGL c. 76, § 5 603 CMR 26.00 603 CMR 1.00 603 CMR 23.00 603 CMR § 23.04 603 CMR §§23.01

and 23.07.

The Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 USC

1232g

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: April 23, 2019

Policy JJIF: Athletic Concussion Policy

The purpose of this policy is to provide information and standardized procedures for persons involved in the prevention, training management and return to activity decisions regarding students who incur head injuries while involved in extracurricular athletic activities (1) including, but not limited to, interscholastic sports, in order to protect their health and safety as required by Massachusetts law and regulations. The requirements of the law apply to all public middle and high schools, however configured, serving grades six through high school graduation. In addition to any training required by law, the following persons shall complete one of the head injury safety training programs approved by the Massachusetts Department of Public Health (DPH) as found on its website: coaches; certified athletic trainers; trainers; volunteers; school and team physicians; school nurses; athletic directors; directors responsible for a school marching band; employees or volunteers; and students who participate in an extracurricular activity and their parents.

Upon the adoption of this policy by the School Committee, the Superintendent shall ensure that DPH receives an affirmation on school district letterhead that the district has developed policies and the School Committee has adopted a final policy in accordance with law. This affirmation shall be updated by September 30, 2013 and every two years thereafter upon review or revision of its policies.

The Superintendent shall maintain or cause to be maintained complete and accurate records of the district's compliance with the requirements of the Concussion Law, and shall maintain the following records for three years or, at a minimum, until the student graduates, unless state or federal law requires a longer retention period:

- -Verifications of completion of annual training and receipt of materials;
- -DPH Pre-participation forms and receipt of materials;
- -DPH Report of Head Injury Forms, or school based equivalents;
- -DPH Medical Clearance and Authorization Forms, or school based equivalents; and
- -Graduated reentry plans for return to full academic and extracurricular athletic activities.

This policy also applies to volunteers who assist with extracurricular athletic activities. Such volunteers shall not be liable for civil damages arising out of any act or omission relating to the requirements of law, unless such volunteer is willfully or intentionally negligent in his act or omission. (1) Extracurricular Athletic Activity means an organized school sponsored athletic activity generally occurring outside of school instructional hours under the direction of a coach, athletic director or marching band leader including, but not limited to, Alpine and Nordic skiing and snowboarding, baseball, basketball, cheerleading, cross country track, fencing, field hockey, football, golf, gymnastics, horseback riding, ice hockey, lacrosse, marching band, rifle, rugby, soccer, skating, softball, squash, swimming and diving, tennis, track (indoor and outdoor), ultimate Frisbee, volleyball, water polo, and wrestling. All interscholastic athletics are deemed to be extracurricular athletic activities.

Most student athletes who sustain a concussion can fully recover as long as their brain has time to heal before sustaining another hit; however, relying only on an athlete's self-report of symptoms to determine injury recovery is inadequate as many middle school and high school athletes are not aware

of the signs and symptoms or the severity concussive injuries pose, or they may feel pressure from coaches, parents, and/or teammates to return to play as quickly as possible. One or more of these factors will likely result in under-diagnosing the injury and a premature return to play. Massachusetts General Laws and Department of Public Health regulations make it imperative to accurately assess and treat student athletes when concussions are suspected.

Student athletes who sustain concussions may appear to be "fine" on the outside, when in actuality they have a brain injury and are not able to return to play and/or school activities and academics. Incurring a second concussion can prove to be devastating to a student athlete. Research has shown that young concussed athletes who return to play before their brain has healed are highly vulnerable to more prolonged post-concussion syndrome or, in rare cases, a catastrophic neurological injury known as Second Impact Syndrome.

The following protocol will discuss and outline what a concussion is, the mechanism of injury, signs and symptoms, management and return to play requirements, as well as information on Second Impact Syndrome and post-concussion syndrome. Lastly, this policy will discuss the importance of education for our athletes, coaches and parents and other persons required by law.

This protocol should be reviewed on a yearly basis with all staff to discuss the procedures to be followed to manage sports-related concussions. This protocol will also be reviewed on a yearly basis by the athletic department as well as by nursing staff. Any changes in this document will be approved by the school committee and given to athletic staff, including coaches and other school personnel in writing. An accurate synopsis of this policy shall be placed in the student and faculty handbooks.

LEGAL REFS.: M.G.L. 111:222; 105 CMR 201.000

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Concussion Protocol

McCall Middle School follows the Return to the Classroom Protocol for Concussions outlined here.

Policy JICFB: Anti-Bullying

The Winchester Public Schools is committed to providing a safe, positive and productive educational environment where students can achieve the highest academic standards. No student shall be subjected to harassment, intimidation, bullying, or cyber-bullying within the school community.

"Bullying" is the repeated use by one or more students or by a school staff member of a written, verbal, or electronic expression, or a physical act or gesture, or any combination thereof, directed at a target that:

- -causes physical or emotional harm to the target or damage to the target's property;
- -places the target in reasonable fear of harm to themself, or of damage to their property;
- -creates a hostile environment at school for the target;
- -infringes on the rights of the target at school; or
- -materially and substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school.

"Cyber-bullying" means bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication, which shall include, but shall not be limited to, any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, or data.

Cyber-bullying shall also include the creation of a web page or blog in which the creator assumes the identity of another person or the knowing impersonation of another person as author of posted content or messages, if the creation or impersonation creates any of the conditions enumerated in the definition of bullying.

Cyber-bullying shall also include the distribution by electronic means of a communication to more than one person or the posting of material on an electronic medium that may be accessed by one or more persons, if the distribution or posting creates any of the conditions enumerated in the definition of bullying.

Bullying and cyber-bullying may occur in and out of school, during and after school hours, at home and in locations outside of the home. When bullying and cyber-bullying are alleged, the full cooperation and assistance of parents and families are expected. For the purpose of this policy, whenever the term bullying is used it is to denote either bullying, or cyber-bullying.

Bullying is prohibited:

- -On school grounds;
- -On Property immediately adjacent to school grounds;
- -At school-sponsored or school-related activities;
- -At functions or programs whether on or off school grounds;
- -At school bus stops;
- -On school buses or other vehicles owned, leased or used by the school district; or,
- -Through the use of technology or an electronic device owned, leased or used by the Winchester Public Schools;

Bullying and cyber-bullying are prohibited at a location, activity, function of program that is not school-related or through the use of technology or an electronic device that is not owned, leased or used by the Winchester School district if the act or acts in question:

- -Create a hostile environment at school for the target;
- -Infringe on the rights of the target at school; and/or
- -Materially and substantially disrupt the education process or the orderly operation of a school.

Prevention and Intervention Plan

The superintendent and/or their designee shall oversee the development, monitor and update a prevention and intervention plan, in consultation with all district stakeholders, which may include teachers, school staff, professional support personnel, school volunteers, administrators, community representatives, local law enforcement agencies, students, parents and guardians, consistent with the requirements of this policy, as well as state and federal laws. The bullying prevention and intervention plan shall be updated at least biennially.

The Principal is responsible for the implementation and oversight of the bullying prevention and implementation plan within his or her school.

Reporting

Students, who believe that they are a target of bullying, observe an act of bullying, or who have reasonable grounds to believe that these behaviors are taking place, are obligated to report incidents to a member of the school staff. The target shall, however, not be subject to discipline for failing to report bullying.

Each school shall have a means for anonymous reporting by students of incidents of bullying. No formal disciplinary action shall be taken solely on the basis of an anonymous report.

Any student who knowingly makes a false accusation of bullying shall be subject to disciplinary action.

Parents or guardians, or members of the community, are encouraged to report an incident of bullying as soon as possible.

A member of a school staff shall immediately report any instance of bullying the staff member has witnessed or become aware of to the school principal or their designee.

Investigation Procedures

The Principal or their designee, upon receipt of a viable report, shall promptly contact the parents or guardians of a student who has been the alleged target or alleged perpetrator of bullying. The actions being taken to prevent further acts of bullying shall be discussed.

The school principal or a designee shall promptly investigate the report of bullying, using a Bullying/Cyber-bullying Report Form which may include interviewing the alleged target, alleged perpetrator, staff members, students and/or witnesses.

Support staff shall assess an alleged target's needs for protection and create and implement a safety plan that shall restore a sense of safety for that student.

Confidentiality shall be used to protect a person who reports bullying, provides information during an investigation of bullying, or is witness to or has reliable information about an act of bullying.

If the school principal or a designee determines that bullying has occurred they shall take appropriate disciplinary action and if it is believed that criminal charges may be pursued against the perpetrator, the principal shall consult with the school's resource and the Superintendent to determine if criminal charges are warranted. If it is determined that criminal charges are warranted, the local law enforcement agency shall be notified.

The investigation shall be completed within fourteen school days from the date of the report. The parents or guardians shall be contacted upon completion of the investigation and informed of the results, including whether the allegations were found to be factual, whether a violation of this policy was found, and whether disciplinary action has or shall be taken. At a minimum the Principal or their designee shall contact the parents or guardians as to the status of the investigation on a weekly basis.

Disciplinary actions for students who have committed an act of bullying or retaliation shall be in accordance with district disciplinary policies.

Each school shall document any incident of bullying that is reported per this policy and a file shall be maintained by the principal or designee. A monthly report shall be provided to the Superintendent.

Confidentiality shall be maintained to the extent consistent with the school's obligations under law.

Retaliation

Retaliation against a person who reports bullying, provides information during an investigation of bullying, or witnesses or has reliable information about bullying shall be prohibited.

Target Assistance

The Winchester Public Schools shall provide counseling or referral to appropriate services, including guidance, academic intervention, and protection to students, both targets and perpetrators, affected by bullying, as necessary.

Training and Assessment

Annual training shall be provided for school employees and volunteers who have significant contact with students in preventing, identifying, responding to, and reporting incidents of bullying.

Age-appropriate, evidence-based instruction on bullying prevention shall be incorporated into the curriculum for all K to 12 students.

Publication and Notice

Annual written notice of the relevant sections of the bullying prevention and intervention plan shall be provided to students and their parents or guardians, in age-appropriate terms.

Annual written notice of the bullying prevention and intervention plan shall be provided to all school staff. The faculty and staff at each school shall be trained annually on the bullying prevention and intervention plan applicable to the school.

Relevant sections of the bullying prevention and intervention plan relating to the duties of faculty and staff shall be included in the school employee handbook.

The bullying prevention and intervention plan shall be posted on the Winchester Public Schools website.

REFERENCES: Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary

Education's Model Bullying Prevention and Intervention

Plan

LEGAL REFS.: Title VII, Section 703, Civil rights Act of 1964 as amended

Federal Regulation 74676 issued by EEO Commission

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972

603 CMR 26:00 MGL 71:370

MGL 265.43, 43A MGL 268:13B MGL 269:14A

CROSS REFS.: AC: Nondiscrimination

ACAB: Sexual Harassment

JBA: Student-to-Student Harassment JICC, Student Conduct on School Buses

JICFA: Prohibition of Hazing JK: Student Discipline Regulations

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015 EDITED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 13, 2023

Policy JRA: Student Records

In order to provide students with appropriate instruction and educational services, it is necessary for the school system to maintain extensive and sometimes personal information about them and their families. It is essential that pertinent information in these records be readily available to appropriate school personnel, be accessible to the student's parents or legal guardian and/or the student in accordance with law, and yet be guarded as confidential information.

The Superintendent will provide for the proper administration of student records in keeping with state and federal requirements, and shall obtain a copy of the state student records regulations. The temporary record of each student enrolled on or after June 2002 will be destroyed no later than seven years after the student transfers, graduates or withdraws from the School District. Written notice to the eligible student and their parent / guardian of the approximate date of destruction of the temporary record and their right to receive the information in whole or in part, shall be made at the time of such transfer, graduation, or withdrawal. The student's transcript may only be destroyed 60 years following their graduation, transfer, or withdrawal from the school system.

The Committee wishes to make clear that all individual student records of the school system are confidential. This extends to giving out individual addresses and telephone numbers.

SOURCE: MASC

LEGAL REFS.: Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974,

P.L. 93-380, Amended P.L. 103-382, 1994

M.G.L. 66:10 71:34A, B, D, E, H

Board of Education Student Record Regulations adopted

2/10/77, June1995 as amended June 2002.

603 CMR: Dept. of Elementary and Secondary Education

23.00 through 23:12

CROSS REF: KDB: Public's Right to Know

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015 REVISED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: January 9, 2025

Policy IJNDB: Student Acceptance Use Policy

Introduction

This Technology Acceptable Use Policy for the Winchester Public Schools (WPS) is enacted by the School Committee to provide the parents, students, and staff of the Winchester School Community with a statement of purpose and explanation of the use of technology within the Winchester learning community. This policy is reinforced by practice, acceptable use standards and is required to be read before accessing the technology devices, digital resources, and network infrastructure of the Winchester Public Schools. Students and parents/ guardians as well as all staff members of WPS must also read and sign the accompanying Statement of Responsibilities.

Purpose

The Winchester Public Schools encourages the use of information technology to assist staff and students with academic success, preparation for the workplace, and lifelong learning. The Winchester Public Schools provides access to a wide range of information technology to support teaching and learning, and communicating and collaborating with others. Information technology will be used to increase communication, enhance student engagement, and assist staff and students in acquiring new skills. The technology devices, digital resources, and network infrastructure will also be utilized to provide relevant school information to a global community.

Implementation of this Policy

The Superintendent of Schools or their designee(s), shall develop and implement administrative regulations, procedures, terms and conditions for use and user agreements consistent with the purposes and mission of the Winchester Public Schools as well as with applicable laws and this policy.

Definitions

"Technology devices, digital resources, and network infrastructure" is defined as the Winchester Public Schools network, the Internet, Google Apps for Education, email, hardware, software, printers, peripheral devices, individual computer devices, and web enabled devices.

"Information technology" is defined as Internet access, blogging, podcasting, email, published and non- published documents, and various forms of multimedia technology.

"Educational use" is defined as a use that supports communication, research, and learning.

"Devices" refer to district owned/leased, staff owned devices, and student owned devices.

Children's Online Privacy Protection Act (COPPA)

Congress enacted the Children's Online Privacy Protection Act, 15 U.S.C. §6501, et seq. (COPPA) in 1998. COPPA required the Federal Trade Commission to issue and enforce regulations concerning children's online privacy. The Commission's original COPPA Rule became effective on April 21, 2000. The Commission issued an amended Rule on December 19, 2012 that became effective on July 1, 2013.

Winchester Public Schools works diligently to comply with COPPA requirements. Winchester Public Schools does not collect student personal information or transmit such information directly to online entities for the purpose of creating web based accounts. In cases of web based account creation,

Winchester Public Schools will use an internal school district identification number to represent each student user.

Technology Related Services Provided by the Winchester Public Schools

What are Google Apps for Education?

Winchester Public Schools provides staff and students with a Google Apps for Education account. Google Apps is a free web based suite of programs provided by Google for schools to use. All staff and students in Winchester Public Schools have access to Google Apps for Education. Google Apps includes such programs as Google Drive, Google Calendar, and Google Gmail.

All of the Google Apps services can be accessed from anywhere you have an Internet connection (school, home, smart phone, etc.) This reduces and replaces the need for flash drives and/or external data drives. Since Google Apps is all online, it is the same everywhere you use it. There is no issue with having one version of a program at home and a different version at school. Google Apps allows users to easily share documents and files with teachers and other students, so users can turn in assignments electronically and collaborate on projects with classmates.

WPS Student Google Account Setup

WPS student accounts are created using only student local identification numbers and year of graduation. The student's username is his or her local student ID, such as 123456

Gmail

Gmail is the powerful Email program that comes with Google Apps for Education. With Gmail users can communicate with staff and students within the Winchester Public Schools domain.

Google Calendar

Google Calendar allows users to maintain multiple calendars for all needs. Users can keep calendars private, or they can share them with others determined by the user. Users can also invite people to specific events on your calendar.

Google Drive

Google Drive gives all users unlimited cloud storage space for most file formats. Google Drive can be accessed from any computer with an Internet connection. Google Drive allows users to access and share files from any device that has Internet connectivity.

Google Drive includes, but is not limited to, the following programs:

- -Google Docs: word processor similar to Microsoft Word
- -Google Slides: multimedia presentation tool similar to Microsoft PowerPoint -Google Sheets: spreadsheet program similar to Microsoft Excel
- -Google Forms: survey/data collection tool for creating forms and collecting data from an audience Google Drawings simple graphic design program

Uses for Student Gmail

Email can be a powerful communication tool for students to increase communication and collaboration. Students are encouraged to check their email regularly. Teachers may send email to middle and high school students to communicate reminders, course content, pose questions related to class work, and such. Students may send email to their teachers with questions or comments regarding

class. Students may send email to other students to collaborate on group projects and assist with school classes.

Student Gmail Permissions

Winchester Public Schools' Gmail system controls who email messages can be sent to and who they can be received from. WPS Students cannot send email to parent accounts or anyone outside of the Winchester Public Schools domain. All WPS students cannot receive email from outside of the domain. Therefore, students should not use their WPS email for setting up accounts that need to be verified via email or receive notices via email (unless directed by faculty).

Student Emails to Staff

Students are encouraged to email staff concerning school related content and questions. However, there will be no requirement or expectation for staff to answer student emails outside of their regular work day, although they certainly may if they choose. For example, an unanswered email to a teacher would not excuse a student from turning in an assignment.

General Email and Online Chat Guidelines

Below is a general summary of guidelines related to email and any form of online chat or instant messages:

- -Email and online chat are to be used for school related communication.
- -Do not send harassing emails or instant messages or content.
- -Do not send offensive email or instant messages or content.
- -Do not send spam emails or instant messages or content.
- -Do not send email or instant messages containing a virus or other malicious content.
- -Do not send or read email or instant messages at inappropriate times, such as during class instruction.
- -Do not send email or instant messages to share test answers or promote cheating in any way.
- -Do not use the account of another person.

Content Filtering

The Winchester Public Schools uses software designed to block access to certain sites and filter content as required by the Children's Internet Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. §254 (CIPA). Winchester Public Schools is aware that not all inappropriate information can be filtered and the district will make an effort to correct any known gaps in the filtering of information without unduly inhibiting the educational use of age appropriate content by staff and students. Users will inform teachers or administrators of any inadvertent access to inappropriate material, in order that there is appropriate modification of the filtering profile.

Winchester Public Schools educates students about appropriate online behavior, including interacting with other individuals on social networking Web sites and in chat rooms and cyber bullying awareness and response. WPS provides these educational opportunities as part of the Winchester Public Schools K12 Information and Digital Literacy Goals.

Monitoring

The Winchester Public Schools monitors the use of the school department's network to protect the integrity and optimal operation of all computer and system networks. There is no expectation of privacy related to information stored and transmitted over the Winchester Public Schools network. The

information on the network in general files and email is not private and is subject to review by the network manager at the request of the Winchester Public Schools administration to substantiate inappropriate activity and to comply with requests of law enforcement agencies as part of their investigations.

The Winchester Public Schools will cooperate with copyright protection agencies investigating copyright infringement by users of the computer systems and network of the Winchester Public Schools.

Technicians and computer system administrators maintain full access rights to all storage devices, and may need to access/manage such storage devices as part of their duties.

Routine maintenance and monitoring of the system may lead to discovery that a user has or is violating the Winchester Public Schools Technology Acceptable Use Policy, other school committee policies, state laws, or federal laws.

Search of particular files of a user shall be conducted if there is a reasonable suspicion that a user has violated the law or Winchester School Committee Policies. The investigation will be reasonable and in the context of the nature of the alleged policy violation.

Email that is sent within the WPS district is monitored and filtered based upon content. Rules/filters are set up to monitor student email for profanity, harassment, and other inappropriate content. Student email that is identified as inappropriate will be reviewed by the school administration.

User Access and Explanation of Guideline

Access to information technology through the Winchester Public Schools is a privilege, not a right. Students, parents, and staff shall be required to read2t8h0e WPS Technology Acceptable Use Policy and sign and return the Statement of Responsibilities.

The Winchester Public School Acceptable Use Policy shall govern all use of technology devices, digital resources, and network infrastructure. Student use of technology resources, digital resources, web enabled devices, and network infrastructure will be governed by the Winchester School committee disciplinary policies as outlined in the policy manual of the district and the student's school handbook.

Because information technology is constantly changing, not all circumstances can be anticipated or addressed in this policy. All users are expected to understand and comply with both the "letter" and the "spirit" of this policy and show good judgment in their use of these resources.

The Winchester Public Schools provides students access to its technology devices, digital resources, and network infrastructure, along with information technology for educational use. If a student has doubts regarding whether a resource has educational merit, they should ask a staff member.

Scope of Technology Policies

Policies, guidelines and rules refer to all computing devices including but not limited to computers, mobile web enabled devices, iPads, MP3 players, portable memory storage devices, calculators with interfacing capability, cell phones or ECDs (electronic communication devices), digital cameras, etc., as well as technology infrastructure, associated peripheral devices and/or software.

Policies, guidelines, and rules refer to any computing or telecommunication devices owned by, leased by, in the possession of, or being used by students and/or staff that are operated on the grounds of any district facility or connected to any equipment at any district facility by means of web connection, direct connection, telephone line or other common carrier or any type of connection including both hardwired, fiber, infrared and/or wireless.

This Technology Acceptable Use Policy also applies to any online service provided directly or indirectly by the district for student use, including but not limited to: Google Apps for Education accounts, Email, Calendar, and the student management systems.

Expectation of Privacy

At any time and without prior notice, the WPS reserves the right to monitor, inspect, copy, review, and store any and all usage of technology devices, digital resources, and network infrastructure, along with information technology as well as any information sent or received in connection with this usage. Staff and students should not have any expectation of privacy regarding such materials.

Consequences for Violation of Technology Policies

Use of the computer network and Internet is an integral part of research and class work, but abuse of this technology can result in loss of privileges. Students who use technology devices, digital resources, and network infrastructure, along with information technology inappropriately may lose their access privileges and may face additional disciplinary or legal action.

The length of time for loss of privileges will be determined by building administrators and/or other staff members. If the user is guilty of multiple violations, privileges can be removed for one year or more.

Unacceptable Uses of Technology Resources

Inappropriate technology use includes but is not limited to the following:

Interfering with the normal functioning of devices, computer systems, or computer networks. Damaging or theft of devices, computer systems, or computer networks. Accessing, modifying, or deleting files/data that do not belong to you. Sending or publishing offensive or harassing messages and content.

Accessing dangerous information that, if acted upon, could cause damage or danger to others.

Giving your username or password to any other student, or using the username or password of someone else to access any part of the system. Sharing and/or distribution of passwords or using another student or faculty member's password. Intentional viewing, downloading or distribution of inappropriate and/or offensive materials. Gaining unauthorized access to computer and or telecommunications networks and resources.

Viewing, transmitting or downloading pornographic, obscene, vulgar and/or indecent materials. Using obscene language, harassing, insulting or bullying others, posting of private or personal information about another person, spamming of the school email system, violating any federal or state law, local regulation or school committee policy.

Violating copyright laws and/or the district policy on plagiarism. Copying software or applications from Winchester Public School devices through any electronic means unless the particular licensing

agreement in place for the software allows user distribution.

Intentionally wasting limited network or bandwidth resources. Destructions/vandalism of system software, applications, files or other network resources. Employing the network for commercial or political purposes. Using the network / Internet to buy or sell products.

"Hacking" and other illegal activities in an attempt to gain unauthorized access to restricted files, other devices or computer systems. Uploading any harmful form of programming, bypassing filters, installing any type of server, aliasing / spoofing, peer to peer networking or remote control software.

Possession of and/or distribution of any of software tools designed to facilitate any of the above actions will also be considered an offense.

Saving inappropriate files to any part of the system, including but not limited to:

- -Music files
- -Movies
- -Video games of all types
- -Saving offensive images or files
- -Programs which can be used for malicious purposes
- -Any files for which you do not have a legal license
- -Any file which is not needed for school purposes or a class assignment.

Uses that contribute to the violation of any other student conduct code including but not limited to cheating, plagiarism, hazing or harassment, theft, falsification of records, possession of banned substances/items, etc.

NOTE: If you need a file for a class project that you think may be considered inappropriate, then you need to have teacher and school administration permission prior to the class project.

Due Process

The Winchester Public Schools will apply progressive discipline for violations of the district policy and signed Acceptable Use Agreement Form which may include revocation of the privilege of a user's access to technology devices, digital resources, and network infrastructure, along with information technology. Other appropriate disciplinary or legal action may be undertaken by the Winchester Public Schools administration. The nature of the investigation will be reasonable, and for staff, will reflect the contract language for each bargaining unit.

Winchester Public Schools Limitations of Liability

The Winchester Public Schools makes no warranties of any kind, implied or expressed, that the services and functions provided through the Winchester Public Schools technology devices, digital resources and network infrastructure, along with information technology will be error free or without defect. The

Winchester Public Schools will not be responsible for damages users may suffer, including but not limited to loss of data or interruption of service.

The Winchester Public Schools, along with any persons or organizations associated with the school department Internet connectivity, will not be liable for the actions of anyone connecting to the Internet

through the school network infrastructure. All users shall assume full liability, legal, financial or otherwise for their actions while connected to the Internet.

The Winchester Public Schools assumes no responsibility for any information or materials transferred or accessed from the Internet.

Parents/Guardians should read this WPS Technology Acceptable Use Policy. Parents/guardians should discuss the technology use responsibilities with their children. Questions and concerns can be forwarded to the Winchester Public Schools and appropriate offices.

Parents and guardians agree to accept financial responsibility for any expenses or damages incurred as a result of their student's inappropriate or illegal activities on the Winchester Public Schools network. Parents and guardians agree to reimburse Winchester Public Schools for any expenses or damages incurred in the use of district owned devices such as iPads in 1:1 school deployments. Parents and guardians will have access to optional third party insurance carriers.

Modification

The Winchester School Committee reserves the right to modify or change this policy and related implementation procedures at any time.

SOURCE: WINCHESTER

LEGAL REFS: 47 USC § 254

CROSS REFS: IJND: Access to Electronic Media

ADOPTED BY SCHOOL COMMITTEE: June 16, 2015

Winchester Public Schools would like to thank Burlington Public Schools for sharing their Acceptable Use Policy, adopted by Burlington School Committee August 20, 2013.

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)

Parent/Guardian Annual Notice

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents and students who are 18 years of age or older ("eligible students") certain rights with respect to the student's education records. These rights are:

1. The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 45 days after the day the student's school or district receives a request for access.

Parents or eligible students who wish to inspect their child's or their education records should submit to the school principal a written request that identifies the records they wish to inspect. The school official will make arrangements for access and notify the parent or eligible student of the time and place where the records may be inspected.

2. The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the parent or eligible student believes are inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the

student's privacy rights under FERPA.

Parents or eligible students who wish to ask the school or district to amend their child's or their education record should write the school principal, clearly identify the part of the record they want changed, and specify why it should be changed. If the school decides not to amend the record as requested by the parent or eligible student, the school will notify the parent or eligible student of the decision and of their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the parent or eligible student when notified of the right to a hearing.

The right to provide written consent before the school discloses personally identifiable
information (PII) from the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA
authorizes disclosure without consent.

One exception, which permits disclosure without consent, is disclosure to school officials with legitimate educational interests. The criteria for determining who constitutes a school official and what constitutes a legitimate educational interest must be set forth in the school's or school district's annual notification for FERPA rights. A school official typically includes a person employed by the school or school district as an administrator, supervisor, instructor, or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel) or a person serving on the school board. A school official also may include a volunteer, contractor, or consultant who, while not employed by the school, performs an institutional service or function for which the school would otherwise use its own employees and who is under the direct control of the school with respect to the use and maintenance of PII from education records, such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist; a parent or student volunteering to serve on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee; or a parent, student, or other volunteer assisting another school official in performing his or her tasks. A school official typically has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility.

Upon request, the school discloses education records without consent to officials of another school or school district in which a student seeks or intends to enroll, or is already enrolled if the disclosure is for purposes of the student's enrollment or transfer. The Winchester Public Schools will forward student records on request unless notified in writing the principal not do so prior to the student's enrollment in the new school.

4. The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the [School] to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA are:

Student Privacy Policy Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202

[NOTE: In addition, a school may want to include its directory information public notice, as required by § 99.37 of the regulations, with its annual notification of rights under FERPA.]

Disclosures of Personally Identifiable Information without Consent

FERPA permits the disclosure of PII from students' education records, without consent of the parent or eligible student, if the disclosure meets certain conditions found in § 99.31 of the FERPA regulations. Except for disclosures to school officials, disclosures related to some judicial orders or lawfully issued subpoenas, disclosures of directory information, and disclosures to the parent or eligible student, § 99.32 of the FERPA regulations requires the school to record the disclosure. Parents and eligible students have a right to inspect and review the record of disclosures. A school may disclose PII from the education records of a student without obtaining prior written consent of the parents or the eligible student –

- To other school officials, including teachers, within the educational agency or institution whom the school has determined to have legitimate educational interests. This includes contractors, consultants, volunteers, or other parties to whom the school has outsourced institutional services or functions, provided that the conditions listed in § 99.31(a)(1)(i)(B)(1) (a)(1)(i)(B)(3) are met. (§ 99.31(a)(1))
- To officials of another school, school system, or institution of postsecondary education where the student seeks or intends to enroll, or where the student is already enrolled if the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer, subject to the requirements of § 99.34. (§ 99.31(a)(2))
- To authorized representatives of the U. S. Comptroller General, the U. S. Attorney General, the U.S. Secretary of Education, or State and local educational authorities, such as the State educational agency (SEA) in the parent or eligible student's State. Disclosures under this provision may be made, subject to the requirements of § 99.35, in connection with an audit or evaluation of Federal- or State-supported education programs, or for the enforcement of or compliance with Federal legal requirements that relate to those programs. These entities may make further disclosures of PII to outside entities that are designated by them as their authorized representatives to conduct any audit, evaluation, or enforcement or compliance activity on their behalf, if applicable requirements are met. (§§ 99.31(a)(3) and 99.35)
- In connection with financial aid for which the student has applied or which the student has received, if the information is necessary for such purposes as to determine eligibility for the aid, determine the amount of the aid, determine the conditions of the aid, or enforce the terms and conditions of the aid. (§ 99.31(a)(4))
- To State and local officials or authorities to whom information is specifically allowed to be reported or disclosed by a State statute that concerns the juvenile justice system and the system's ability to effectively serve, prior to adjudication, the student whose records were released, subject to § 99.38. (§ 99.31(a)(5))
- To organizations conducting studies for, or on behalf of, the school, in order to: (a) develop, validate, or administer predictive tests; (b) administer student aid programs; or (c) improve instruction, if applicable requirements are met. (§ 99.31(a)(6))
- To accrediting organizations to carry out their accrediting functions. (§ 99.31(a)(7))
- To parents of an eligible student if the student is a dependent for IRS tax purposes. (§

99.31(a)(8))

- To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena if applicable requirements are met. (§ 99.31(a)(9))
- To appropriate officials in connection with a health or safety emergency, subject to § 99.36. (§ 99.31(a)(10))
- Information the school has designated as "directory information" if applicable requirements under § 99.37 are met. (§ 99.31(a)(11))
- To an agency caseworker or other representative of a State or local child welfare agency or tribal organization who is authorized to access a student's case plan when such agency or organization is legally responsible, in accordance with State or tribal law, for the care and protection of the student in foster care placement. (20 U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1)(L))
- To the Secretary of Agriculture or authorized representatives of the Food and Nutrition Service for purposes of conducting program monitoring, evaluations, and performance measurements of programs authorized under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act or the Child Nutrition Act of 1966, under certain conditions. (20 U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1)(K))

Further information regarding FERPA can be found at:

General Information: https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa/index.html

Guidance for Parents:

https://studentprivacy.ed.gov/resources/parent-guide-family-educational-rights-and-privacy-act-ferpa

Student Discipline

As required by Massachusetts law, General Laws Chapter 71, Sections 37, 37H, and 37H ½, Winchester Public Schools has adopted a comprehensive policy regarding student discipline, including procedures and provisions regarding discipline of students on an IEP or a 504 plan and including hazing.

In-School Suspension for Less Than 10 Cumulative Days During A School Year

As required by Massachusetts law, General Laws Chapter 71, Sections 37, 37H, and 37H ½, Winchester Public Schools has adopted a comprehensive policy regarding student discipline, including procedures and provisions regarding discipline of students on an IEP or a 504 plan and including hazing.

In-School Suspension for Less Than 10 Cumulative Days During A School Year

An in-school suspension is a removal of a student from regular classroom activities, but not from the school premises. The procedure for an in-school suspension of no more than (10) school days (consecutive or cumulatively for multiple infractions during the school year) will be as follows:

1. The administrator will inform the student of the disciplinary offense charged, the basis for the charge, and provide the student an opportunity to respond. If the administrator determines that

- the student committed the disciplinary offense, the administrator will inform the student of the length of the student's in-school suspension, which may not exceed 10 days, cumulatively or consecutively, in a school year.
- 2. On the same day as the in-school suspension decision, the administrator will make reasonable efforts to notify the parent orally of the disciplinary offense, the reasons for concluding that the student committed the infraction, and the length of the in-school suspension. The administrator will also invite the parent to a meeting to discuss the student's academic performance and behavior, strategies for student engagement, and possible responses to the behavior. Such meetings will be scheduled on the day of the suspension if possible, and if not, as soon thereafter as possible. If the administrator is unable to reach the parent after making and documenting at least (2) attempts to do so, such attempts will constitute reasonable efforts for purposes of orally informing the parent of the in-school suspension.
- 3. The administrator will send written notice to the student and parent about the in-school suspension, including the reason and the length of the in-school suspension, and inviting the parent to a meeting with the administrator for the purpose set forth above, if such meetings have not already occurred. The administrator will deliver such notice on the day of the suspension by hand-delivery, certified mail, first-class mail, email to an address provided by the parent for school communications, or by other method of delivery agreed to by the administrator and the parent.

An in-school suspension of more than 10 cumulative days in a school year will be subject to the procedures for long-term suspension found at pages 40-41.

Procedures for Short-Term, Out-Of-School Suspensions (10 Cumulative Days Or Less In A School Year)

1. Except in the case of an Emergency Removal as provided here, prior to imposing a short-term out-of-school suspension (10 days or less in a school year) an administrator will provide the student and his/her parent oral and written notice and an opportunity to participate in an informal hearing.

<u>Notice</u>: The written notice to the student and the parent will be in English and in the primary language of the home if other than English, or other means of communication where appropriate and will include the following:

- a. the disciplinary offense;
- b. the basis for the charge;
- c. the potential consequences, including the potential length of the student's suspension;
- d. the opportunity for the student to have a hearing with the administrator concerning the proposed suspension, including the opportunity to dispute the charges and to present the student's explanation of the alleged incident, and for the parent to attend the hearing;
- e. the date, time, and location of the hearing;
- f. the right of the student and the student's parent to interpreter services at the hearing if needed to participate;
- g. Written notice to the parent may be made by hand delivery, first-class mail, certified mail, email to an address provided by the parent for school communications, or any other method of delivery agreed to by the school and parent.
- 2. <u>Efforts to Involve Parent</u>: The administrator will make reasonable efforts to include the parent in the hearing. To conduct a hearing without the parent present, the administrator must be able to document reasonable efforts to include the parent. The administrator is presumed to have made reasonable efforts if the administrator has sent written notice and has documented at least two (2)

- attempts to contact the parent in the manner specified by the parent for emergency notification.
- 3. <u>Format of Hearing</u>: The administrator will discuss the disciplinary offense, the basis for the charge, and any other pertinent information. The student also will have an opportunity to present information, including mitigating facts, that the administrator should consider in determining whether other remedies and consequences may be appropriate. The administrator will provide the parent, if present, an opportunity to discuss the student's conduct and offer information, including mitigating circumstances, that the administrator should consider in determining consequences for the student.
- 4. <u>Decision</u>: The administrator will provide written notice to the student and parent of his/her determination and the reasons for it, and, if the student is suspended, the type and duration of suspension and the opportunity to make up assignments and such other school work as needed to make academic progress during the period of removal. The notice of determination may be in the form of an update to the original written notice of hearing.

Procedures for Long-Term Suspension

- - a. In advance of the hearing, the opportunity to review the student's record and the
 documents upon which the administrator may rely in making a determination to suspend
 the student or not;
 - b. the right to be represented by counsel or a lay person of the student's choice, at the student's/parent's expense;
 - c. the right to produce witnesses on their behalf and to present the student's explanation of the alleged incident, but the student may not be compelled to do so;
 - d. the right to cross-examine witnesses presented by the school district;
 - e. the right to request that the hearing be recorded by the administrator, and a copy of the audio recording provided to the student or parent upon request; and
 - f. the right to appeal the administrator's decision to impose long-term suspension to the superintendent.
- 2. <u>Format of Hearing</u>: The Hearing will afford the rights set forth in the notice above. The administrator will also provide the parent, if present, an opportunity to discuss the student's conduct and offer information, including mitigating circumstances, that the administrator should consider in determining consequences for the student.
- 3. <u>Decision</u>: Based on the evidence, the administrator will determine whether the student committed the disciplinary offense, and, if so, after considering mitigating circumstances and alternatives to long-term suspension, what remedy or consequence will be imposed, in place of or in addition to a long-term suspension. The administrator will send the written determination to the student and parent by hand-delivery, certified mail, first-class mail, email to an address provided by the parent for school communications, or any other method of delivery agreed to by the school and the parent. If the administrator decides to suspend the student on a long-term basis, the written determination will:
 - Identify the disciplinary offense, the date on which the hearing took place, and the participants at the hearing;
 - b. Set out the key facts and conclusions reached;

- c. Identify the length and effective date of the suspension, as well as a date of return to school;
- d. Include notice of the student's opportunity to receive education services to make academic progress during the period of removal from school (if more than 10 cumulative days);
- e. Inform the student of the right to appeal the administrator's decision to the superintendent or designee. Notice of the right of appeal will be in English and the primary language of the home if other than English, or other means of communication where appropriate, and will include the following information stated in plain language:
 - i. the process for appealing the decision, including that the student or parent must file a written notice of appeal with the superintendent within five (5) calendar days of the effective date of the long-term suspension; provided that within the five (5) calendar days, the student or parent may request and receive from the superintendent an extension of time for filing the written notice for up to seven (7) additional calendar days; and that
 - ii. the long-term suspension will remain in effect unless and until the superintendent decides to reverse the administrator's determination on appeal.

No long-term suspension will last more than 90 school days in a school year nor extend beyond the end of the school year in which such suspension is imposed.

Emergency Removal of a Student

Notwithstanding the provisions for short or long-term suspension set forth above, a student who is charged with a disciplinary offense may be removed temporarily from school if the continued presence of the student poses a danger to persons or property, or materially and substantially disrupts the order of the school, and, in the administrator's judgment, there is no alternative available to alleviate the danger or disruption.

The administrator will immediately notify the superintendent in writing of the removal and the reason for it, and describe the danger or disruption caused by the student.

The temporary removal will not exceed two (2) school days following the day of the emergency removal, during which time the administrator will provide the following, as applicable to the length of suspension:

- Make immediate and reasonable efforts to orally notify the student and the student's parent of the emergency removal, the reason for the need for emergency removal, and other applicable matters;
- Provide written notice to the student and parent as provided in Section C or D above, as applicable;
- Provide the student an opportunity for a hearing with the administrator, as applicable, and the parent an opportunity to attend the hearing, before the expiration of the two (2) school days, unless an extension of time for hearing is otherwise agreed to by the administrator, student, and parent.
- Render a decision orally on the same day as the hearing, and in writing no later than the following school day.

An administrator may not remove a student from school on an emergency basis for a disciplinary offense until adequate provisions have been made for the student's safety and transportation.

Appeal to the Superintendent

If a decision by an administrator, following the parent meeting, results in suspension of a student for Page 106

more than 10 cumulative school days for the school year, the student may appeal the decision to the superintendent. In order to do so the student or parent must file a notice of appeal with the superintendent within five (5) calendar days with a seven (7) day postponement option. The superintendent must hold the hearing within three (3) school days of the student's request, unless the student or parent requests an extension of up to seven (7) additional calendar days. If the appeal is not filed within this time frame, the superintendent may deny the appeal, or may allow the appeal in their discretion, for good cause.

The following apply:

- The superintendent will make a good faith effort to include the parent in the hearing. The
 superintendent will be presumed to have made a good faith effort if they have made efforts to
 find a day and time for the hearing that would allow the parent and superintendent to participate.
 The superintendent will send written notice to the parent of the date, time, and location of the
 hearing.
- The superintendent will conduct a hearing to determine whether the student committed the disciplinary offense of which the student is accused, and if so, what the consequence will be. The superintendent will arrange for an audio recording of the hearing, a copy of which will be provided to the student or parent upon request. The superintendent will inform all participants before the hearing that an audio record will be made of the hearing and a copy will be provided to the student and parent upon request.
- The student will have all the rights afforded the student at the administrator's hearing for long-term suspension as described in Section D above.
- The superintendent will issue a written decision within five (5) calendar days of the hearing which meets the requirements for a long-term suspension as described in Section D above. If the superintendent determines that the student committed the disciplinary offense, the superintendent may impose the same or a lesser consequence than the administrator, but will not impose a suspension greater than that imposed by the administrator's decision.

The decision of the superintendent constitutes the final decision of the school district.

See also Policy JIC: Student Discipline.

Statutory Offenses: Provisions of Law and Due Process

MASS. GEN. LAWS, CHAPTER 71 SECTION 37H (CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES, DANGEROUS WEAPONS AND ASSAULTS ON EDUCATIONAL PERSONNEL)

In accordance with M.G.L. ch. 71, § 37H, a student may be excluded or expelled from school under the following circumstances:

- 1. Any student who is found on school premises or at school-sponsored or school-related events, including athletic games, in possession of a dangerous weapon, including, but not limited to, a gun or a knife; or a controlled substance as defined in chapter ninety-four C, including but not limited to, marijuana, cocaine, and heroin, may be subject to expulsion from the school or school district by the principal.
- 2. Any student who assaults a principal, assistant principal, teacher, teacher's aide or other educational staff on school premises or at school-sponsored or school-related events, including athletic games, may be subject to expulsion from the school or school district by the principal.
- 3. Any student who is charged with a violation of either paragraph (a) or (b) shall be notified in writing of an opportunity for a hearing; provided, however, that the student may have representation, along with the opportunity to present evidence and witnesses at said hearing

- before the principal. After said hearing, a principal may, in his discretion, decide to suspend rather than expel a student who has been determined by the principal to have violated either paragraph (a) or (b).
- 4. Any student who has been expelled from a school district pursuant to these provisions shall have the right to appeal to the Superintendent. The expelled student shall have ten days from the date of the expulsion in which to notify the Superintendent of his appeal. The student has the right to counsel at a hearing before the Superintendent. The subject matter of the appeal not be limited solely to a factual determination of whether the student has violated any provisions of this section.
- 5. Any school district that suspends or expels a student under this section shall continue to provide educational services to the student during the period of suspension or expulsion under section 21 of chapter 76. If the student moves to another district during the period of suspension or expulsion, the new district of residence shall either admit the student to the school or provide educational services to the student in an education service plan, under section 21 of chapter 76.
- 6. Any student who is suspended or expelled pursuant to this statute for more than ten (10) consecutive days shall have the opportunity to receive education services and made academic progress toward meeting state and local requirements, through the school-wide education service plan.

When considering the exclusion of a student from school for possession of a dangerous weapon, possession of a controlled substance (such as marijuana, cocaine, or prescription drugs not authorized by the school nurse), or assault on teachers, an administrator may place a student on short term suspension (ten days or less) based upon an informal hearing, to be followed by a formal hearing before the Principal within that period of suspension to determine whether to take additional disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion from school.

- a. The informal hearing will be in the form of a conference between the student and the principal or designee. At this conference, the student (1) shall be informed of the reason for the conference and an explanation of the evidence against them; (2) shall be given the opportunity to present their side of the story, and (3) shall be given a decision on the suspension. If the administrator deems delay of the hearing necessary to avoid danger or substantial disruption, this process may occur immediately after, rather than before, the suspension.
- b. Prior to putting a suspension into effect, the principal or designee shall make a reasonable effort to telephone and inform the student's parent or guardian of the impending suspension; this shall include attempts to contact the parents or guardian at home and at work. Parents may contact the school for additional information regarding the suspension.
- c. A letter will be mailed to the parent/guardian of the suspended student stating:
 - i. The reason for the suspension
 - ii. A statement of the effective date and duration of the suspension
- d. A statement regarding whether or not the Principal will schedule a formal hearing to consider further discipline, up to and including expulsion from school in accordance with M.G.L. c. 71, §37H

MASS. GEN. LAWS, CHAPTER 71 SECTION 37H1/2 (FELONY COMPLAINTS AND FELONY CONVICTIONS)

Pursuant to M.G.L. ch. 71, § 37H½, the following procedures shall be implemented for students charged with or convicted of a felony:

- 1. Upon the issuance of a criminal complaint charging a student with a felony or upon the issuance of a felony delinquency complaint against a student, the principal or headmaster of a school in which the student is enrolled may suspend such student for a period of time determined appropriate by said principal or headmaster if said principal or headmaster determines that the student's continued presence in school would have a substantial detrimental effect on the general welfare of the school. The student shall receive written notification of the charges and the reasons for such suspension prior to such suspension taking effect. The student shall also receive written notification of his right to appeal and the process for appealing such suspension; provided, however, that such suspension shall remain in effect prior to any appeal hearing conducted by the Superintendent. The student shall have the right to appeal the suspension to the Superintendent. The student shall notify the Superintendent in writing of his request for an appeal no later than five calendar days following the effective date of the suspension. The Superintendent shall hold a hearing with the student and the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) within three (3) calendar days of the student's request for an appeal. At the hearing, the student shall have the right to present oral and written testimony on his behalf, and shall have the right to counsel. The Superintendent shall have the authority to overturn or alter the decision of the principal or headmaster, including recommending an alternate educational program for the student. The Superintendent shall render a decision on the appeal within five (5) calendar days of the hearing. Such a decision shall be the final decision of the city, town or regional school district with regard to the suspension.
- 2. Upon a student being convicted of a felony or upon an adjudication or admission in court of guilt with respect to such a felony or felony delinquency, the principal or headmaster of a school in which the student is enrolled may expel said student if such principal or headmaster determines that the student's continued presence in school would have a substantial detrimental effect on the general welfare of the school. The student shall receive written notification of the charges and reasons for such expulsion prior to such expulsion taking effect. The student shall also receive written notification of his right to appeal and the process for appealing such expulsion; provided, however, that the expulsion shall remain in effect prior to any appeal hearing conducted by the Superintendent. The student shall have the right to appeal the expulsion to the Superintendent. The student shall notify the superintendent, in writing, of his request for an appeal no later than five (5) calendar days following the effective date of the expulsion. The superintendent shall hold a hearing with the student and the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) within three calendar days of the expulsion. At the hearing, the student shall have the right to present oral and written testimony on his behalf, and shall have the right to counsel. The superintendent shall have the authority to overturn or alter the decision of the principal; or headmaster, including recommending an alternate educational program for the student. The superintendent shall render a decision on the appeal within five calendar days of the hearing. Such a decision shall be the final decision of the city, town or regional school district with regard to the expulsion. Upon expulsion of such a student, no school or school district shall be required to provide educational services to such student.
- 3. Any school district that suspends or expels a student under this section shall continue to provide educational services to the student during the period of suspension or expulsion under section 21 of chapter 76. If the student moves to another district during the period of suspension or expulsion, the new district of residence shall either admit the student to the school or provide educational services to the student in an education service plan, under section 21 of chapter 76.
- 4. Any student who is suspended or expelled pursuant to this statute for more than ten (10) consecutive days shall have the opportunity to receive education services and made academic progress toward meeting state and local requirements, through the school-wide education service

plan.

When considering a suspension/expulsion of a student charged with/convicted of felony, the Principal will use the standards and procedures set forth in M.G.L. c.71, §37H1/2 above.

MASS. GEN. LAWS, CHAPTER 71 SECTION 37H ¾ (Suspension or expulsion on grounds other than those set forth in Secs. 37H or 37H1/2)

This section shall govern the suspension and expulsion of students enrolled in a public school in the commonwealth who are not charged with a violation of subsections (a) or (b) of section 37H or with a felony under section 37H.5.

Any principal, headmaster, superintendent or person acting as a decision-maker at a student meeting or hearing, when deciding the consequences for the student, shall consider ways to re-engage the student in the learning process; and shall not suspend or expel a student until alternative remedies have been employed and their use and results documented, following and in direct response to a specific incident or incidents, unless specific reasons are documented as to why such alternative remedies are unsuitable or counter-productive, and in cases where the student's continued presence in school would pose a specific, documentable concern about the infliction of serious bodily injury or other serious harm upon another person while in school. Alternative remedies may include, but shall not be limited to: (i) mediation; (ii) conflict resolution; (iii) restorative justice; and (iv) collaborative problem solving. The principal, headmaster, superintendent or person acting as a decision-maker shall also implement school-or district-wide models to re-engage students in the learning process which shall include but not be limited to: (i) positive behavioral interventions and supports models and (ii) trauma sensitive learning models; provided, however, that school- or district-wide models shall not be considered a direct response to a specific incident.

For any suspension or expulsion under this section, the principal or headmaster of a school in which the student is enrolled, or a designee, shall provide, to the student and to the parent or guardian of the student, notice of the charges and the reason for the suspension or expulsion in English and in the primary language spoken in the home of the student. The student shall receive the written notification and shall have the opportunity to meet with the principal or headmaster, or a designee, to discuss the charges and reasons for the suspension or expulsion prior to the suspension or expulsion taking effect. The principal or headmaster, or a designee, shall ensure that the parent or guardian of the student is included in the meeting, provided that such meeting may take place without the parent or guardian only if the principal or headmaster, or a designee, can document reasonable efforts to include the parent or guardian in that meeting. The department shall promulgate rules and regulations that address a principal's duties under this subsection and procedures for including parents in student exclusion meetings, hearings or interviews under this subsection.

If a decision is made to suspend or expel the student after the meeting, the principal or headmaster, or a designee, shall update the notification for the suspension or expulsion to reflect the meeting with the student. If a student has been suspended or expelled for more than 10 school days for a single infraction or for more than 10 school days cumulatively for multiple infractions in any school year, the student and the parent or guardian of the student shall also receive, at the time of the suspension or expulsion decision, written notification of a right to appeal and the process for appealing the suspension or expulsion in English and in the primary language spoken in the home of the student; provided, however, that the suspension or expulsion shall remain in effect prior to any appeal hearing. The principal or headmaster or a designee shall notify the superintendent in writing, including, but not limited to, by

electronic means, of any out-of-school suspension imposed on a student enrolled in kindergarten through grade 3 prior to such suspension taking effect. That notification shall describe the student's alleged misconduct and the reasons for suspending the student out-of-school. For the purposes of this section, the term "out-of-school suspension" shall mean a disciplinary action imposed by school officials to remove a student from participation in school activities for 1 day or more.

A student who has been suspended or expelled from school for more than 10 school days for a single infraction or for more than 10 school days cumulatively for multiple infractions in any school year shall have the right to appeal the suspension or expulsion to the superintendent. The student or a parent or guardian of the student shall notify the superintendent in writing of a request for an appeal not later than 5 calendar days following the effective date of the suspension or expulsion; provided, that a student and a parent or guardian of the student may request, and if so requested, shall be granted an extension of up to 7 calendar days. The superintendent or a designee shall hold a hearing with the student and the parent or guardian of the student within 3 school days of the student's request for an appeal; provided that a student or a parent or guardian of the student may request and, if so requested, shall be granted an extension of up to 7 calendar days; provided further, that the superintendent, or a designee, may proceed with a hearing without a parent or guardian of the student if the superintendent, or a designee, makes a good faith effort to include the parent or guardian. At the hearing, the student shall have the right to present oral and written testimony, cross-examine witnesses and shall have the right to counsel. The superintendent shall render a decision on the appeal in writing within 5 calendar days of the hearing. That decision shall be the final decision of the school district with regard to the suspension or expulsion.

No student shall be suspended or expelled from a school or school district for a time period that exceeds 90 school days, beginning the first day the student is removed from an assigned school building.

Discipline of Students with Disabilities

Procedures for Suspension(s) Not Exceeding 10 School Days

- Any student with a disability may be suspended for up to ten (10) school days during a school
 year. Disciplinary decisions are the same as for students without disabilities and in accordance
 with the due process procedures in this handbook.
- The school provides additional procedural safeguards for students with disabilities prior to any suspension beyond 10 consecutive days or more than 10 cumulative days (if there is a pattern of suspension) in any school year

Procedures for Suspension(s) Exceeding 10 School Days

- If your child is suspended for more than 10 school days in a school year, this removal may be considered a "change of placement". A change of placement invokes certain procedural protections under federal special education law and Section 504.
- Federal law defines a "change of placement" as:
 - Removal for more than 10 consecutive school days; OR
 - A series of removals that constitute a pattern 1) because the series of removals total more than 10 cumulative days in a school year; 2) because the student's behavior is substantially similar to that in previous incidents that resulted in the series of removals; and 3) because of such additional factors as the length of each removal, the total amount of time the student has been removed, and the proximity of the removals to one another.

Please note that determination of whether a pattern of removals is a "change of placement" is made by the District.

- Prior to any removal that constitutes a change in placement, the school must convene a meeting to determine whether or not the behavior that forms the basis of the disciplinary action is manifestation of your child's disability. Parents have a right to participate in this meeting. At the meeting, all relevant information will be considered including the IEP or Section 504 Plan, teacher observations, and evaluations reports.
- At a manifestation determination meeting, the team will consider two questions:
 - Did the student's disability cause or have a direct and substantial relationship to the conduct in question?
 - Was the conduct a direct result of the district's failure to implement the IEP/Section 504 Plan?
- If the manifestation determination decision is that the conduct in question was caused by or had a direct and substantial relationship to your child's disability OR a direct result of the district's failure to implement the IEP/Section 504 Plan, then your child may not be removed from the current educational placement (unless under the special circumstances or parents agree). The Team will review the IEP or Section 504 Plan and any behavioral intervention plans and may amend those plans as appropriate. The Team will complete a functional behavior assessment and behavior intervention plan if it has not already done so.
- If the manifestation determination decision is that the conduct in question was NOT caused by or had a direct and substantial relationship to your child's disability OR was NOT the direct result of the district's failure to implement the IEP/Section 504 Plan, then the school may suspend or otherwise discipline your child according the school's code of conduct. The Team may, as appropriate, complete a functional behavioral assessment and behavioral intervention plan and modification, to address the behavior so that it does not recur. For students with IEPs, during the period of time of removal from school that exceeds 10 school days, the school district must provide educational services that allow your child to continue to make educational progress. For students with Section 504 Plans, there is no automatic right to receive educational services beyond the 10th school day of suspension under federal law, however, state law does provide all students with the rights to receive educational services during periods of suspensions lasting longer than ten days.

The principal (or designee) will notify the special education office of the suspendable offenses of a special needs student, and a record will be kept of such notices.

Additional information regarding the procedural protections for students eligible for services under laws providing for services for students with disabilities can be obtained from Heather Geary, Director of Special Education, who can be reached at 781-721-7000 x1005.

Special Circumstances for Exclusion

Special circumstances exist if your child: 1) possesses, uses, sells or solicits illegal drugs on school grounds or at a school-sponsored event; 2) carries a weapon to school or a school-sponsored event; or, 3) inflicts serious bodily harm upon another person at school or a school-sponsored event. Under these circumstances, the principal may place your child in an interim alternate educational setting (IAES) for up to 45 school days. Your child may remain in this IAES for a period of time not to exceed 45 school days. Thereafter, your child will return to the previously agreed-upon placement unless a hearing officer has ordered another placement, or you and the school agree to another placement. For students with Section 504 Plans, there is no automatic right to receive educational services beyond the 10th school day of suspension under federal law, however, state law does provide all students with the rights to receive

educational services during periods of suspensions lasting longer than ten days.

School personnel will provide Parent's Notice of Procedural Safeguards (Special Education) or Notice of Parent and Student Rights Under Section 504 for students with disabilities prior to any suspension constituting a change in placement. These notices will provide an explanation of the process should there be disagreement regarding the manifestation determination or any placement decision. Parent, guardian and/or student may petition Bureau of Special Education Appeals for a hearing or the Office for Civil Rights (Section 504).

Discipline of Students Not Yet Determined Eligible for Special Education

The IDEA protections summarized above also apply to students who have not yet been found eligible for IEP's if the school district is deemed to have knowledge that the students were eligible for IEP's before the conduct that precipitated the disciplinary action occurred. The IDEA provides that a school district is "deemed to have knowledge" if:

- (1) the child's parent had expressed concern in writing to district supervisory or administrative personnel or the child's teacher that the child needs special education and related services;
- (2) the child's parent had requested an evaluation of the child to determine eligibility for special education services; or
- (3) the teacher of the child or other school district personnel had expressed specific concerns about a pattern of behavior by the child directly to the district's director of special education or to other supervisory personnel.

However, a school district is not "deemed to have knowledge" if the district evaluated the student and determined that the child was not eligible for special education services or the child's parent refused an evaluation of the child or IDEA services. If the school district has no knowledge that a student is an eligible student under the IDEA before taking disciplinary measures against the student, the student may be disciplined just as any other student may be. If, however, a request is made for an evaluation to determine eligibility while the student is subject to disciplinary measures, the district must conduct the evaluation in an expedited manner. Pending the results of the evaluation, the student must remain in the educational placement determined by school authorities, which may include suspension or expulsion with services provided under the school-wide education service plan as otherwise applicable. If the student is determined eligible for an IEP as a result of the evaluation, the school district must provide the student with special education and related services in accordance with the IDEA.

Additional information regarding the procedural protections for special education students can be obtained from the McCall Special Education Supervisor, who can be reached at 781-721-7026.

Discipline of Students Identified as Having a Disability and Provided with a Section 504 Plan Students are expected to meet the expectations for behavior, rules and regulations identified in this handbook. A student on a Section 504 plan may be disciplined like any other non-disabled student. However, if the student is going to be suspended for ten (10) or more consecutive days, expelled or suspended for more than fifteen (15) cumulative days and there is a change in placement as a result, then a manifestation determination review shall be conducted. The student's 504 team shall convene, and answer two questions, after reviewing send a letter to the student and parent/guardian within five relevant documents and the misconduct of the student:

- Is the misconduct the result of failure to implement the student's 504 plan?
- Is the misconduct caused by or does it have a direct and substantial relationship to the student's disability?

| A summary of the manifestation determination review will be written and a copy provided to the parent(s)/guardian(s) as soon as possible after the review but no later than five (5) school days after the review. |
|--|
| |
| |